)ié( CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

BOARD
OF
COMMISSIONERS

January 6, 2014

6:00PM - Closed Session
7:00 PM - Regular Meeting

Historic Courtroom
Courthouse Complex



IF YOU HAVE ANYTHING TO ADD/DELETE TO THE
CLOSED SESSION AGENDA, PLEASE AMEND THE
AGENDA BEFORE ENTERING CLOSED SESSION.

THANK Y OU.

Closed Session — January 6, 2014

1 Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) — Consultation With Attorney for
potential litigation



This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and
all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute
discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda.

Please turn Cell Phoneringer s off during the meseting.

Agenda

Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
January 6, 2014
6:00 P.M. - Closed Session
7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex
Camden, North Carolina

6:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman Garry Meiggs

Closed Session
Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) - Consultation with Attor ney for Potential
Litigation

7:00 P.M. Welcome

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance — Garry Meiggs

ITEM 1. Public Comments

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of
comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other

issues.
ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action)
ITEM 3. Old Business (For discussion and possible action)

A. Proposal for General Labbyist Services (Pg 1-24)
ITEM 4. New Business (For discussion and possible action)

A. Annual Audit Presentation (Pg 25-137)

B. Camden County Schools Capital Funding Request (Pg 138-139)

C. Department of the Army License for the Operation/Maintenance of Interpretive
Sign Along the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway (Dismal Swamp Canal, South
Mills) (Pg 140-149)

D. Land Gift to County, PIN 01.7998.00.53.5114.0000 (Pg 150-153)

E. Monthly Tax Report (Pg 154-164)

Agenda - Camden County Board of Commissioners January 6, 2014
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ITEM 5. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action)
A. North River Watershed Advisory Committee (Pg 165-167)
B. Albemarle Commission Reappointment (Pg 168-169)
ITEM 6. Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved by one
motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a member of the
Board.)
A. Budget Amendments—- BA017 (Pg 170-171)
B. Tax Collection Report (Pg 172-173)
C. Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases (Pg 174-175)
D. Tax Authorization to Collect (September 2013 & February Renewals)(Pg 176-
178)
E. Declaration of Surplus (Pg 179-180)
F. Set Public Hearing- Ordinance No. 2013-12-01 Rezoning Application (UDO
2013-11-26) for Rodney M. Needham (Pg 181-196)
G. Purple Heart Proclamation (Pg 197-198)
ITEM 7. Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action)
ITEM 8. County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action)
ITEM 9. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies (Pg 199-219)
A. ECBH November 2013 Financial Report
B. Sales Collection Report
C. Land Transfer Tax Report
D. Register of Deeds Account Balance Report
E. Central Depository Fund
F. Albemarle Commission Board Packet
G. Six month Library Report
ITEM 10. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action)
ITEM 11. Adjourn
Agenda - Camden County Board of Commissioners January 6, 2014
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MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners gY];u ckwall
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
Item Number: 3.A
VOTE:
Old Business S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 g'leiﬁ;nk
Attachments: 2 (22 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County Manager | ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Proposal for General Lobbyist
Services
SUMMARY:

The County Manager met with the principals of McClees Consulting,
Inc. on September 25™ for the purpose of hearing a presentation on
the State legislative lobbying services which the firm provides.
McClees Consulting proposes to track and monitor all State bills that
are introduced, the budget process, and any other legislative issues
that would have a direct or indirect impact upon Camden County.

As a general lobbyist, McClees Consulting, Inc. would meet regularly
with the County to learn of the county’s key concerns and legislative
issues and would lobby State legislators to ensure that proposed State
legislation met the needs and best interests of the County.

McClees maintains a presence in Raleigh when the General Assembly
is in session. McClees communicates with its clients via telephone and
email while the General Assembly is in session, and includes weekly
reports and more frequent communication whenever necessary.

McClees stated that during the recent 2013 session, the firm saved
Camden County approximately $4,800 by its success in revising a
court bill to protect local child support enforcement offices from
bearing additional mandated costs (HB 343, Courts/Procedure & Fee
Amendments). The firm also represented Beaufort, Hyde, and
Pamlico County’s in successfully blocking tolls on ferry operations. A



list of additional legislative accomplishments is included in this packet
for review and consideration. 2

During its October 7, 2013 regular meeting, the Camden Board of
Commissioners heard a presentation of the general lobbyist services
which McClees Consulting, Inc. provides and directed the County
Manager to conduct additional research and to obtain a contract
agreement from McClees Consulting, Inc. for review by the County
Attorney and further consideration by the Board.  McClees
Consulting, Inc. has since provided the attached contact agreement,
which has been reviewed by the County Attorney.

The County Manager has also contacted the Beaufort County
Manager and the Vice Chairman of the Pamlico County Board of
Commissioners to inquire as to the effectiveness of McClees
Consulting, Inc. and their general impression as to the quality of
lobbyist services which they have been provided. Both organizations
reported that they have been extremely pleased with the both the
thoroughness and professionalism of McClees Consulting, Inc. and
highly recommended their services.

McClees Consulting, Inc. provides these general lobbying services for
an annual contract price. McClees proposes to offer these services to
Camden County for the annual cost of $15,000 in accordance with the
attached contractual agreement. This fee includes in-state expenses,
however all out-of-state expenses incurred at the direction of the
Board of Commissioners would require additional compensation by
the County.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Manager recommends approval of the attached Contract
and Agreement for Services by McClees Consulting, Inc. for the
provision of general lobbyist services. The County Manager believes
that such services, in conjunction with the legislative representation
provided through its membership and association with the North
Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC), will be in
the long term best interest of the citizens of Camden County.



McClees Consulting offers lobbying services to supplement
your personal efforts to keep up with current legislative issues
onn behalif of Camden County. We monitor all bills filed, the
budget process, and issues impacting coastal and rural counties.
We are interested in being your eyes and ears in Raleigh at the
NC General Assembly.

We communicate by telephone and email during the
legiglative session, with weekly reports and more freguent
communications as necessary. During the sesgion, we live in
Raleigh. During the interim, we live in Oriental, and can
attend any meetings in Camden County at your convenience.

Baged on the legislative issues in 2013, we saved Camden
County several thousand dollars by revising a court cost bill to
protect local child support enforcement offices?. We believe we
can continue to save Camden County money in future legislative
gsessions. We do this by being present in the NC General
Assembly and closely monitoring all relevant legislative
actions.

McClees Congulting provides these general lobbying services
for a contract price per year. We do not bill by the hour. We
are offering to provide these services to Camden County for the
contract price of Thirty Thousand Dollars {$386-888+66} per year.

1 STEor Tl

With respect to expenses, we do not bill for in state
expenses, but would expect reimbursement of any out of state
travel expenses incurred at the specific direction of the Board.

For your information, attached are resumes for Joe McClees
and Henri McClees, together with a list of legisliative
accomplishments.

We look forward to discusgsing this matter in more detail at
your convenience,

Best personal regards.

Very sincerely yours,

o oo M L=

cClees
Enclosures

* House Biil #343, Session Law 2013-223 Courts/Procedure & Fee Amendments;
hitnfwww e leo net/Sessions/201 3/Bils/House/PRFH34 5 v6.pdf
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MCCLEES CONSULTING, INC.

Joseph Dgniels McClees
S. Henri McClees
POST OFFICE BOX 430
ORIENTAL, NORTH CAROLINA,
285710430
TELEPHONE
{252} 248-1097
TELECOPIER
(252) 249-3275
www.nccieesconsuiling.com

SELECTED LEGISLATIVE & BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ACCOMPILISHMENTS
Joseph D. MeClees
1990 - 2013

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

McClees Consulting, Inc. (hereinafter McClees) represents
bugsiness interests, trade associations, selected NC counties,
and coalitions of citizens,

Because of the predominant power of the legislature over other
branches of government in NC, every important issue in North
Carolina passes through the legiglative buildings. Public
policy is rarely implemented without legislative action.

BEAUFORT, HYDE & PANMLICC COUNTIES: TRANSPORTATION ISSUE

In 2013, McClees represented three coastal counties in a budget
fight regarding trangportation funding, sgpecifically the
propesal to imposge tolls on commuter ferries in coastal NC. In
the final budget, no new tolls were imposed on the commuter
ferries to Ocracoke Island, Knotts Island, and on the Pamlico
and Neuse Rivers.

NC LOGGERS

In 2013, McClees repregented an individual logger and officer of
a statewide professional logger organization to preserve a sales
tax exemption on heavy egquipment. As part of NC’s agriculture
industry, loggers should be entitled to the same gsales tax
exemption granted to farmers for agriculture eguipment. This
exemption was preserved for loggers in the final budget.

BEAUFORT, HYDE & PAMLICO COUNTIES: COURT COST ISSUR

In 20132, McClees worked to relieve child support enforcement
offices from the burden of massive increases in filing fees,

Attachment A: page 1
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which would have been paid by counties. Representing Beaufort,
Hyde, and Pamlico Counties, McClees succeeded in saving NC child
support offices and counties thousands of dollars in additional
filing fees which would have been billed to the counties.

CaI

From 2007 to present, McClees has supported CGI's significant
project to upgrade the NC Dept. of Revenue collections software,
with McClees providing facilitation with NC General Assembly for
funding. 7This multi-year project has enabled the NC Dept. of
Revenue to collect more than One Hundred Million Dollars
{$100,000,000} previocusly uncollected revenues.

In 2004, McClees was retained by the client as a consultant and
lobbyist. McClees helped to procure a $9.5 million contract for
the ¢lient in NC. Since 2004, McClees has worked continuously
with OGI in ongoing projects in NC.

OVERRIDING THE GOVERNOR'S VETO

In the summer of 2008, McClees made history in North Carolina by
attaining the first legislative override of a governor's veto.
McClees represented an alliance of boating interests fighting to
protect fishing, boating, and tourism interests. Udovernor
Easley vetoed HB#2167, a bill allowing boat trailers of standard
sizes to operate on North Carolina’s highways. The House
overrode the wveto 92-7 and the Senate overrode the veto 39-0.

In 2009, Boating Alliance work continued as McClees worked with
Lake Gaston Asscociation, American Watercraft Association, and
others to require safety courses for young boaters. Senate Bill
#43 requiring boating safety courses was passed in 2009.

AFFILIATED COMPUTER SERVICES (ACS)

In 2001, McClees was retained by ACS State & Local Solutions,

Inc. to help them establish a presence in Raleigh, NC. McClees
worked with ACS as a consultant and lobbyist 2001 through 2004,
McClees aided ACS in increasing its presence in state politics.

The client successfully secured a contract with the City of
Raleigh to provide red light camera equipment and services.
McClees assisted the client in making political decisions
regarding red light cameras in South Carclina and Georgia.

Attachment A: page 2



AMERICAN SOCIRTY OF SAFETY ENGINEERS (A.8.8.E.)
THE NORTH CAROLINA CHAPTERS

In 1999-2000, McClees secured passage of Senate Bill #897. This
legislation set up registration and title protection for safety
professionals in NC. Title protection gives the Safety
Professionals protection from those who might misrepresent
themselves to be Safety Professionals, but lack the training
required. The title *Safety Professional” may be used now only
by those persons who are qualified and certified by the American
Society of Safety Engineers. This protection is found in
N.C.G.8. §90-671 st seq., passed in 2000.

BRAUFORT COUNTY, NC and 11 other NC Coastal Counties

Since 2008, McClees has represented Beaufort County, NC. When
the NC Environmental Management Commigsion published unworkable
storm water rules in 2008, McClees helped to form a coalition of
twelve (12} coastal counties, including Beaufort. The coalition
worked with other interested parties to formulate a compromise
with state government. The result was reasonable storm water
rules that can be understood and enforced.

CONWOOD COMPANY, LLC; SWISHER INTERNATIONAL, INC.; SWEDISH MATCE
NORTH AMERICA, INC.*

McClees represented Swedish Match & Conwood, smokeless tobacco
and cigar manufacturers, to perform various lobbying and
consulting functions in NC, 8C, and TN, McClees successfully
blocked taxation aimed at smokeless tobacco in NC in each of the
past several legislative sessions. McClees stopped legislation
aimed at modifying the taxation structure on smokeless tobacco.
As requested, McClees chose and managed other lobbyists and
local legal counsel for these clients, McClees assisted in
federal lobbying for certain issuss, spscifically including ths
defeat of legislation aimed at changes rules and regulations on
the smokeless tobacco industry.

From 1937 to 2003, McClees represented these companies through
the Smokeless Tobacco Council, Ince, The Council disbanded, and
McClees was retained by these primary members to represent them
in similar capacities to my work for the Council.

*Conwood, Swedish Match North America, and Swigher International
were supporting msmbsrs of the Smokeless Tobacco Council, Inc.
until the Council ceased operations in December 2003.
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GOOD NEIGHBORS ASSOCIATION OF NC, IN..

McClees secured passage of legislation modifying annexation
lawg. Good Neighbors was a citizen group opposed to involuntary
annexation into municipalities., The client considered
annexation to be bad public policy and bad for their property
rights. McClees changed existing annexation statutes to give a
more favorable position to citizens in out-lying communities.
Typical problems for citizens included inadequate services such
ags water, sewer, garbage pickup, ete¢. In 1998, McClees was
successful in amending N.C.G.S5. §160A-31 et seq.

INDUSTRIAL HYGLIENE COUNCIL OF NC

In 1997, McClees developed and lobbied to passage a new type of
legislation never before passed in NC. The concept of “Title
Protection” is useful for a group of workers who have a
distinctive job description that does not rise to the level of
requiring a license for the practice of the described job or
profession. Title protection gave Industrial Hygienists in NC
protection from those persons falsely claiming to be Industrial
Hygienists. The title “Industrial Hygienist” may be used now
only by those persons who are qualified and certified by the
International Hygiene Council. This title protection statute
for Industrial Hygienists, N.C.G.S. §90-515 et seq., passed in
1997, was the first title protection passed in NC for any group.

INFILTRATOR SYSTEMS, INC.

From 1892 to 2005, McClees worked for Infiltrator Systems, Inc.
as a business consultant and lobbyist in NC, South Carolina,
Virginia, and Tennessee. McClees worked as a business
consultant in the Pacific Rim and Kansas. McClees worked to
pass helpful legislation and defensively to prevent legislation
harmful to the client. McClees obtained modification of rules
and regulations that would otherwige restrict or prevent the use
of the client’'s wastewater treatments systems and components
thereof.

McClees succeeded in broadening the acceptance and use of
Infiltrator products in NC and other states. Further, McClees
handled disputes in politically sensitive situations in state
and local governments in NC and other states on request.

McClees assisted the President/Chairman of the Board in planning
gstrategies for the introduction of new products, sales,
distribution, and marketing.

Attachment A: page 4
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NATIONAL RIFLE ASSOCIATION (NRA-ILA)

From 1993 to 2005, McClees represented the National Rifle
Association of America-Institute for Legislative Action (NRA~
ILA} in the NC General Assembly. McClees also monitored
legislation in South Carolina. Several years were particularly
active. McClees introduced pro-Second Amendment legislation and
defended against numerous pieces of unwanted legislation
designed to limit our right to bear arms in NC. McClees
assisted House and Senate members draft several significant
pieces of legislation regarding firearms in NC. From 1993 to
2005, McClees passed geven (7) substantial bills positively
affecting gun ownexrs in NC. These include the following:

&. “Permit to Carry Concealed Handgun”, N.C.G.S. §14-4135.11 et
seqg. passed 1995, amended 1297, amended 2000. Also passed in
1995 was “Statewide uniformity” re concealed carry regulationg,
N.C.G.5. §14-415.23,

b. “Statewide Uniformity of Local Regulation” {preemption
igsue}, N.C.G.8. §14-4092.40, passed 1995.

¢. A NC statute designed after the “Eddie Eagle Program for
Public Schools” designed by the NRA for safety education and
instruction in weapons safety, passed in 1995,

d. “Shooting Range Protection Act of 1997%, House Bill 1012,
N.C.G.S. §14-409.45 et geq., passed in 1997.

€. ‘“Firearm Regulation Amendments,” House Bill 622, N.C.G.S.
§14-409.40 et seq., passed in 2002. This major law guards gun
manufacturers, dealers, and related NC businesses and protects
them from tbe threat from frivolous or duplicative lawsuits.

f. *"Concealed Handgun Reciprocity,” Senate Bill 33, S$.L.2003~
199, passed in 2003.

g. "Gun Sale Legal with Concealed Handgun Permit,” House Bill
817/8.1..2004-183, passed in 2004.

McClees wrote the language for these gun bills, presented the
bills at the committee level, and garnered support at the
committee level in both House and Senate, McClees secured and
distributed educational materials to all members of the House
and Senate to explain the purposes and importance of each of the
gun bills. McClees successfully garnered support for passage of
all these bills.

NC PORTABLE TOILET GROUP www.ncportabletoiletgroup.org

Since 1993, McClees has represented the NC portable sanitation
industry. McClees created the NC Portable Toilet Group at the
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request of the industry in 1993. Members own seventy percent of
all rental portable toilet units in NC.

In 1993, McClees secured the passage of legislation mandating
the use of at least one portable toilet at every new home
congtruction site, or two contiguous sites. This modification
increased sanitation and health standards for the construction
industry in NC as well as aiding the portable toilet industry.
The modified statute is contained in N.C.G.8. §143-143.3.

In 2008, McClees secured the passage of Senate Bill

#356/8.L.2005-377, which granted a fuel tax rebate Lo pumper
trucks uged by portable toilet businesses.

N. PUBLIC SCHOOL BUS DRIVERES ASSOCIATION, IN...

From 1993 to 1996, McCleeg secured pay raiseg for public school
bus drivers in NC. McClees secured passage of pay raises in
e@ach of the sessions of 199%3-1994 and 1995-1%9%5. During
representation of the client, McClees obtained a total of Three
Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,500,000.00) in salary
increases for the bus drivers. McClees successfully lobbied for
the passage of legislation increasing the protection given to
public school bus drivers against lawsuits arising from
accidents occurring while in the course of employment,

NC PUMPER GROUP www.ncpumpergroup.oryg

In 2001, McClees organized the NC Pumper Group at the request of
industry leaders in NC. This trade group specializes in issues
arising from the pumping, transportation, and disposal of septic
tank waste, grease, and related waste products.

In 2001, McClees secured passage of a groundbreaking piece of
legislation. House Bill #1019 revised the Septage Management
law in NC. These revisions have already and will continue to
positively affect the pumping industry. For example, the 2001
law requires mandatory continuing education to all pumpers
licensed in NC. These requirements improve services provided by
the pumping industry and give waste haulers more professional
strength and credibility.

The legislation will improve professional excellence in the
industry by eliminating incompetent pumpers and unpermitted *f£ly

Attachment A: page &
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by night” operators. This is adding to the profitability of the
legitimate businesses.

The NC Pumper Group conducts educational seminars in cooperation
with the NC Portable Toilet Group. The two Groups work together
to provide certification requirements to the NC Divisgion of
Waste Management. McClees Consulting, Inc. manages the NC
Pumper Group and the NC Portable Toilet Group membership and
anmual geminars.

In 2005, McClees secured passage of Senate Bill #356/8.L.2005~-

377, which granted a fuel tax rebate to pump trucks used by
septage management firms.

NC RIFLE & PLSTOL ASSOCIATION, INC.

In 2005, McClees was retained by the client to protect Second
Amendment rights in North Carolina. This Association is the
only official affiliate in North Carclina of the National Rifle
Association, Inc.

NC SEPTIC TANK ASSOCIATION, INC,

From 1983 to 2000, McClees drafted and shepherded through the
legislative process several pieces of legislation benefiting
this septic tank industry and this c¢lient. The legislation
positively affected all sectors, including manufacture,
installation, and pumping of septic tanks in NC.

McClees prevented a proposed $50.00/tank surcharge against
manufacturers; modified standards for septic tanks; and, changed
other rules and requlations to aid manufacturers and installers
of tanks. McClees modified regulations to aid pumpers and to
protect the public. This legislation aided the industry and
improved health, sanitation, and water guality standards for
citizens of NC.

NC FEDERATICON OF DOG CLUBS, INC. www.ncdogclubs.org

Since 2010, McClees has been retained to represent the interests
of North Carolina dog breeders through the NC Federation of Dog
Clubs, a coalition of kennel clubs affiliated with the American
Kennel Club {AKC).
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NC SPORTING DOG ASSOCIATION, INC, www.ncsportingdog.org

In 2004, McClees was retained to stop the implementation of a
dog food tax in North Carolina. McClees succeeded in defeating
the proposed bill. In the process of defeating unnscessary and
expensive legislation, McClees recognized the need for a
gtatewide organization to repregent hunters who hunt with dogs
in North Carolina and those who breed hunting dogs. McClees
helped to form the NC Sporting Dog Asgociation, Inc. In 2005,
McClees helped to sscure passage of a state wide prohibition
against the removal of electronic tracking collars on dogs in
House Bill #862/8.L.2005-94.

In 2006 through 2010, McClees helped stop all attempts by animal
rights radicals to impoge unreasonable regulations on dog
breeders, including dog hunters who keep packs of dogs. McClees
continues to fight animal rights activists who oppose hunting
and the ownership of dogs.

PERSONAL WATERCRAFT ASSOCIATION INTERNATIONAL (PWAI)

In 2005, McClees secured the passage of House Bill
#702/8.5,.2005-181. This gsafety bill increased the minimum age
at which a person may operate a personal watercraft in North
Carolina.

PREMIER TECH ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

McClees assisted this international company in gaining approval
in NC for one of its key wastewater treatment products. McClees
asgisted the client in propelling its product approval regquest
through the regulatory system of review in the NC Dept. of
Environment and Natural Resources. Prior to said
representation, they had not been able te obtain a useful
approval.

McClees assisted the client in preparation for committee
hsarings and have drafted proposed rule changes. In thig case,
McClees worked to implement changes by regulation rather than
statute. The goal was to modify NC's existing regulatory scheme
to give the client, a French Canadian company, a fair and equal
opportunity to sell its products in NC. McClees also worked to
accomplish similar goals in South Carolina, George, Tennessee,
Virginia, and Pennsylvania. McClees chose and managed lobbyists
in those respective states, together with local legal counsel
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and other professionals necessary to accomplish our goals in
each state.

SELP-S8TORAGE ASSOCIATIVN

MoClees defeated legislation that would have imposed certain
restrictive burdens upon owners of seli-storage facilities in
NC. The proposed legislation would have disrupted the industry,
and would have caused gevere economic¢ problems for self-storage
building owners in NC.

STORMTRCHE, LLC

McClees was retained by this business partnership of Infiltrator
Systems, Inc. and Advanced Drainage Systems {ADS). McClees
worked with management and local contacts regarding product
approvals, sales distribution, and marketing in the Pacific Rim.

The product comprises innovative storm water storage and

management products offering great possibilities in Hawaii,
Guam, Tinian, and other Pacific Islands.

TECHNOLOGICAYL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, INC.

From 1992 to 2001, McClees represented the Technological
Development Authority, Inc. (TDA), a non-profit corporation that
operated business incubators, made rural loans, and took equity
positions with seed stage capital in emerging companies. For
more than eight years, Joe McClees served as a business
consultant to the corporation as well as lobbyist in the NC
General Assembly. From 1992 to 2001, McClees secured
legislation granting Nineteen Million Dollars ($19,000,000.00)}
to TDA.

TDA leveraged these fundg into more than Four Hundred Thirty
Million Dollars {($430,000,000.00} of business ventures and
loanzs. These monies aided citizens in NC in starting
buginesses. These businesses were started in TDA’s business
incubators and by entrepreneurs in need of early seed stage
development capital. With these funds, TDA created over seven
thousand {7,000} jobs. TDA grew from receiving no funds from
the NC General Assembly to receiving Three Million Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars {$3,500,000.00} in 2000.
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The challenge of thig task was persuading the Chairmen of the
Appropriations Committees of both House and Senate. McClees
demonstrated this nonprofit corporation was uniquely different
from other nonprofite seeking funds from the legislature. It is
rare in NC for nonprofits to receive legislative appropriations.
McClees had substantial success, and convinced legislators TDA
served a vital function in grass roots economic development by
increasing jobs and strengthening emerging businesses in NC.

Further, McCleegs secured $2,500,000 in federal funds in four
vears. McClees assisted the Chairman of the Board in selection
of emerging businegses to receive funding from various funds
within TDA.

WACKENEUT CORRECTIONS CORPORATION

In 1994, McClezs assisted in the drafting of legislation to
allow private pay prisons to operate in NC for the first time,
as this was a new idea for NC. The legislation is contained in
N.C.G.S8. §148-37. McClees helped the client in the bid process
to select the initial two {2} sites at which private pay prisons
were filrst built in North Carolina.

FISHERTES DEVELOPMENT POUNDATION OF NC, INC.

Jogeph D. McClees ig the founder and developer of the Fisheries
Development Foundation of North Carolina, Inc. {(hereinafter
FDF). This is a North Carolina not-for-profit corporation
incorporated in 1989, $. Henri McClees obtained a permanent
Recognition of Tax Exempt Status for the organization in 1994.

FDF has trained unemployed and underemployed fishermen in
mariculture techniques. Many fishing families have learned
gkills to continue in their traditional coastal lifestyles
through the work and training offered through FDF.

For example, fishermen have learned to “plant” oysters and clams
on leased bottom land and cultivate these shellfish as crops.
The training allows them to transition from “hunter/gatherers”
to “farmers of the sea”.

Joe MceClees and Henri McClees donate their time and resocurces to
FD?P.
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FUR MURE INFORMATI.N:

For a list of clients for which Jogeph D. McClees and 8. Henri
McCleeg are or have been registered as lobbyists in the NC
General Assembly, visit the NC Department of the Secretary of
State at the following website:
http://www.secretary.state.nc.us/lobbyists/LSearch. aspx.

For more information, please vigit the webgite of McClees
Consulting, Inc. at www.mccleesconsulting.com.

McClees Consulting, Inc,

PO Box 430

Oriental, NC 28571

Office (252) 249-1097

Fax {252) 249-327%

Joe McClees mobile {(252) 671-1885
Henri McClees mobile {252) 671-1559
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MCCLEES CONSULTING, INC.
Joseph Daniels McClees

POSY OFFICE BOX 430
QRIENTAL, NORTH CARQLINA
285710430

TELEPHONE

{252} 2484097

TELECOPIER

{252) 248.3275

jam@@mctizesconsulling.oom

wwav.meciaesconsuiting.com

Jogeph Daniels McClees

Professional

1887 to presgent:

Pregident & CEO of MceClees Consulting, Inc., providing
business consulting, econcmic development, and lobbying
services o ¢liengs in North Carclina, Scuth Carclina,
Tennessgee, Virginia, other states, and Washington, D.{.;

McClees Consulting, Inc. cffers state & federal lobbying
services; creates trade groups to enhance legislative &
business agendas of specific business interests; provides
iobbying & political congulting for municipal & county isgsues.

For list of clients, see www.mccleesconsulbing.com.

Member of the NC Profesgicnal Lobbyists Agsociation, Inc.

7/1/19%88: 8. Henri McClees, Attorney at Law, jcined the
lobbying and consulting firm.

1886 ~ 1987

Executive Dirsctor of the NC Fisheries Asscociation, Inc., a
commercial fishing and seafcod dealer trade association in
North Carciina. This position included lobbying, fund
raising, and management of the Association.

1876 - 198%

Employed by State of NC in variocus positions, including
Coastal Ambasgadory; Special Assistant to the Secretary of
Natural Rescurces & Community Development; and Econcmic
Develcopment Officer for the KRC Division of Marine Fisheries.
The positions cf Coastal Ambassador and Special Assistant to
the Secretaryy incliuded the handling of pelitically sensitive
projects for the Secretary.

As Economic Development Officer in the NC Division of Marine
Fisheries, undertook & completed the first economic survey of
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the commercial fishing industry in NC; c¢reated sconomic
development shop with the Division to promote the NC
commercial seafood industry; promoted & facilitated
construction & development of 34 seafood processing operations
in coastal NC employing hundreds of local citizens; and,
developed new markets for seafood products nationally &
internationally.

1567 ~ 1876

Employed as teachey and administrator in NC public schools,
employed ag teacher in private school in Richmond, Virginia;
self-employed as farmer in Oriental, NC; and, self-employed as
small business owner in NC.

Educational

Educated in the NC public schools; 1967 Bachelor of Arts
degree from Atlantic Chrigtian College, Wilson, NC, now Barton
College; graduate courses at Eagt Carolina University,
Greenville, NC.

Personal
Born in Oriental, NC on February 12, 1945.

1980 to present: Married to Susan Henri McCleeg, formerly
Johnson, of Greenville, NC, &, Henri McClees ig a licensed
attorney, now employved with McClees Consulting, In¢. From
1879 to 1998, she was engaged in the private practice of law
in New Bern, NC.

Religious and civic affiliations

Religious: All Saints Anglican Church; Christian evangelistic
short-term missions to Philippine Islands, India, Singapore,
Malaysia, Kenya, Uganda, & other nations; assists
missionaries, pastors, & laypersons in third world countries
through McCleeg Evangelistic Association, Inc.

Civic

Formed and maintains the NC Fisheries Development Foundation,
Inc., a 501{c¢) (3} non-profit organization working since 1989
to help unemploved and underemployed commercial fishermen
Obtain job training and startup aide to build careers in
mariculture.

Hobbies
Wing shooting, hunting; farming, with emphasis on habitat
restoration; beekeeper; gmall orchard pecan grower.
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SUSAN HENRI MCCLEES
ATTORNEY AND COUNSELLOR AT LAW

POST OFFICE BOX 430
ORIENTAL, NORTH CAROLINA
28571-0430

TELEPHONE

{252) 24916897

TELECOPIER

(252) 243-3275

henri@mesioasconsuiting.com

CURRICULUM VITARE

PROFESSTONAL

July 1, 1998 to present: Vice President of McClees Consulting,
Inc. This lobbying and consulting work includes serving clients
as a registered lobbyist in the NC General Assembly and lobbying
for clients before counties and municipalities on local issues.

Lobbying includes advocacy for client issues in the NC General
Assembly.

Serve as attorney for the NC Pumper Group, NC Portable Tolilet
Group, and NC Sporting Dog Association, Inc., all of which are
clients of McClees Consulting, Inc. This representation includes
work with local boards, county commissions, and state agencies
regarding regulatory issues affecting our clients.

After more than twenty {20) vears of litigation work, I stopped
accepting new litigation clients on July 1, 1998. I phased out my
trial practice, and completed all pending work by 2000.

Engaged in the general private practice of law from 1879 to 1998,
with offices in New Bern and Oriental, NC.

Admitted to practice before the United States District Court,
Hastern District of North Carolina.

Served as an Assistant District Attorney for the Third
Judicial District of NC, comprising Pitt, Craven, Pamlico, and
Carteret counties, from 1977 to 1979.

Admitted to the practice of law and continuougly licensed in North
Carclina since 1977.

Received degree of Juris Doctor from the University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill in 1977.

Received degree of Bachelor of Science degree with major in
English within the School of BEducation from University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill in 1%71.

1
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Inducted in Phi Beta Kappa in 1971, NC Alpha Chapter at the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill.

Member of the following: NC State Bar; NC Profegsional Lobbyists
Association, NC Bar Assoclation, NC Association of Women
Attorneys.

Served on Nominations Committee of the NC Association of Women
Attorneys.

Served as Secretary of the Craven County Bar Asscclation.

Degcription of practice: Legal practice included, but was not
limited to, c¢ivil and criminal state court litigation, including
Superior & District Court criminal trials.

General practice included contracts, personal injury, wills,
egtates, and other civil matters.

Litigation clients up to July 1, 1998 included private clients in
civil and criminal matters together with contract representation
of the New Bern Child Support Enforcement Office, the Pamlico
Child Support Enforcement Office, and the Carteret County Child
Support Enforcement Office.

Civil litigation included environmental litigation on behalf of
the NC Coastal Pederation, Inc., an environmental advocacy group
and the NC Fisheries Association, Inc., & trade group for
commercial seafood dealers.

In conjunction with these two groups, Joe McClees and Henri
McClees (then Johmson) formulated strategy and coordinated
combined efforts of several environmental groups and commercial
fishing interests to defeat proposed destruction of peat bogs in
Hyde County, NC and prevail in several other protracted
environmental disputes. T coordinated efforts of several law
firms contributing pro bono representation to various ongoing
regulatory and litigation efforts affecting coastal environment.

CIVIC ACTIVITIES AND PRE-LEGAL EMPLOYMENT

Named an Outstanding Young Woman of America in 1979 and 1980.

Sexrved as public relations assistant for the National

Symphony Orchestra in Washington, D.C. in 1972-1973;

Acting Public Relations Director in 1973; 1973-1975, served as
Director of Public Relations for the North Carolina Symphony.

Served as member of Board of Directors of the New Bern
Chambexr Mugic Society of New Bern, Inc. from 1584 to 1985.

Served as a member Of Board of Directors of Hospice of
2
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLI NA
COUNTY OF CAMDEN
CONTRACT AND AGREENMENT
FOR SERVI CES BY
| NDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
THI'S CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT for services by an independent
contractor (herein referred to as the "Contract") is nade and
entered into this sixth day of January, 2014, by and between
CAVMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA (herein "Cient") and McCLEES
CONSULTI NG, INC., of Pamlico County, NC (herein "Consultant").

BACKGROUND

Client is a duly organized county of the State of North
Carolina, and having as its principal address: 330 East Hi ghway
158, PO Box 190, Canmden, NC 27921

Consultant is a corporation, incorporated and operating
under the laws of North Carolina, and having as its principal
address: 45 Wiite Farm Road, PO Box 430, Oiental, NC 28571.

Client is in need of the expertise and services of
Consultant to | obby on behalf of Cient. Consultant has
experience in |l obbying, is famliar with the goals of Cient, is
famliar with coastal and eastern North Carolina issues, and has
skills, know edge, abilities, and experience to benefit Cient.

The parties desire to enter into this | obbying agreenent.
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THEREFORE, in consideration of the prem ses and of the
agreenents, stipulations, and covenants herein contained, and
for other good and val uabl e consi deration, receipt of which is
her eby acknow edged, the parties agree as foll ows:

1. Consul tati on

(a) dient hereby engages Consultant to render
| obbyi ng services and Consul tant agrees to provide such services
upon the ternms and conditions of this Contract.

(b) Consultant is being retained because of the
personal skill, expertise, and experience of Joseph D. M ees.
Al services to be perfornmed under this Contract shall be
performed personally by Joseph D. McClees with the assistance of
S. Henri MCl ees, Attorney at Law, unless Client gives its prior
witten consent to another arrangenent.

(c) Consultant shall report to Garry Meiggs, Chairnman
of the Board of Canden County Conm ssioners, and M chael
Renshaw, Canden County Manager

2. Term The termof the Contract shall begin on the
si xth day of January, 2014 and continue through Decenber 31,
2014.

3. Consul ting Fees. Cient shall pay to Consultant fees

for services as foll ows:
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(a) The sum of Fifteen Thousand Dol |l ars ($15, 000. 00)
for | obbying services, payable in three equal paynents of Five
Thousand Dol | ars ($5, 000. 00) per paynent, payable on or before
the seventh day of January, February, and March, 2014; and,
further,

(b) dient shall pay for |obbyists and principal 2014
registration fees due to the State of North Carolina, totaling
Four Hundred Fifty Dollars ($450.00), payable at the tinme of the
execution of this Contract and in any event before January 10,
2014; and, further,

(c) Reinbursenment of travel expenses for approved out
of state travel, when incurred upon the specific direction of
the dient, including mleage and rei nbursenent for actual
expenses for |odging, food, and taxis, together with other
approved transportation, if any.

(d) The parties agree there will be no rei nbursenent
for in-state travel or other in-state expenses except as set
forth herein or in-state expenses directed by dient to be spent
for specific purposes agreed upon in advance of any such
expendi t ure.

4. Independent Contractor. The parties acknow edge and

agree the relationship of Consultant with Cient is that of
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i ndependent contractor. Except as provided in this Contract,
neither party shall exercise any control over the activities and
operations of the other. Neither Cient nor Consultant is
liable or responsible for the acts, om ssions, or defaults of
the other in any manner. Consultant, as well as any enpl oyees
or independent contractors of Consultant, shall not be
consi dered, under the provisions of this Contract or otherw se,
to be enployees of Cient for any purpose what soever.

5. Conpliance with North Carolina | obbying and ethics |aws.
The parties hereto agree to conply with all reporting, |obbying,
and ethics requirenments set forth in Chapter 120C “Lobbying” and
Chapter 138A “State Government Ethics Act” of the NC Gener al
Statutes, specifically including NCGS §120C et seq. and 8138A-1
et seq. Further, the parties hereto agree to the foll ow ng:

(a) Consultant will prepare all |obbying
aut hori zations, registrations, expense reports, and submt
princi pal authorizations and expense reports to Cient for
execution and tinmely subm ssion to the NC Secretary of State
Lobbyi ng Conpl i ance Divi sion.
(b) Cdient will review, sign, and submit on a tinely

basis all required | obbyi ng authorizati ons and expense reports.



23

6. Applicable Law. The laws of North Carolina shall govern

this Contract.

7. Entire Agreenent; Anendnent. This Contract supersedes

all prior understandi ngs and agreenents and i nformal working
arrangenments between the parties, witten and oral. This
Contract nmay not be anended orally, but only by a witing duly
executed by both parties.

I N WTNESS WHERECF, the parties have executed this Contract

the day and year first witten above.

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLI NA

By
Garry Meiggs
Chai rman, Canden County Conmm ssioners

This contract has been preaudited in the nmanner required by the
Local Governnent Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Canden Fi nance O ficer: Dat e:

McCLEES CONSULTI NG, | NC.

By
Joseph D. Mcd ees, President

Attest:

S. Henri M ees, Secretary
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLI NA
COUNTY OF CAMDEN

I, , a Notary Public in
and for the said County and State, do hereby certify that Garry
Mei ggs, who is personally known to ne, appeared before ne as a
duly aut horized agent of Canden County, NC on this date and
acknow edged the due execution of the foregoing contract.

W TNESS ny hand and notarial seal this the _ day of
, 2013.

Notary Public

My commi ssi on expires:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLI NA
COUNTY OF PAM.I CO

I, :
a Notary Public in and for the said County and State, do hereby
certify that JOSEPH D. McCLEES, President and S. HENRI MCCLEES,
Secretary of McCl ees Consulting, Inc., respectively, both known
to me, each appeared before ne this date and acknow edged the
due execution of the foregoing contract.

W TNESS ny hand and notarial seal this the day of
, 2013.

Not ary Public

My conmi ssion expires:
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MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners gY];u ckwall
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
Item Number: 4.A
VOTE:
New Business S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLai
Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 R. Kr;inai;nk
Attachments: 1 (96 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Finance Officer ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Annual Audit Presentation
SUMMARY:

The annual Audit was administered and passed by Certified Public
Accounting Firm Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.

Representatives of the aforementioned firm will give a brief overview
of the County’s audit.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the audit as presented.
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Camden County, North
Carolina, as of and for the year then ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Camden County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of Camden County ABC Board. Those
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Camden County ABC Board
is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of Camden
County ABC Board were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing
Standards.

Members
American Institute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs - AICPA Division of Firms
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

[n our opinions, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Camden County, North Carolina as of June 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund, School Capital Fund, and Special Capital Fund
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Other Pastemployment Benefits’ Schedules
of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Camden County, North
Carolina. The combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other
schedules as well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State
Awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other
schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our
audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors,
the combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other
schedules, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 10, 2013 on our consideration of Camden County’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of the report
1s to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering
Camden County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Qromnpoon R, Qe ot ,Oda s> *Ca., 4.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A
Wilmington, North Carolina
October 10, 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Camden County, we offer readers of the Camden County’s (the "County") financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information
that we have furnished in the County’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

On the government-wide statements, the assets of the County's governmental activities exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $8,237,106 (net position). The County's net assets
are impacted considerably by qualified zone academy bonds (QZAB) that the County has issued on behalf of the
Camden County Board of Education. The assets are not reflected in the County's financial statements, but the full
amount of the long-term debt related to school construction of $14,497,592 is reflected in the County's financial
statements.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$11,359,092, a decrease of $84.387 in comparison with the prior year. School construction and other capital
expenditures negatively impacted this decrease. Approximately $4,492.878 remains as unassigned fund balance.

At the end of the fiscal year, fund balance (before any reserves or designations) for the General Fund was
$6.336,414, or 52% total General Fund expenditures for the current fiscal year.

The County's total debt decreased during the fiscal year by $2,016.463 from normal principal payments made
timely AARA funding of the R/O Upgrade.

Camden County's North Carolina Municipal Council rating was a 77 as of July 2008.

On June 17, 2013 the Camden County Board of Commissioners adopted the Camden County Capital Improvement
Plan for fiscal years 2013/2014 thru 2017/2018.

New residential unit construction was 32 units this year. Total new construction increased by $3,839,000 for this
fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Camden County’s basic financial statements.
The County’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements
present two different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that
will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the Camden County.
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Notes to the

Financial Statements

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund
Financial Financial
Statements Statements
Summary > Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They

provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts
of the County’s government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are
four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the government fund statements; 2) the budgetary comparison

statements; 3) the Proprietary governmental funds statements; 4) the agency fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail
some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show
details about the County's major and non-major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column
on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this
part of the statements.

Following the Notes is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding information about the

County's Other Post Employment Benefit Plan.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements
provide short and long-term information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how they have changed. Net position is
the difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring
net position is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type
activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as
general administration, taxation and records, human services, education, and public safety. Property taxes, other
taxes, and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities, The business-type activities are those where
services are provided and customers are charged for those services. The final category is the component units. The
Camden ABC Board is such a unit.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits | and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant
activities. A tfund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Camden County, like all other governmental entities in North
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal
requirements, such as the North Carolina General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of the
County can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County's basic services are accounted for in the
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what
monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported
using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial focus. As a
result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County’s programs. The relationship
between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.
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The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a
legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County,
and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the
County to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement
provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether
or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and
classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changed in Fund Balance. The statement shows
four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the Board; 2) the final budget as amended by the Board; 3) the
actual resources. charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or
variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds - The County has one kind of proprietary fund. This fund is used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds
to account for the South Camden Water & Sewer District operations. This fund is the same as those functions
shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

Agency and Trust Funds - Agency funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The County has four agency funds. These are the funds for Social Services clients, School Tax Fund,
Motor Vehicle Tax Fund, and the Nancy M. and H. Clay Ferebee I1l Camden County Courthouse Trust.

Notes 1o the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain
required supplementary information concerning Camden County's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to it's employees.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Camden County’s Net Assets

Figure 2
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets § 12,390,360 $12,247.848 § 843,660 $ 1,249,131 $13,234,020 $13,496,979
restricted Cash = " - - - -
Capital assets 13,417,376 12,412,466 21,608,189 20,591,868 35,025,565 33,004,334
Total assets 25,807,736 24,660,314 22451849 21,840,999 48,259,585 46,501,313

Long-term liabilities outstanding 15,410,839 17,742,066 2,816,305 3,898,883 18,227,144 21,640,949

Other liabilities 2,145,759 796,729 612,341 267,575 2,758,100 1,064,304
Deferred inflows of resources 14,032 - - - 14,032 -
Total liabilities 17,570,630 18,538,795 3,428,646 4,166,458  20,999.276 22,705,253
Net assets:
Net investment
in capital assets 10,172,901 - 18,572,052 16,692,985 28,744,953 16,692,985
Restricted 5.860,265 903.387 - - 5,860,265 903,387
Unrestricted (7,796,060) 5,218,132 451,151 981,556  (7,344,909) 6,199,688
Total net position $§ 8237.106 $ 6,121.519 §19,023,203 $17.674,541 $27.260,309 $23,796,060

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The
assets of the County exceeded liabilities by $27,260,309 as of June 30, 2013. Net position is reported ir: three net
categories: net investment in capital assets of $28,744,953 restricted assets of $5.860,265 and unrestricted net
position $(7,344,909). The amount net investment in capital assets category is defined as the County's investment in
County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and
infrastructure) less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The County uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources
needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. At June 30. 2013, the increase in this category of net position is due to repayment of long-term debt and
the purchase of capital assets from funds provided by grants. The second category of net position is restricted net
position.
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The final category of net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2013, the total unrestricted net deficit of $7,344,909 is
primarily attributable to loans and qualified zone academy bonds that were issued on behalf of he school system. As
with many counties in the State of North Carolina, the County's deficit in unrestricted net position is due primarily to
the portion of the County's outstanding debt incurred for the Camden County Board of Education (the school
system). Under North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the school system.
The County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the school system capital funding by using a mixture
of County funds, loans, and qualified zone academy bonds. The assets are funded by the County; however, they are
utilized by the school system. Since the County, as the issuing government, acquires no capital assets, the County
has incurred a liability without a corresponding increase in assets. At the end of the fiscal year, approximately $16
million of the outstanding debt on the County's financial statements was related to assets included in the school
system's financial statements. The school debt is collateralized by a deed of trust granting, among other things, a
first lien of record on the Project, including the land constituting a part of the Project, all other buildings. structures,
improvement and fixtures thereon. and all appurtenances thereto of any nature whatsoever, excluding mobile or
modular classrooms located on the site at any time, subject to permitted encumbrances. Accordingly, the County
makes installment payments under the Installment Financing Agreement for payment of the debt. The County's
obligation to make payments under the Installment Financing Agreement constitutes a pledge of the County's faith
and credit within the meaning of any constitutional provision. Principal and interest requirements will be provided
by an appropriation in the year in which they become due.

The impact of the inclusion of the school system debt without the corresponding assets was offset by the following
positive operational initiatives and results:

® Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes (excluding motor vehicles) by maintaining a collection
percentage of 96.28%.
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Camden County
Changes in Net Position
Figure 3
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 1.004.747 § 514864 § 1.054985 § 1101220 $ 2059732 § 1.616.084
Operating grants and contributions 1.607.352 1.447.574 - - 1.607.352 1.447.574
Capital grants and contributions 943911 200.000 1.628.978 447.410 2,572,889 647,410
General revenues:
Property taxes 7.559.290 5.808.663 - - 7.556.200 5.808.663
Other taxes 3.001.081 4.081.788 - - 3,001.081 4,081,788
Investment earmings 110.160 113.685 4.226 7.681 114.386 121.366
Other - 31,668 - 31,668
Total revenues 14.226.541 12.198.242 2.688.189 1,356,311 16,914,730 13.754,553
Expenses:
General government 1.986.856 3.076.952 - - 1.986.856 3.076.952
Public Safety 3.330.940 3.441.638 - - 3,530,940 3.441,638
Economic and physical development 817.336 840.349 - - 817.336 840.349
Human services 1.374.889 663.828 - - 1,374,889 663.828
Cultural and recreation 1.289.955 1.388.883 - - 1.289.955 1,388,883
Education 1,949,000 1.949.000 - - 1.949.000 1.949.000
Interest on long-term debt 473,369 479.899 - - 473.569 479,899
Environmental protection 543.030 576.386 - - 543.030 576,386
Warer - - 1.484.906 1.393.598 1.484.906 1,393,598
Total expenses 11,963,375 12.416.935 1,484,906 1,393,598 13,450.481 13.810,533
Increase (decrease) in net position before
transfers and special items 2.260.966 (218.693) 1.203.283 162,713 3.464.249 (55.980)
Transfers (145.379) (565.454) 145.379 565,454 - -
Increase (decrease) in net position 2.115.587 (784.147) 1.348.662 728.167 3.464.249 (55.980)
Net position. July 1 6.121.519 6.905.666  17.674.541 16.946,374 23,796,060  23,852.040
Net position, June 30 $ 8.237.106  $ 6.121.519 §$ 19023203 § 17,674,541 $ 27.260.309 $ 23,796,060

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the County's net position by $2.115,587.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the County's net position by $1,348.662.
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Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Camden County's
financing requirements. Specifically. fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund was $4,492,878 while total fund balance reached $6,336,414. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 37 percent of total General Fund expenditures while total
fund balance is 52%.

At June 30, 2013, the governmental funds of the County reported a combined fund balance of $11,359.092.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into
one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget
ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from
external sources. such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to
maintain services. The total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues by $1,895,742 (16% of the
original budget). None of the appropriated Fund Balance was needed to offset the expenditures.

Proprietaf}' Funds: The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide statements but in more detail. The total increase in net position was $1,348,662. The primary factors affecting
the increase was the capital grants received in the amount of $1,628.978.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Camden County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of June 30, 2013. totals $35,025,565 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, buildings,
automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and water and sewer lines.

Major capital assets transactions during the year include:
e Construction and equipment in the water district.
e Construction and equipment in the governmental funds.
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Camden County’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Figure 4
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Land $ 4785809 $ 4785809 $ 718380 $ 718380 § 5,504,189 $ 5,504,189
Buildings 4,118,643 3,321,539 - - 4,118,643 3,321,539
Furniture, fixtures and 1,111,518 1,165,793 67,400 74,874 1,178,918 1,240,667
equipment, vehicles

Other improvements 2,263,565 2,096.671 20,059,101  17.899.874 22,324,666 19,996,545
Construction in Progress 1,135,841 1,042,654 763,308 1,898,740 1,899,149 2,941,394
Total § 13417376 $12,412.466 $21.608,189 $20,591,868 $35,025,565 $33,004,334

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note I1l(a)5 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2013, the South Camden Water & Sewer District had total bonded debt
outstanding of $1,394.490. Other outstanding loans include: Drinking Water State Revolving Loan, $620,996; State
Clean Water Bond Loan, $809,540. Camden County has $14.497.592 in outstanding debt that is related to the
capital improvement and additional schools built on behalf of the Camden County School Board. The County has
several installment notes outstanding as well. A summary of total long-term debt as of June 30, 2013 is shown
below:

Revenue Bonds, Installment Notes Payable, and Qualified Zone Academy Bonds

Camden County's Outstanding Debt

Figure §
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General Obligation Debt b - 8 - § 3,036,137 $ 3,898,883 §$ 3,036,137 $ 3,898,883
Installment Purchases 16,588,348 17,742,066 - - 16,588.348 17,742,666
Total $ 16,588,348 $17,742,066 $ 3,036,137 $ 3,898,883 $19,624,485 $21,640,949

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal debt
margin for the County is $77.428.384. Additional information regarding the County's long-term debt can be found
in Note 6 of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate in the County was at 7.4% on June 30, 2013, compared with a federal rates of 8.2%
and a State rate of 9.9%. The rate for Camden County was 8.5% at the end of the prior fiscal year.

© New residential unit construction was 32 units this year. Total new construction increased by $3.839,000 for
this fiscal year.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014

Governmental Activities: The County has approved a $11,277.990 general budget for the fiscal year 2014. This will
be accomplished by reductions in spending in most departments due to a loss of revenue of local option sales tax.

Budgeted expenditures for education in the General Fund are expected to remain at $1,449,000 coming from
General Fund and $300.000 from the School Fund. Capital outlay for the schools through the General Fund is
budgeted at $200.000 and the debt service related to the school construction and renovation are budgeted at
$1.251,414 and will be funded from the School Capital Reserve Fund which gets its revenue from a portion of the
state sales tax.

It has become apparent the next few years may be a most challenging time with little or no growth in revenues due to
potential severe nature of the economic downturn. Therefore, during this period the County will strive to maintain
the current level of services to the citizens of the County with as little impact on the fund balance as possible. In
recent years the County has made great strides in improving its financial positions and it is imperative to try to
preserve this if at all possible. However, it is anticipated it may be necessary to use a portion of the unrestricted
fund balance to balance the general fund budget over the remainder of the current fiscal year and the next year.
Capital projects which are not funded by grants or special funding will most likely be delayed until the
regional/national economy have recovered and the revenue forecast has improved. Fortunately, even with the
looming recession the County has been the subject of several significant economic development project inquiries
which would most certainly grow the tax base over the next few years.

Business-type Activities

The County has only budgeted for some improvements to the County Sewer System.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances for those with an interest in this area.
Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be
directed to the Finance Officer, Camden County, 330 East Hwy. 158, P.O. Box 190, Camden, NC 27921. You can
also call 1-252-338-1919 for more information.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $
Taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest on taxes receivable
Capital assets:
Land, non-depreciable
improvements, and construction in
progress
Other capital assets, net of
depreciation
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences payable
Other postemployment benefits
Current-portion of long-term liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Stabilization by State Statute

Register of Deeds

Fire Protection

School Capital

Capital Improvement

Unrestricted

Total net position $

46

Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

Exhibit 1

June 30, 2013
Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-type Camden County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board

10,311,504 §$ 435,005 $ 10,746,509 $ 77,738
514,778 - 514,778 -
1,482,508 408,655 1,891,163 -
- - - 127,335
- - - 6,835
81,570 - 81,570 .
5,921,649 1,481,688 7,403,337 25,405
7,495,727 20,126,501 27,622,228 70,085
25,807,736 22,451,849 48,259,585 307,398
420,888 298,966 719,854 54,344
99,713 22,500 122,213 =
206,993 31,932 238,925 -
240,656 39,111 279,767 -
1,177,509 219,832 1,397,341 -
15,410,839 2,816,305 18,227,144 -
17,556,598 3,428,646 20,985,244 54,344

14,032 14,032

14,032 - 14,032
10,172,901 18,572,052 28,744,953 95,491
1,912,543 - 1,912,543 -
8,677 - 8,677 -
582,842 - 582,842 -
3,356,203 - 3,356,203 -
- - - 6,265
(7,796,060) 451,151 (7,344,909) 151,298
8,237,106 $ 19,023,203 $ 27,260,309 $ 253,054

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues
Operating Grants Capital Grants
Charges for and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 1,986,856 $ 361,563 $ 6,275 % -
Public safety 3,530,940 619,940 142,480 =
Cultural and recreation 1,289,955 19,675 - =
Economic and physical development 817,336 - 317,571 943,911
Human services 1,374,889 - 960,086 -
Education 1,949,000 - 138,720 -
Environmental protection 543,030 3,569 42,220 -
Interest on long-term debt 473,569 - - g
Total governmental activities 11,965,575 1,004,747 1,607,352 943,911
Business-type activities:
Water 1,484,906 1,054,985 - 1,628,978
Total business-type activities 1,484,906 1,054,985 - 1,628,978
$ 13,450,481 $ 2,059,732 $ 1,607,352 % 2,572,889
Component unit:
ABC Board $ 1,065,975 $ 1,068,010 $ - 3 E
Total component unit $ 1,065,975 $ 1,068,010 $ -3 »

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings, unrestricted
Miscellaneous, unrestricted
Transfers
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers
Change in net position

Net position-beginning
Net position-ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-type Camden County
Activities Activities Total ABC Board
$ (1,619,018) $ - $ (1,619,018)
(2,768,520} - (2,768,520)
(1,270,280} - (1,270,280)
444,146 - 444,146
(414,803) - (414,803)
(1,810,280) - (1,810,280)
(497,241) - (497,241)
(473,569) - (473,569)
(8,409,565) - (8,409,565)
- 1,199,057 1,199,057
- 1,199,057 1,199,057
3 (8,409,565) $ 1,199,057 § (7,210,508)
3 2,035
3 2,035
7,559,290 - 7,559,290 -
1,036,294 - 1,036,294 -
1,964,787 - 1,964,787 -
110,160 4,226 114,386 435
(145,379) 145,379 - -
10,525,152 149,605 10,674,757 435
2,115,587 1,348,662 3,464,249 2,470
6,121,519 17,674,541 23,796,060 250,584
$ 8,237,106 $ 19,023,203 $ 27,260,309 $ 253,054

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3
Camden County, North Carolina
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2013
Major NonMaj
ECO Park Other Total
School Capital  Special Capital Capital Project  Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash, including time deposits $ 4,894,429 § 487,267 § 2868936 $ - $ 2,060,872 10,311,504
Accounts receivable, net 990,637 56,859 - 925,000 24,790 1,997,286
Due from other funds 1,355,035 - . - - 1,355,035
Total assets $ 7,240,101 § 544126 § 2868936 % 925,000 § 2,085,662 13,663,825
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 387,519 20,294 13,075 420,888
Due to other funds - - 1,003,211 351,824 1,355,035
Unearned revenue - - * - a
Total liabilities 387,519 - 1,023,505 364,899 1,775,923
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes receivable 502,136 - - 12,642 514,778
Prepaid taxes 14,032 - - - - 14,032
Total deferred inflows of resources 516,168 - - 12,642 528,810
Fund balances:
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute 1,843,536 56,859 - 12,148 1,912,543
Register of Deeds - - - - 8,677 8,677
Fire Protection - - - - 582,842 582,842
School Capital - 487,267 2,868,936 - 3,356,203
Committed
Capital Reserve - - - -
Tax Revaluation - - - 569,546 569,546
Economic Development - (98,505) 534,908 436,403
Unassigned 4,492,878 - - - - 4,492,878
Total fund balances 6,336,414 544,126 2,868,936 (98,505) 1,708,121 11,359,092
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 7,240,101 $ 544,126 $ 2,868,936 $ 925,000 § 2,085,662
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit 1} are different because:
Liabilities for earned revenues considred deferred inflows of resources in fund statements. 514,778
Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are not accrued as income in the funds, 81,570
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 13,417,376
Long-term debt included as net position below (includes the addition of long-term debt and principal payments during the year.) 17,135,710)
Net position of governmental activities 8,237,106

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4
Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
Major Non Major
ECO Park Other Total
School Capital  Special Capital  Capital Project Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes § 6,868,293 § - 3 . ¥ . § 587,184 § 7455477
Other taxes and licenses 2,202,047 342,043 267,888 - 154,036 2966014
Unrestricted intergovernmental 62,534 - - - - 62,534
Restricted intergovernmental 1,131,932 138,720 - 943911 336,800 2,551,363
Local Contributions - - - - - -
Permits and fees 754,532 - - - 7,531 762,063
Sales and services 90,210 5 - - 19,287 109,497
Investment earnings 54,267 10,422 27,359 - 18,112 110,160
Miscellaneous 983,913 - - - 11,838 110,751
Total revenues 11,262,728 491,185 295,247 943911 1,134,788 14,127,859
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,774,914 - 463,507 - 4,820 2,243,241
Public safety 3,091.812 - - - 220,703 3,312,515
Environmental protection 502,552 - - - 23,218 525,770
Economic and physical development 637,731 - - 1,042,416 187,699 1,867,846
Culture and recreation 1,022,902 - - - 192,771 1,215,673
Human services 1,318,208 - # - - 1,318,208
Intergovernmental:
Education 1,649,000 . - - 300,000 1,949,000
Debt service:
Principal 1,656,609 - - . 69,109 1,725,718
Interest 438,008 - - . 42,868 480,896
Total expenditures 12,091,736 . 463,507 1,042,416 1,041,208 14,638,867
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (B29,008) 491,185 (168,260] (98,505) 93,580 (511,008)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds of long-term debt 572.000 - . - - 572,000
Transfers to other funds (197,045) (1,251,414) - - - (1,448,459)
Transfers from other funds 1,251,414 - - - 51,666 1,303,080
Total other financing sources and uses 1,626,369 (1.251,414) - - 51,666 426,621
Net change in fund balance 797,361 (760,229) {168,260) (98,505) 145,246 (84,387)
Fund balances-beginning 5,539,053 1,304,355 3,037,196 - 1,562,875 11,443,479
Fund balances-ending 3 6,336,414 § 544,126 % 2868936 % (98,505} $ 1,708,121 § 11,359,092

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Camden County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

different because:

Net changes in fund balance - total government funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as

expenditures. However, in the Staternent of Activities the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlays increases exceeded
the book value of capital outlay decreases in fiscal year.

Cost of asset disposed of during the year

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as

revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is
the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-

term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do
not require the use of current finaucial resources and

therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Total changes in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$  (84387)

1,010,042

(5,132)

103,813

1,153,718

(62,467)

$ 2,115,587

$ 2,115,587
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Camden County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Exhibit 5

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

Permits and fees
Sales and services
Local contributions
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Human Services
Cultural and recreational

Intergovernmental:
Education

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses)
Proceeds from installment purchases
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Fund Balance Appropriated

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

General Fund

Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
6,828,246 § 6,787,246 § 6,868,293 § 81,047
1,942,100 1,895,600 2,202,047 306,447
53,600 65,600 62,534 (3,066)
1,778,341 1,282,447 1,131,932 (150,515)
647,941 685,741 754,532 68,791
41,000 74,476 90,210 15,734
30,000 30,200 54,267 24,067
72,000 74,000 98,913 24,913
11,393,228 10,895,310 11,262,728 367,418
2,156,806 2,212,830 1,774,914 437916
3,370,237 3,158,557 3,091,812 66,745
573,145 577,534 502,552 74,982
684,440 740,813 637,731 103,082
1,577,331 1,585,531 1,318,208 267,323
368,717 1,287,343 1,022,902 264,441
1,649,000 1,649,000 1,649,000
1,656,009 1,656,609 1,656,609 -
438,008 438,008 438,008 -
12,473,693 13,306,225 12,091,736 1,214,489
(1,080,465) (2,410,915) (829,008) 1,581,907
- 572,000 572,000
1,251,414 1,251,414 1,251,414
(272,045) (197,045) (197,045) -
101,096 784,546 - (784,546)
1,080,465 2,410,915 1,626,369 (784.546)
$ - 797.361 § 797,361
5,539,053
§__6336,414_

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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School Capital Reserve Fund

Special Capital Reserve Fund

Variance Variance
With Final With Final
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
5 - - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $ -
300,000 300,000 342,043 42,043 200,000 200,000 267,888 67,888
200,000 200,000 138,720 (61,280) - -
10,000 10,000 10,422 422 20,000 20,000 27,359 7,359
510,000 510,000 491,185 (18,815) 220,000 220,000 295,247 75,247
# - = 615,000 615,000 463,507 151,493
: - - 615,000 615,000 463,507 151,493
510,000 510,000 491,185 (18,815) (395,000) (395,000) (168,260) 226,740
(1,511,414) (1,511,414) (1,251,414) (260,000) - 2 z
1,001,414 1,001,414 - (1,001,414) 395,000 395,000 (395,000)
(510,000) (510,000) (1,251,414) (741,414) 395,000 395,000 (395,000)
$ - - (760,229) $  (760,229) § - - (168,260) $__ (168,260)
1,304,355 3,037,196
$ 544,126 $ 2,868,936

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Camden County, North Carolina Exhibit 6
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2013

Major
Water
and
Sewer
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 435,005
Grant reveivable 234,050
Accounts receivable, net 174,605
Total Current Assets 843,660
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Land and non-depreciable assets 1,481,688
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 20,126,501
Capital assets (net) 21,608,189
Total noncurrent assets 21,608,189
Total Assets 22,451,849
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities 24,633
Current portion of long-term debt 219,832
Due to other funds i
Total Current Liabilities 244,465
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences . 31,932
Accrued interest 22,500
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 274,333
Other postemployment benefits 39,111
General obligation bonds payable 2,816,305
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,184,181
Total Liabilities 3,428,646
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 18,572,052
Unrestricted 451,151
Total Net Position $§ 19,023,203

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Camden County, North Carolina Exhibit 7
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

Major
Water
Operating revenues:
Charges for Services - Water $ 914,170
Charges for Services - Sewer 71,273
Hook-up connection fees and taps 30,550
Miscellaneous 38,992
Total Operating Revenues 1,054,985
Operating expenses:
Reverse osmosis plant 317,260
Water distribution 330,430
Wastewater operations 205,816
Depreciation 484,081
Total operating expenses 1,337,587
Total Operating Income (Loss) (282,602)
Nonoperating Revenues(Expenses):
Interest income 4,226
Interest expense (147,319)
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) (143,093)
Capital Contributions 1,628,978
Transfers from other funds 145,379
Changes in net position 1,348,662
Net Position, beginning 17,674,541
Net Position, ending $ 19,023,203

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund

For The Year Ended June 30,2013

Exhibit 8

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers/others
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash Flows from (use by) capital and related
financing activities:

Capital contributions
Federal and State grants
Principal repayments on long-term debt
Proceeds of Notes Payable
Increase (decrease) in restricted payables
Decrease (increase) in grant receivable
Acquisition of capital assets
Interest income
Interest expense
Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from (used for) noncapital financing
activities:
Change in due to/froms
Transfers in/out (net)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable - trade
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable & accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation pay
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Major
Water

$ 1,022,384
(490,090)

(512,816)
19,478

1,628,978
(3,454,268)
2,591,523

274,333

214,656
(1,500,402)

4,226

(147,319)
(388,273)

145,379
145,379

(223,416)

658,421

$__435005_

$  (282,602)

484,081

(32,601)
(150,055)
655

S___19.478_
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Camden County, North Carolina Exhibit 9
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30,2013
Agency
Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,498
Liabilities and Net Position
Miscellaneous liabilities 8,498
Due to governmental units -
Total liabilities 8,498
Net Position $ 4

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Camden County and its component unit conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties established in North
Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these
financial statements present the County and its component units, legally separate entities for which the County is financially
accountable. South Camden Water and Sewer District (the District) exists to provide and maintain a water system for the
County residents within the District. The District is reported as an enterprise fund in the County's financial statements. The
Camden County ABC Board (the Board ), which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it is a separate proprietary fund of the
County (discrete presentation). The blended presentation methods presents component units as a department or unit of the
County, and offers no separate presentation as with the discrete method.

Reporting
Component Unit Method Criteria for Inclusion Separate Financial Statement
South Camden Water Blended Under State law [NCGS 162A-89], the County's None issued
and Sewer District board of commissioners also serve as the
governing board for the District
Camden County ABC Board Discrete The members of the ABC Board's governing Camden County ABC Board

board are appointed by the County. The ABC  P.0.Box 22
Board is required by State statute to distribute Camden, NC 27921
its surpluses to the General Fund of the County

B. Basis of Presentation - Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus - Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements : The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government (the County) and its component unit. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-
type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues
include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements : The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component unit. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary -
are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating items such as
investment earnings are ancillary activities.
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The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

School Capital Fund - This fund is used to account for the school needs.
Special Capital Fund - This fund is used to account for the land acquisitions.

The County reports the following major enterprise fund:

South Camden Water and Sewer District Fund: This fund is used to account for the operations of the water and sewer district
within the County.

The County reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds: Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results. Agency funds
are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains the following Agency Funds: the
Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain
individuals; the Nancy M and H. Clay Ferebee Il Fund which holds donated by Mr. and Mrs. Ferebee to be used for the
restoration of the Camden County Courthouse, the DMV tax fund, and any funds not expended are to be given to the Camden
County Board of Education.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the year on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except for agency funds which have
no measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available,

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for property taxes. Ad
valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes
receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current
year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on
registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Camden County is responsible for billing
and collecting the property taxes on all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the
County. For registered motor vehicles, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are
registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they became due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered
from March 2012 through February 2013 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Uncollected taxes that were billed
during this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilities franchise tax, collected and held by the State at year-end
on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted
and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB Statements and Interpretations
issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless
those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

D. Budgetary Data

The County's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for the
General Fund, the School Capital Reserve, Fire Districts, and Special Capital Reserve Fund, and the Enterprise Funds. All
annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Project ordinances are adopted for Capital Projects Fund and the
Enterprise Capital Projects Funds, which are consolidated with the enterprise operating fund for reporting purposes. All
budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at
the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for multi-year funds. Amendments are required for
revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations by more than $1,000. The
governing board must approve all amendments. During the year, several material amendments to the original budget were
necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim
budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

All deposits of the County and Camden County ABC Board are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured
as required by G.S. 159-31. The County and the ABC Board may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County and the ABC Board may establish time deposit
accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State Law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and
notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies;
certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust
(NCCMT).

The County and the ABC Board's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair values as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio,
an SEC registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT
Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value.
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2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County pools moneys from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income.
Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The ABC
Board considers demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less, which are not
limited as to use, to be cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

Money in the School Capital Projects Fund is classified as restricted assets because its use is restricted per North Carolina
General Statue 159-18 through 22.

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

[n accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than
motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and
interest do not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2012. As
allowed by State law, the County has established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due
date. In the County's General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

5. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This
amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

6. Inventories and Prepaid [tems

The inventories of the ABC Board are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The inventory of the ABC
Board consists of materials and supplies held for consumption or resale. The cost of the inventory carried by the ABC Board is
recorded as an expense as it is consumed or sold.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements.

7. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Minimum capitalization cost is $3,000 for all capital assets. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Camden County Board of Education properties that have not been included in the County's
capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase financing of acquisition and
construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for construction costs. Agreements between
the County and the Board of Education give the Board of Education full use of the facilities, full responsibility for maintenance
of the facilities, and provide that the County will convey title to the property back to the Board of Education, once all
restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties are
reflected as capital assets in the financial statements of the Camden County Board of Education.
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Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Years
Buildings 30
Improvements 25
Plant and Distribution 40
Furniture and equipment 10
Vehicles 5-10
Computer equipment 10

Capital assets of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Asset Class Years

Buildings 25

Furniture & Equipment 5-10
8. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflow of resources. This
separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The County does not have any items that meets this
criterion,

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position can also report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The County has only one item that meet the criterion for this category -
prepaid taxes.

8. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
type statement of net position.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as an other financing source.
9. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County, and the ABC Board, generally provides for the accumulation of up to 360 hours earned
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's government-wide and proprietary funds, and
the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as leave as
earned.

The sick leave policies of the County and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave
does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of
service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is
taken, no accrual for sick leave have been made by the County or its component unit.

10. Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Pasition

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net investment in capital assets;
restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are either a) externally imposed

by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances
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In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the
hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nondespensable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are wither (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally imposed by
creditors or imposed by law,

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute [G.S. 159-8(a)]
Restricted for School Capital- portion of fund balance that can only be used for School Capital per G.S. 159-18-22.
Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by majority vote by

quorum of Camden County’s governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). Any changes or removal of specific
purpose requires majority action by the governing body.

Committed for Tax Revaluation- portion of fund balance that can only be used for Tax Revaluation.

Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that the County intends to use for specific purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes or other funds.

Camden County has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which instructs management to conduct
the business of the County in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than 20% of budgeted
expenditures. Any portion of the general fund balance in excess of 20% of budgeted expenditures may be appropriated for
one-time expenditures and may not be used for any purpose that would obligate the County in a future budget.

The County of Camden has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources.
The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-county
funds, county funds. For purposes of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance
first, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the County.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds and net
position-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. The net adjustment of
$(3,121,986) consists of the following elements as follyws:

Description Amount

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore not
reported in the funds (total capital assets on government-wide statement in governmental

activities column) $ 18,675,742
Less accumulated depreciation (5.258,366)
Net capital assets 13,417,376

Liabilities for deferred inflows of resources reported in the fund statements but not the
government-wide 514,778

Accrued interest receivable less the amount claimed as unearned revenue in the government-
wide statements as these funds are unavailable in the fund statements
Other assets not available for current expenditures 81,570
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Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, do not require
current resources to pay and are therefore not recorded in the fund statements:

Long-term debts, including bonds and notes payable (16,588,348)
Accrued interest payable (99,713)
OPEB payable (240,656)
Compensated absences (206,993)

Total adjustment $ (3.121,986)
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The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between
net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of activities. There are several elements of that total adjustment of $2,199,974 as follows:

Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets in the
Statement of Activities § 1527257

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is recorded
on the Statement of Activities but not in the fund statements (517,215)

Cost of asset disposed of during the year (5.132)

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund statements but
again affect only the statement of net position in the government-wide statements 1,725,718

New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of funds on the fund statements; it
has no effect on the statement of activities - it affects only the government-wide statement of
net position (572,000)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in fund statements 103,813
Increase/Decrease in deferred inflows of resources- taxes receivable- at year end

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the use of current
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements. This includes
accrued interest payable, compensated absences and OPEB. (62,467)

Total adjustment § 2,199,974

[l. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A. Significant Violations of Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions
Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes
None.

B. Deficit Fund Balance or Net Position of Individual Funds

The ECO Park and Scattered Housing Capital Project Funds have deficit fund balances due to timing issues related to grant
income.
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HL

C. Gxcess of Expenditures over Appropriations
None.

Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Asseis
1. Depaosits

All of the County's and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Methoq, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities
held by the Councy's or the ABC Board's agents in these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all
uninsured deposics are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.
Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County and the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to
be held by their agent in the entities’ name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method
for non-interest bezaring deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling
Method report to tne State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer
does not confirm this information with the County or the ABC Board, or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to
measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the potential
exists for the under collareralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of
North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the
Pooling Method,

The State Treas
relies onthe S
financial institu
depositories anc
risk for deposits.

- enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions. The County
reasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any other
used by the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official
rifying that deposits are properly secured. The ABC Board has no formal policy regarding custodial credit

At june 30, 2012 the County's deposits had a carrying amount of $10,678,057 and a bank balance of $10,834,599. Of the bank
balance, $1,376,577 was covered by federal depository insurance, the remainder was covered by the pooling method.
At June 30, 2013, Camden County had $8,498 of cash in the fiduciary fund.

AtJune 30, 2012 Camden County had $480 of cash on hand.

Atjune 30, 2012, the carrying amount of deposits for Camden County ABC Board was $77,738. All of these amounts were
covered by federal depository insurance,

2. Investments

As of June 30, 2012, the County’s investments consisted of $67,972 in the North Carolina Capital Management Trust's Cash
Portfolic which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The County has no formal policy on credit risk. The
ABC Board held no investments at June 30, 2013.

3. Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

Inaccordance wit the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County at the present-
use value asopp to market value, When the property loses its eligibility for use-value taxation, the property tax is
recomputed at market value for the current year and the two preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the
original cue date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present-
use value eligibiity is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements,
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Year Levied Tax [nterest Total
2010 1,294,878 307,534 1,602,412
2011 1,312918 193,655 1,506,573
2012 1,325,695 1,325,695

Total $ 3933491 $§ 501,189 § 4,434,680

4. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2013 were as follows:

Taxes &
Related Due From
Accrued Other
Accounts Interest Governments Total
Governmental Activities:
General $ 455,676 $ 707,886 3 32.825 $ 1.196,387
Other Governmental 994,007 12,462 - 1,006,469
Total Receivables 1,449,683 720,348 - 2,170,031
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - (124,000) - (124,000)
Total Governmental Activities $ 1,449,683 $ 596,348 % 32,825 &% 2,078,856
Business-Type Activities:
Water/Sewer receivahles $ 452,867 §% - 8 - % 452,867
Allowance for Doubitful Accounts (44,212) - - (44,212)
Total Business-Type Activities $ 408,655 §$ - % - 3 408,655
5. Capital Assets
Primary Government
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1,2012 Increases Decreases June 30,2013
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4785809 $ - % - $ 4,785,809
Construction in Progress 1,042,654 1,060,720 (967,534) 1,135,840
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,828,463 1,060,720 (967,534) 5,921,649
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 4,721,630 990,845 - 5,712,475
Other improvements 2,838,390 268,441 = 3,106,831
Equipment 1,344,466 101,389 - 1,445,855
Vehicles and motor equipment 2,458,148 73,394 (42,610) 2,488,932
Total capital assets being depreciated 11,362,634 1,434,069 (42,610) 12,754,093
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,400,090 193,742 - 1,593,832
Other improvements 741,719 99,547 - 841,266
Equipment 811,628 72,042 - 883,670
Vehicles and motor equipment 1,825,193 151,884 (37,478) 1,939,599
Total accumulated depreciation 4,778,630 517,215 (37,478) 5,258,367
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,584,004 7,485,727

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 12,412 467 $ 13,417,376
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government § 162976
Public Safety 219,150
Environmental Protection 11,221
Economic and Physical Development 3,757
Human Services 44,936
Cultural and Recreational 75,175
Total Depreciation Expense $ 517215
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Business-type Activities
Water & Sewer District
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $§ 718380 % - 3% - 3% 718,380
Construction in progress 1,898,740 641,619 (1,777,051) 763,308
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,617,120 641,619 (1,777,051) 1,481,688
Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant and distribution systems 21,263,503 2,629,350 - 23,892,853
Furniture and equipment 75,458 - - 75,458
Vehicles and motor equipment 143,936 6,484 - 150,420
Total capital assets being depreciated 21,482,897 2,635,834 - 24,118,731
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant and distribution systems 3,363,629 470,123 - 3,833,752
Furniture and equipment 51,108 4,822 - 55,930
Vehicles and motor equipment 93,412 9,136 - 102,548
Total accumulated depreciation 3,508,149 484,081 - 3,992,230
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 17,974,748 20,126,501
Total Water and Sewer Fund District, Net $ 20,591,868 $ 21,608,189

Discretely presented component unit

ABC Board:
Land $ 25,405
Buildings 161,798
Equipment 43,253
Less A/D (134,966)
Property and Equipment, net $ 95,490
B. Liabiliti
1. Payables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2013, were as follows:

Accrued
Vendors Interest Total

Governmental Activities 3 420,888 % 99,713 $ 520,601

Business-type Activities $ 298966 § 22,500 $ 321466
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2. Pension Plan and Other Post Employment Obligations
a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description - Camden County and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local Government Employees’' Retirement
System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS's
provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report
may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Police - Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary to the System. The
County and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the County, the current rate for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 6.74% and 6.77%, respectively, of annual
covered payroll. The ABC Board is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The contribution requirements of
members and of Camden County and the ABC Board are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General
Assembly. The County's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $191,530, $182,487,
and $166,692, respectively. The ABC Board's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were
$2,574, $2,650, and $2,438, respectively. The contributions made by the County and the ABC Board equaled the required
contributions for each year,

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

(1) Plan Description - Camden County administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"), a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most
recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in
salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance. At the December 31,2012, the
Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to,

But Not Yet Receiving Benefits -
Active Plan Members 15
Total 15

A separate report was not issued for the plan.

@s f Sionificant A ing Polici

Basis of Accounting - The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension expenditures
are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value Investments - No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are
paid as they come due. No liability is reported on the Statement of Net Assets due to the amount not being material.

(3) Contributions

The County is required by article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the
benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. The County's
obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were
no contributions made by employees.
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Plan Description - The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of the State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits
to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial
statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for
Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent
of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make
voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 were $200,095, which consisted of
$142,501 from the County and $57,594 from the law enforcement officers.

d. Begister of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description - Camden County also contributes to the Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (Fund), a
noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer. The Fund
provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible county register of deeds that is retired under the Local Government
Employees' Retirement System [LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Register of Deeds’
Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.
The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Register of Deeds’
Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal to one and one-
half percent (1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.S. 161. Immediately following January 1 of
each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides ninety-three percent (93%) of the amount in the Fund at the end of the
preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the
Fund's assets may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the
County's required and actual contributions were $1,060.

e. Other Post Employment Benefits
Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description - Under the terms of the County resclution, the County administers a single-employer defined benefit
Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). As of July 1, 2006, this plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees
of the County, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (System)
and have at least twenty years of creditable service with the County. The County pays the full cost of coverage for these
benefits through private insurers. The County Board may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for
the plan.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2012, the date of latest actuarial valuation:

General Law Enforcement
Employees Officers

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits s =

Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits .

Active plan members 52 15
Total 52 1
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Funding Policy - The County pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to qualified retirees under a County
resolution that can be amended by the County Board. The County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you
go basis.

The current ARC rate is 2.95% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County contributed $0. The County obtains
healthcare coverage through private insurers. There were no contributions made by employees. The County's obligation to
contribute to HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the County Board.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is
maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs.
These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected
to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes on the County’s net OPEB obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 70,190
Interest on net OPEB obligation 5,556
Adjustment to annual required contribution (5,308)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 70,438
Contributions made E
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 70,438
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 209,338
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 279,776

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for
June 30, 2013 were as follows:

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2013 the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits
and, thus, the unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) was $636,078. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $2,788,528, and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 22.81%. Actuarial valuations of an
ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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For Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2011 $ 70812 0.00% $ 138900
2012 $ 70,438 0.00% $ 209,338
2013 $ 70,438 0.00% $  279.776

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term
investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date,
and an annual medical cost trend increase of 9.50% to 5.00% annually. The investment rate included a 3.00% inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2013, was 30 years.

f. Other Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing
plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at
least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum
death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's twelve highest months salary in a row during the twenty-
four months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit may not be less than $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All
death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly
contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the
State. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the
other benefit amount. The County considers these contributions to be immaterial,

3. Deferred Inflows of Resources

The balance in deferred or inflows of resources at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Unavailable Unearned
Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General) $ - $ 14,032
Taxes receivable, net (General), less penalities 502,136 -
Taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) 12,642 2

Total $ 514,778 § 14,032
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4. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates in three self-funded risk financing pools
administered by the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners. Through these pools, the County obtains property
coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $125.5 million for any one occurrence,
general, auto, professional and employment practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physical damage
coverage for owned autos, at actual cash value, crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence, workers' compensation coverage
up to the statutory limits and health and dental insurance for County employees. The pools are audited annually by Certified
Public Accountants, and the audited financial statements are available to the County upon request. Two of the pools are
reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single occurrence losses in excess of $500,000 up to a $2 million limit
for liability coverage, $600,000 of aggregate annual losses in excess of $50,000 per occurrence for property, auto physical
damage and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers' compensation. For health and dental
insurance, the County is insured through Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Carolina, a private insurance company.

The County carries flood insurance on the renovated courthouse. Other buildings are not insured for flood.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the County's
funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Director is bonded for $650,000, the tax
collector is bonded for $50,000 and the sheriff is bonded for $25,000. The remaining employees that have access to funds are
bonded under a blanket bond for $15,000.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and no claims have been made in the
past three years.

Camden County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Board has commercial property, general liability, auto liability, workers'
compensation, and employee health coverage. The Board does have liquor legal liability coverage. In accordance with G.S.
18B-803, the ABC Board's employees that have access to the Board's funds are performance bonded through a commercial
surety bond. Employees are bonded under an employment practices bond for up to $5,000 per claim, There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

5. Contingent Liabilities

At June 30, 2013, they County was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the County's management and the County
attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial position.

6. Long-Term Obligations
a. Installment Purchases

As authorized by State law [G.S. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County has financed various property acquisitions for use by
Camden County Board of Education by installment purchase. The installment purchases were issued pursuant to a deed of
trust that requires that legal title remain with the County as long as the debt is outstanding. The County has entered into a
lease with Camden County Board of Education that transfers the right and responsibilities for maintenance and insurance of
the property to the Board of Education. The lease calls for nominal annual lease payments and also contains a bargain
purchase option. The lease term is the same as that of the installment purchase obligation. Due to the economic substance of
the transaction, the capital assets associated with the installment purchase obligation are recorded by the Board of Education.
These loans are included in the loans described below.

The installment purchases of the County, including the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, are outlined below:

$10,106,075 loan from Bank of America, N.A. (QZAB) for renovation and modernization of Camden High
School and Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for
annual payments of $544,605 and no interest is charged. Matures in 2024. $ 3,570,815
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$1,000,000 loan fram Bank of America, N.A. for renovation and modernization of Camden High School and

Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for an annual

payments of $50,000 plus 4.4%. This note was paid off and refinanced with a principal amount of $572,000

and calls for annual payments of $52,000 plus interest at 2.29%. Matures in 2024. 521,504

$2,000,000 loan from Bank of America, N.A. (QZAB) for renovation and modernization of Camden High School
and Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for annual
payments 0of $112,334 and no interest is charged. Matures in 2023. 988,994

$264,000 loan from Rural Housing Service to finance courthouse renovations. The loan is secured by the
courthouse. The note calls for annual payments of $20,297 including interest at 4.5%. Matures in 2026. 196,503

$61,500 loan from BB&T for the purchase of imaging equipment. The loan is secured by the equipment. The
note calls for annual payments of $12,300 for 5 years including interest at 3.82%. Loan was paid off during
year,

$453,000 loan from BB&T for the re-finance of a two pumper trucks. The loan calls for annual payments of
$48,072 including interest at 2.09%. Matures in 2021. 291,753

$725,000 loan from BB&T dated August 16, 2010 for the construction of a Fire Station Building. The loan calls
for annual payments of $36,250 plus interest at 3.89%. Matures in 2027. 652,500

$1,350,000 loan from Thomas M. Noblitt for the purchase of land. The loan is secured with the property. The
loan calls for annual payments of $150,000 for 9 years. There is no interest stated in the loan. Matures in
2018. 750,000

$600,000 loan from Morrisete for the purchase of land. The loan is secured with the property. The loan calls
for annual payments of $100,00 for 6 years. There is no interest stated in the loan. Matures in 2015. 200,000

$10,000,000 loan from US Department of Agriculture for the construction of an intermediate school. The note
calls for annual payments of $520,000 for 40 years which includes interest at 4.125%. Matures in 2049, 9,416,279

$ 16,588,348
b. General Obligation Indebtedness

All general obligation bonds serviced by the County's general fund are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power
of the County. South Camden Water and Sewer District issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition
and construction of major water and sewer capital improvements. These bonds, which are recorded in the Water District
Fund, are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the District. Principal and interest payments are
appropriated when due.

The County's general obligation bonds are payable at June 30, 2013, are comprised of the following individual issues:

Serviced by South Camden Water and Sewer District:
General obligation bonds serviced by the District:

$1,600,000 - 1996 Water District bonds with annual installments of $17,000 to $66,000 through June 1, 2036;
interest at 4.875%. These Bonds were refinanced during the year with a prinicpal amount of $1,274,000 with
annual installments of $99,493 plus interest at 3.89%. $ 1,239,490

Other Loans:

Drinking Water State Revolving Loan: A loan of $813,581 calling for 20 annual principal payments of $40,679
plus interest at 2.87% (payable semiannually). This Note was refinanced during the year with a prinicpal
amount of $406,791 with varying annual installments plus interest at 2.19%. 366,111
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State DWSRF Revolving Loan: A loan 0f$1,367,122 calling for 20 annual principal payments of $68,356 plus
interest at 2.50%. At year end $1,307,360 has been drawn down on the loan amount. This associated project
was completed during the year and half of the outstanding principal was forgiven. The new payments will be
for 20 years at $32,684 with no stated interest rate. 620,996

State Clean Water Bond Loan: A loan 0f $1,922,657 calling for 19 annual principal payments of $101,192 plus
interest at 4.02%. This Note was refinanced during the year with a prinicpal amount of $910,732 with
varying annual installments plus interest at 2.09%. 809,540

Total $ 3,036,137

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County's and District's general obligation bonds and loans are as
follows:

Governmental Business Type
Year Ending Activities Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2014 1,177,509 441,333 219,832 73,154

2015 1,184,271 431,321 221,594 68,385

2016 1,091,295 421,693 223,423 63,551

2017 1,098,595 411,788 225,324 58,644

2018 1,106,182 401,597 227,299 53,663
2019-2023 2,757,395 1,847,149 925,858 192,922
2024-2028 1,234,792 1,577,051 521,820 109,069
2029-2033 1,491,372 1,298,380 470,987 33,721
2034-2038 1,603,515 996,485 - -
2039-2043 1,962,674 637,326 - -
2044-2047 1,880,748 197,721 2 =

Total $ 16,588348 § 8661844 § 3,036,137 $ 653,109

AtJune 30, 2013 Camden County had a legal debt margin of $77,428,384.

¢. Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013:

Balance Balance Current
6/30/2012 Increases Decreases 6/30/2013 Portion
Governmental Activities:
Installment Purchases $ 17,742,066 § 572,000 $ (1,725718) § 16,588,348 § 1,177,509
OPEB 181,488 59,168 - 240,656 =
Compensated absences 196,367 10,626 - 206,993 -
Total governmental
activities $ 18119921 $ 641,794 § (1,725718) $17,035997 §$ 1,177,509
Balance Balance Current
6/30/2012 Additions Retirements 6/30/2013 Portion
Business Type Activities;
General obligation debt $ 3898882 § 2591523 $ (3454,268) $ 3,036,137 $ 219,832
OPEB 27,850 11,261 - % 39,111 -
Compensated Absences 31,277 655 - $ 31,932 -

Total business type activities $ 3,958,009 $ 2,603,439 $ (3,454,268) § 3,107,180 $ 219,832

Compensated absences for governmental activities typically have been liquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on
a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

Debt Related to Capital Activities - Of the total Governmental Activities debt listed only $2,090,756 relates to assets the
County holds title.
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- n ivi
Transfer to/from other fund
Transfers From/To Other Funds at June 30, 2013 consists of the following:

From the General fund to:

Special Revenue Eco Park Fund (Expenditures) $ 51,566
Revaluation Fund (Expenditures) 75,000
Water and Sewer Fund (Expenditures) 145379

From School Capital Reserve Fund to:

General Fund (school debt) 1,251,414

Totals $§ 1,523,359
Interfund Balances and Activity
Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2013, consist of the following:
Due to the General Fund from the Capital Project ECO Park $ 1,003,211
Due to the General Fund from the Scattered Site Housing Capital Project $ 1,824
Due to the Special Revenue Fire District from the General Fund $ 350,000

Total $ 1,355,035

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds
are made.

C. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General fund balance that is
available for appropriation:

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 6,336,414
Less:
Stabilization by State Statute 1,843,536
Remaining Fund Balance $ 4,492,878
The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and
Encumbrances I General Fund Non-Major Funds
$ - 8 -

The County participates in a joint venture (Albemarle LME) to operate the Center. The Albemarle LME has contracted with
East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH) to stabilize the Albemarle operation and develop the network of services. The Center
is a volunteer association of ten county governments as a joint venture participating governments appointing one board
member (commissioner) to the Center’s board. The Center was established as a joint venture among the participating counties
to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies and also to realize economies of scale in the providing of mental health
services. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments and ECBH, the County
appropriated $19,980 to the ECBH to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity
interest in the ECBH, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2013. Complete financial
statements for the Center can be obtained from the ECBH's office at 112 Health Drive, Greenville, North Carolina 27834-7704.
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Central C . M S

The Emergency Management System was established as a joint venture between Camden County, Pasquotank County, and the
City of Elizabeth City to coordinate grant funds and realize economies of scale. Each entity appoints one member to the
governing board. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County
appropriated $193,787 to the System to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity
interest in the System, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2013. Complete financial
statements for the System can be obtained from the System's office at 103 S. Road Street, Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27909.

Al le District Jai

The operation of the Jail is shared with two other counties in the surrounding area. Each county's contributions are based on
a per capita assessment based on the most recent census figures available, and each county appoints one or more members to
the Board. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County
appropriated $405,920 to the Jail to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity interest
in the Jail, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2013. Complete financial statements
for the Jail can be obtained from the Jail's office at 320 S. Hughes Blvd,, Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27907.

Pasquotank-Camden Library

Pasquotank and Camden counties appoint the Board of the Library and provide support to the Library based upon their
respective populations. The Board is responsible for approving the budget and designating the management of the Library. In
accordance with the agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated $121,691 to the Library to
supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, so no equity interest
has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2013. The Library does not issue financial statements, but it is
blended into the financial statements of Pasquotank County, and these financial statements can be obtained from the County's
office at 206 E. Main Street, Elizabeth City, North Carolina.

Al le G -

The County is a member of the Albemarle Commission, which is a voluntary association of county governments. The
Commission was established as a joint venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State
agencies. Each county appoints two members of which one must be an elected official to the Commission's governing board.
The County paid membership fees of $6,500 to the Commission during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

YHegiomil Canh nt Facili
The County is a member of the Regional Jail Facility, which is an agreement of three county governments to provide financing,
construction and operation of a regional jail. The Facility was established as a joint venture among the participating counties
to coordinate funding from local, federal, and State agencies. The County contributed $193,210 to the Facility during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013.

Albemarle Regional Health Services (ARHS)

Albemarle Regional Health Services is a voluntary association of seven county governments. ARHS was established as a joint
venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies and to realize economies of
scale in providing health care services. The County contributed $35,820 to ARHS during the year ended June 30, 2013. None
of the participating governments have any equity interest in ARHS, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial
statements at June 30, 2013. Complete financial statements can be obtained at ARHS's office on 711 Roanoke Avenue,
Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27909.

. Benefit Payments Issued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State moneys. County
personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations, which cause benefit payments to be issued
by the State. These amounts disclose this additional aid to the County recipients that do not appear in the basic financial
statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.
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V.

Federal State
Foster Care $ 3932 $ 1,966
Adoption Assistance 20,450 5,037
Low Income Energy Assistance 15,200 -
Medicaid 4,682,535 2,613,002
WIC 18,948 L

S Discl iR E i i ;

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund
of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. no provision has
been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.

. Change in Accounting Principles/Restatement

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and Statement 65, ltems Previously reported as Assets
and Liabilities , in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. In accordance with GASB Statement 63, the Statement of Net Assets has
been replaced with the Statement of Net Position. Items on the Statement of Net Position are now classified into Assets,
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position.
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REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional information required by generally
accounting principals.

@ Schedule of Funding Progress for the OPEB

e Schedule of Employer Contribution for the OPEB
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Camden County, North Carolina
Other Post Employment Benefits
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAALasa
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2008 - $ 436,647 $ 436,647 0.0% $ 2,482,280 17.60%
12/31/2011 - $ 565,640 $ 565,640 0.0% $ 2,375,630 23.80%

12/31/2012 - $ 636,078 $ 636,078 0.0% $ 2,788,528 22.81%



8l
Camden County, North Carolina
Other Post Employment Benefits
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30, Contribution Contributed
2011 70,812 0.00%
2012 70,438 0.00%
2013 70,438 0.00%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations
at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation Date December 31, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent of Pay Open
Remaining Amortization Period 30 Years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 4.00%
Medical Cost Trend 9.5% - 5.00%
Includes Inflation at 3.00%
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government that
are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
other funds.
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes $ $ 6794469 §
Penalties and Interest 73.824
Total 6,787,246 6,868,293 81,047
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Local option sales tax 1,036,294
Franchise tax 438,002
Scrap tire disposal tax 20,493
Video programming 45,636
White goods tax 3,067
Medicaid hold harmless 658,100
Privilege licenses 455
Total 1,895,600 2,202,047 306,447
Unrestricted Intergovernmental revenues:
Beer and wine tax 39,874
Payments in lieu of taxes 621
Refuge revenue sharing 8,519
Drug investigation fund 80
ABC profit distribution 13,440
Total 65,600 62,534 (3,066)
Restricted Intergovernmental:
State and Federal Grants 1,097,042
Other 11,230
Court facilities fees 23,660
Total 1,282,447 1,131,932 (150,515)
Permits and Fees:
Franchise fees 46,121
Pet licenses 210
Gun permits 10,680
Register of Deeds 121,144
Other fees 40,953
Building permits and inspections, including land use fees 535424

Total 685,741 754,532 68,791
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Sales and Services:
Rent and Concessions 52,203
Jail fees 7,652
Officer fees 30,355
Total 74,476 90,210 15,734
Investment Earnings: Interest 30,200 54,267 24,067
Miscellaneous:
Sale of fixed assets 1,225
Sheriff's fundraisers and Christmas Fund 12,169
OLF relief 3,568
Insurance proceeds 9,468
Other 72,483
Total 74,000 98,913 24,913
TOTAL REVENUES 10,895,310 11,262,728 367,418
Expenditures:
General Government:
Governing body 105,347
Administration 407,499
Finance 205,838
Tax administration 304,941
Personnel 58,009
Legal 13,768
Register of deeds 226,281
Elections 85,700
Public buildings 336,669
Court facilities 30,862
Total general government 2,212,830 1,774,914 437,916
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Public Safety:
Sheriff 1,450,419
Jail 405,920
Regional jail 193,210
Juvenile justice and deliquency program 64,473
School resource officer 59,436
Inspections 128,398
Contribution to fire districts 462,271
Emergency management 128,798
Central communications 193,787
Medical examiner 5,100
Total 3,158,557 3,091,812 66,745
Economic and physical development:
Economic development 105,618
Agricultural extension 77,654
Planning 244,296
Albemarle commission 6,500
Resource conservation and development 750
Public transportation authority 11,208
Soil /water conservation 56,526
Total 577,534 502,552 74,982
Human services:
Health:
Nutrition programs 24,252
Mosquito control 1,592
Albemarle helpline 1,500
Camden food pantry 2,000
Regional health 35,820
Other health programs 10,266
Total human services 94,633 75,430 19,203
Mental Health:
Regional mental health 19,980
Total 20,000 19,980 20

Transportation: Traffic 3,060 1,280 1,780




Camden County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Social services:
Administration
Day care
Medical assistance
County provided assistance
Adoptions
Aid to the blind program
Foster care
Crisis intervention
Work first program
Other assistance

Total social services

Total Human Services

Cultural and Recreational:
Recreation
Library
College of the Albemarle
Senior citizens services
Total Cultural and Recreational

Environmental protection:
Public works administration
Forestry program
Beaver management assistance program
Sanitation
Total environmental protection

Education:

Public Schools:
Current Expense
Capital Outlay

Total Education

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fees
Total Debt Service
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Revenues over Expenditures

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

888,606
121,667
22,158
55,509
5,037
891
38,231
34,710
35,708
19,001

1,467,838 1,221,518

246,320

1,585,531 1,318,208

267,323

243,477
606,002

70,000
103,423

1,287,343 1,022,902

264,441

14,684
35,661
4,000
583,386

740,813 637,731

103,082

1,449,000
200,000

1,649,000 1,649,000

1,656,609
438,008

2,094,617 2,094,617

13,306,225 12,091,736

1,214,489

(2,410,915) (829,008)

1,581,907
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds From Capital Leases 572,000 572,000
Fund Balance Appropriated 784,546 -
Transfers (to)/from Other Funds:
Special revenue - school capital reserve 1,251,414 1,251,414
Special revenue - Eco park fund (51,666) (51,666)
Water and sewer district (145,379) (145,379)
Capital projects - sewer project - -
Capital projects - sewer project - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,410,915 1,626,369 (784,546)
Net change in fund balance $ = 797,361 $ 797,361
Fund balances:
Beginning of year, July 1 5,539,053

End of year, June 30 $§ 6336414
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OTHER MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Major Governmental Funds - Special Capital Fund
Major Governmental Funds - School Capital Fund
Major Governmental Funds - ECO Park Capital Fund
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Camden County, North Carolina
Special Capital Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30,2013

2013
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Other taxes $ $ 267,888 $
Land sale -
Investment earnings 27,359

Total Revenue 220,000 295,247 75,247

Expenditures
Operating expenses 463,507
Capital outlay -

Total Expenditures 615,000 463,507 151,493
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (395,000) (168,260) 226,740
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers from other funds s = =
Proceeds from Lease Purchase - - =
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - =
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (395,000) (168,260) 226,740
Fund Balance Appropriated 395,000 (395,000)
Net change in fund balance $ - (168,260) $ (168,260)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 3,037,196

End of Year, June 30 $ 2,868,936



90

Camden County, North Carolina
School Capital Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Other taxes $ $ 342,043 $
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 138,720
Miscellaneous -
Investment earnings 10,422
Total Revenues 510,000 491,185 (18,815)
Expenditures:
Education:
Operating expenses
Debt service: Principal
Debt service: Interest
Total Expenditures - & 2
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 510,000 491,185 (18,815)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds - - -
Transfer to other funds (1,511,414) (1,251,414) 260,000
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (1,511,414) (1,251,414) 260,000
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses (1,001,414) (760,229) 241,185
Fund Balance Appropriated 1,001,414 2 (1,001,414)
Net change in fund balance $ = (760,229) $__ (760,229)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 1,304,355

End of Year, June 30 $ 544,126
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Camden County, North Carolina
ECO Park Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Project Actual Variance
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable
ization Years Year Date {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - DOT $ 425,000  § - $ 425000 $ 425000 % -
Restricied intergovernmental - DOC 500.000 - 500,000 500.000 -
Restricted intergovernmental - Gold Leaf 150.000 - 18.911 18.911 (131.089)
Other - - - - -
Interest Income - - - - -
Total Revenues 1.075.,000 - 543,911 943911 (131,089
Expenditures:
Construction:
Construction 1.065.000 - 1.042.416 1.042.416 22,584
Fund reserves 10.000 - - - 10,000
Total 1.075.000 - 1.042.416 1.042.416 32,584
Revenues over expendiiures - - (98,505) (98.505) (98.505)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Fund balance appropriated - - - - -
Revolving loan funds - - - - -
Transfers In = = . % :
Total Other Financing
Sources (Lises) & = = = =]
Revenues. Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ - $ - (98.505) § (98.505) $ (98.505)

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year. July 1

End of Year. June 30

$ (98.505)




Camden County, North Carolina
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30,2013
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Automation

Enhancement Dismal Fire District Funds
and Preserva- Tourism Swamp Courthouse South Joyce Creek
tion Fund Development  Visitor Center & Shiloh Mills Drainage Fund
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 8,677 $ 107,607 84,055 $§ 525855 $ 409304 § 174,656
Accounts receivable x 2,359 533 1,698 2431 -
Taxes receivable (net) - - = 6,576 3141 2,925
Total Assets $ 8677 $§ 109966 84,588 § 534129 § 414876 $ 177,581
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 250 5026 $ 1,059 § 1,258 §$ 432
Due from other funds - - - 350,000 - -
Total liabilities 250 5,026 351,059 1,258 432
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes receivable - - - 6,576 3,141 2925
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 6,576 3,141 2,925
Fund Balances:
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute ] 2,359 533 1,698 2,431
Register of Deeds B.677 - - - -
Fire Protection - 174,796 408,046
Committed
Tax Revaluation - - - =
Economic development - 107,357 79,029 - - 174,224
Total fund balances 8,677 109,716 79,562 176,494 410,477 174,224
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, and
fund balances $ 8677 & 109,966 84,588 § 534129 $ 414876 $ 177,581
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Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Total Nonmajor
Special Scattered  Total Nonmajor Total Nonmajor
Community Eco Park School Revaluation Revenue Housing Capital Project  Governmental
_Park Trust Fund Fund Fund Funds Grant Funds Funds
$ 38860 $ 116,044 8 26,268 $ 569546 § 2,060872 § % 3 % $ 2,060,872
141 = Z 6 7,168 4,980 4,980 12,148
r = 3 = 12,642 = - 12,642
$ 39,001 $§ 116044 § 26268 § 569,552 § 2,080,682 S 4980 % 4980 § 2,085,662
$ 70 % - $ - g - $ 8,095 $ 4980 $ 4980 $ 13,075
- - - - 350,000 1,824 1,824 351,824
70 - - - 358,095 6,804 6,804 364,899
2 = - - 12,642 % 2 12,642
3 % E = 12,642 - - 12,642
141 ~ = 6 7,168 4,980 4,980 12,148
5 ™ - z 8,677 - - 8,677
= E - 582,842 - - 582842
. - - 569,546 569,546 - - 569,546
38,790 116,044 26,268 - 541,712 (6,804) (6,804) 534,908
38,931 116.044 26.268 569,552 1,709,945 (1.824) [1.824) 1,708,121

$ 39,001 116044 5 26268 $ 569,552 § 2,080,682 $ 4980 5 4980 % 2,085,662
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Camden County, North Carolina
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013

Auto Fire District Funds
Enhancement Dismal
and Preserva-  Tourism Swamp Courthouse South Joyce Creek
tion Fund Development Visitor Center & Shiloh Mills __ Drainage Fund
Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ - $ - - 3 2ZB7443 § 174828 § 49,913
Other taxes - 28,736 71,861 43,707 -
Local contributions - - - - - -
Donations - - - - - -
Investment earnings 60 1,624 - 4,110 3,874 1,503
Sales - - 19,287 - - -
Miscellaneous “ - - 11,838 - -
Federal and State grants - - 150,000 - 19,229 -
Fees 6,663 - - - 868 -
Total revenues 6,723 30,360 169,287 375,252 242,506 51416

Expenditures:
General government 2,300 + - -
Public safety . - - 118,173 102,530
Environmental protection - - - - 4
Economic and physical development - - -
Cultural and recreation - 24,894 158,547 - - =
Education - .
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - = 69,109 -
Interest and fees - - - = 42,888 -
Total Expenditures 2,300 24,894 158,547 118,173 214,527 23,218

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 4,423 5,466 10,740 257.079 27,979 28,198

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt - : 4 E = =
Transfers from (to) other sources . = T E =
Transfers from (to) other sources - - i [ =
Total other financing sources (uses] - - - E &

Net change in Fund Balance 4,423 5,466 10,740 257,079 27,979 28,198

Fund balances:
Beginning of Year, July 1 4,254 104.250 68,822 [BD,585) 382,498 146,026

End of year, June 30 $ B677 § 109716 $ 79562 $ 176494 $ 410477 $ 174,224
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Capital
Project Fund

Total Nonmajor Scattered  Total Nonmajor Total Nonmajor

Community Eco Park School Revaluation  Special Revenue Housing Capital Project  Governmental
Park Trust Fund Fund Fund Funds Grant Funds Funds

3 £ - $ - $ 75000 $ 587,184 $ - 3 - 3 587,184

- 9,732 - 154,036 - - 154,036

425 618 800 5,098 18,112 - - 18,112

o - - - 19,287 - - 19,287

- = - - 11,838 - - 11,838

= % % - 169,229 167.571 167,571 336,800

- - - - 7.531 - - 7.531

425 618 10,532 80,098 967,217 167,571 167,571 1,134,788

- - - 2,520 4,820 - - 4,820

= 5 . - 220,703 - - 220,703

- - - - 23,218 - - 23,218

= 18,304 - - 18,304 169,395 169,395 187.699

9,330 - - - 192,771 - - 192,771

- 300,000 - 300,000 - - 300,000

- d - - 69,109 - - 69,109

= - = - 42,888 - - 42,888

9.330 18,304 300,000 2,520 871,813 169,395 169,395 1,041,208

(8.905) (17.,686) (289.468) 77.578 95.404 {1.824) (1,824) 93,580

- 51,666 - - 51,666 - : 51,666

- 51.666 - - 51,666 - - 51,666

(8,905) 33,980 (289,468) 77578 147,070 (1.824) (1,824) 145,246

47,836 82,064 315.736 491,974 1,562,875 - - 1,562,875

§_38931 $_ 116,044 $_ 26268 $ 569,552 % 1,709945 5 (1.824) $ (1.824) $ 1,708,121
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for particular purposes.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fees $ $ 6.663 §
Investment Earnings 60
Other income -
Total revenues 3,500 6,723 3,223
Expenditures:
Operating expenses 2,300
Total Expenditures 3,500 2,300 1,200
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - 4,423 4,423
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from Other Funds -
Transfers to Other Funds :
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - -
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses - 4,423 4.423
Fund Balance Appropriated - - -
Net change in fund balance $ - 4423 § 4,423
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 4,254

End of Year, June 30 $ 8,677
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Camden County, North Carolina
Tourism Development Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Other taxes $ h 28,736 §
Investment earnings 1,624
Total revenues 44,740 30,360 14,380
Expenditures:
Operating expenses 24,894
Total Expenditures 44 740 24,894 19.846
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - 5,466 5,466
Net change in fund balance - 5,466 5,466
Fund Balance Appropriated = - -
Net change in fund balance $ - 5,466 $ 5,466
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 104,250

End of Year, June 30 h 109,716
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Camden County, North Carolina
Dismal Swamp Visitor Center
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental $ $ 150,000 §
Sales 19,287
Miscellaneous -
Total Revenue 160,000 169.287 9,287
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 126,237
Operating expenses 32,310
Total Expenditures 160,000 158.547 1,453
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - 10,740 10,740
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds -
Proceeds from Lease Purchase i
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - =
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses - 10,740 10,740
Fund Balance Appropriated =
Net change in fund balance $ - 10,740 $ 10,740
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 68.822

End of Year, June 30 $ 79.562
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Camden County, North Carolina
Fire District Funds - Courthouse and Shiloh
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes
Investment earnings
Other fees
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Debt service: Principal and Interest
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Installment Loan
Transfer to General Fund
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July |

End of Year, June 30

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
S 287.443 $
71,861
4,110
11,838
335,010 375,252 40,242
4,184
90,676
23,313
335,010 118,173 216,837
- 257,079 257,079
- 257,079 257,079
- 257,079 $ 257,079
(80.585)

§__176494
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Camden County, North Carolina
Fire District Fund - South Mills
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes s $ 174,828 $
Other taxes 43,707
Investment earnings 3,874
Other grants 19,229
Other fees 868
Total Revenues 229430 242,506 13,076
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Salaries and benefits 7,796
Operating expenses 85,914
Capital outlay 8.820
Debt service: Principal and Interest 111,997
Total Expenditures 229,430 214,527 14,903
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - 27,979 27.979
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Installment Loan - -
Transfer to General Fund - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - -
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses - 27,979 27,979
Fund Balance Appropriated - -
Net change in fund balance $ - 27,979 $ 27,979
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 382,498

End of Year, June 30 $ 410,477
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Camden County, North Carolina

Drainage Fund - Joyce Creek
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Investment earnings
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Environmental Protection:
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Installment Loan
Transfer to General Fund
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July |

End of Year, June 30

174,224

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3 49913 $
1,503
48,315 51,416 3,101
23,218
48,315 23,218 25,097
- 28,198 28,198
- 28,198 28,198
- 28,198 5 28,198
146,026
$
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Camden County, North Carolina
Community Park Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013

Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental $ $
Other taxes
Investment earnings

Total Revenue

425
425 425

Expenditures
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

9,330

45,000 9,330 35,670

(45,000) (8,905) 36,095

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds
Proceeds from Lease Purchase

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (45,000)

45,000 - (45,000)

(8,905) 36,095

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance § - (8,905) $ (8.905)

Fund Balance:

Beginning of Year, July 1 47,836

End of Year, June 30 3 38,931
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Camden County, North Carolina
Eco Park Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fees $ $ - $
Investment earnings 618
Total Revenue - 618 618
Expenditures
Operating expenses -
Capital outlay 18,304
Total Expenditures 133,566 18,304 115,262
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (133.,566) (17,686) 115,880

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds 51,566 51,666 100
Proceeds from Lease Purchase - - -
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses) 51,566 51,666 100
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (82,000) 33,980 115,980
Fund Balance Appropriated 82,000 - (82,000)
Net change in fund balance $ - 33,980 $ 33,980

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 82,064

End of Year, June 30 $ 116,044
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Camden County, North Carolina
School Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues
Tax penalties and interest
[nvestment earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds
Proceeds from Lease Purchase
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 9,732 §
800
6,000 10,532 4,532
300,000
320,828 300,000 20,828
(314,828) (289.468) 25,360
(314.828) (289,468) 25,360
314,828 - (314,828)

. (289.468) § (289.468)

§ 26268
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Camden County, North Carolina
Revaluation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Ad Valorem taxes $ 75,000 §
Investment earnings 5,098

Total Revenue 77,500 80,098 2,598

Expenditures
Operating expenses 2,520
Capital outlay -

Total Expenditures 527,500 2,520 524,980
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (450,000) 77,578 527,578
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers from other funds - - -
Proceeds from Lease Purchase - - #
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - -
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (450,000) 77.578 527,578
Fund Balance Appropriated 450,000 - (450,000)
Net change in fund balance - 77,578 $ 77.578
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 491,974

End of Year, June 30

§ 569,552
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds
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Camden County, North Carolina
Scattered Housing Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Project Actual Variance
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted - infrastructure hook-up 08-C-184 § 37.289 % $ - $ - $ 37,289
Restricted - CDBG grant 08-C-1817 900.000 167.571 167.571 732,429
Restricted - SRSF grant 350.000 - - 350,000
Total Revenues 1.287.289 1.016.497 167.571 1,184,068 (103.221)
Expenditures:
Current:
Economic and physical
development: 1,287,289 1.018.629 169.395 1,188,024 99,265
Revenues over expenditures - (2.132) (1.824) (3.956) (3.956)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in (out) - - - - -
Local contribution - 2,132 - 2,132 (2.132)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - 2.132 - 2,132 (2.132)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - S (1.824) § (1.824) §$ (1.824)

Fund Balance: -
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30 $ (1.824)
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated

in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountability purposes.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Enterprise Fund - Water & Sewer District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Operating Revenues
Water sales $ $ 914,170 $
Tap on Fees 18,508
Miscellaneous -
Total water sales 956,200 932,678 (23.522)
Waste water sales 71,273
Miscellaneous -
Total waste water sales 95,236 71.273 (23.,963)
Total Operating Revenues 1,051,436 1,003,951 (47,485)
Nonoperating Revenues
Interest on Investments 3,000 2.573 (427)
Total Revenues 1,054,436 1,006,524 (47,912)
Expenditures:
Reverse osmosis plant
Salaries and employee benefits 184,294
Repairs and maintenance 6,774
Chemicals 31,588
Utilities 68,876
Operating expenses 28,130
Total 422,131 319,662 102,469
Water distribution:
Salaries and employee benefits 198,704
Repairs and maintenance 13,436
Supplies 11,200
Contracted services 28,958
Operating expenses 78,132
Total 339.248 330,430 8.818
Waste Water treatment:
Salaries and employee benfits 129,818
Repairs and maintenance 12,159
Utilities 25,379
Contracted services 3,990
Supplies 5,699
Operating expenses 28,771

Total 240,615 205,816 34,799
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Camden County, North Carolina
Enterprise Fund - Water & Sewer District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Budgetary Appropriations:
Capital Outlay 196,545
Interest Paid 146,863
Debt Principal 3,454,268
Total 4,522,371 3,797,676 724,695
Total Expenditures 5.524,365 4,653,584 870,781
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,469,929) (3,647,060) 822.869
Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
Debt Proceeds 3.422,280 2,591,523 -
Capital Contributions 715,000 706,367 -
Transfer from other funds 145.379 145,379 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4,282,659 3,443,269 (839,390)
Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses (187,270) (203,791) (16,521)
Appropriated Fund Balance 187,270 - (187.270)
Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated
Fund Balance Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses 8 - $  (203,791) $  (203,791)
Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual:
Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated
Fund Balance Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ (203,791)
Reconciling items:
Capital Outlay 196,545
Principal Payments 3,454,268
Debt Proceeds (2.591,523)
Increase in accrued vacation pay 655
Other revenues from capital projects 51,034
Interest from capital projects 1,653
Increase in accrued OPEB 11,270
Change in accrued interest (7,185)
Expenditures in capital project (2,794)
Capital contributions from capital projects 922,611
Depreciation (484,081)
Total reconciling items 1,552,453

Change in net position $ 1,348,662
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Camden County, North Carolina

Water and Sewer Distriet Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - Rural Center
Restricted intergovernmental - CWMTF Funds
Restricted intergovernmental - CDBG
Other
Interest Income
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Sewer Construction;
Legal fees
Land
Engineering
Collection system
Construction
Spray fields
Fund reserves
Total

Revenues over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Fund balance appropriated
Revolving loan funds
Transfers In

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

Project Actual Variance
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
3.400.000 $  3.400,000 89950 § 3489950 § 89.950
3.564.011 3,096,007 - 3,096,007 (468.004)
600,000 600.000 - 600.000 -
75.905 171.490 19,072 190.562 114,657
- 3.696 1,653 7.349 7.349
7.639.916 7.273,193 110,675 7.383.868 (256,048)
94.189 51,292 - 51,292 42,897
422,900 70,360 - 70,360 352,540
753,855 300,705 - 300,705 453,150
1.506.029 1.364,284 2.794 1.367.078 138.951
6,818,822 6,780.889 - 6.780.,889 37,933
1.133.161 302,362 - 302,362 830,799
360.943 73,448 - 73.448 287,495
11,089.899 8,943,340 2.794 8.946.134 2,143,765
(3,449.983) (1,670,147) 107.881 (1.562,266) 1.887.717
1.132.861 - - - 1.132,861
1,367,122 1.307.809 - 1.307,809 59,313
950,000 582,201 - 582,291 367.709
3.449.983 1.890,100 - 1,890,100 1.559.883
z $ 219,953 107.881 b 327.834 % 327.834
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Camden County, North Carolina

Water and Sewer District Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013

Project Actual Variance
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable
ization Years Year Date {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - Gold Leaf Grant $ 1,999,100 $ 1,440256 % 539,933 1,980,189 $ (18,911)
Restricted intergovernmental - RC Grant 160,000 68,078 91,922 160,000 -
Other - 32,773 24,436 57,209 57,209
Interest Income - - - - -
Total Revenues 2,159,100 1,541,107 656,291 2,197,398 38,298
Expenditures:
Sewer improvements 2,990,000 1,879,544 662,240 2,541,784 448,216
Water improvements 400,000 274,368 - 274,368 125,632
Administration 34,100 12,083 - 12,083 22,017
Fund reserves - - - - -
Total 3,424,100 2,165,995 662,240 2,828,235 595,865
Revenues over expenditures (1,265,000) (624,888) (5,949) (630,837) 634,163
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Fund balance appropriated 525,000 - - - 525,000
Transfers In 740,000 486,630 144,207 630,837 109,163
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 1,265,000 486,630 144,207 630,837 634,163
Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ - $  (138,258) 138,258 - $ -
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Camden County, North Carolina
Water and Sewer District Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Project Actual Variance
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable
ization Years Year Date { Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - CWMTF $ 1464100 § - $ 152,197 $ 152.197 § (1.311.903)
Restricted intergovernmental - RC Grant 649.875 - 48.609 48.609 (601.266)
Other 269.810 - 7.526 7.526 (262.284)
Interest Income - - - - “
Total Revenues 2.383.785 - 208.332 208.332 (2,175.453)
Expenditures:
Sewer improvements 2.419.510 121,688 624.854 746,542 1,672,968
Professional services 115,000 - 16.764 16,764 98.236
Fund reserves - - - - =
Total 2,534,510 121.688 641,618 763.306 1.771.204
Revenues over expenditures (150,723) (121.688) (433,286) (554.974) (404,249)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Fund balance appropriated 35,723 - - - 35.725
Transfers In 115,000 150,725 - 150,725 (35.725)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 150,725 150,725 - 150.725 -

Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ - $ 29,037 (433,286) § (404.249) §$ (404.249)
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others.
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Camden County, North Carolina

Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Social Services Fund:

Cash and Investments

Liabilities

Nancy M. and H. Clay Ferebee Fund
Cash and Investments
Liabilities

School Tax Fund:

Cash and Investments
Liabilities

Motor Vehicle Tax Fund:
Cash and Investments
Liabilities

Total - All Agency Funds:
Cash and Investments

Liabilities

Balance Net Balance

July 1, 2012 Change June 30, 2013
S 19,739 (13.066) $§ 6.673
$ 19,739 (13.066) $ 6,673
$ 1,534 -8 1.534
$ 1.534 - $ 1.534
$ 315,736 (315,736) $§ -
$ 315,736 (315.736) § -
$ 291 (291) § -
$ 291 (291) § -
b 337.300 (328.802) § 8.498
$ 337.300 (328.802) $ 8.498
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OTHER SCHEDULES

This section includes additional information on property taxes.

- Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
- Analysis of Current Tax Levy
- Secondary Market Disclosures

- Ten Largest Taxpayers
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

Less: Allowance for uncollectable taxes

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund
Ad valorem taxes - Revaluation Fund
Reconciling items:
Penalties and Interest
Collection of Old Taxes
Release
Total Reconciling Items

Total Collections and Credits

June 30, 2013

Uncollected Uncollected

Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year July 1, 2012 Additions And Credits June 30, 2013
2012-2013 $ - $ 6,933,734 § 6,625360 § 308,374
2011-2012 266,421 8,986 165,202 110,205
2010-2011 91,508 9314 41,271 59,551
2009-2010 43,756 8.075 19,035 32,796
2008-2009 28,969 7,660 12,665 23,964
2007-2008 23,682 - 2,928 20,754
2006-2007 20,913 - 2,469 18,444
2005-2006 29,999 - 1,840 28,159
2004-2005 13.015 - 473 12,542
2003-2004 11,867 - 520 11,347

2002-2003 9,220 - 9,220 -
TOTALS $ 539,350 $ 6,967,769 $ 6880983 §$ 626,136

(124,000)

$ 502,136

$ 6.868,293
75,000

(73,824)

(896)
12,410

(62,310)

$ 6,880,983



Camden County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County - Wide Levy
For the Fiseal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Original levy:

Property Taxes at Current Year Rate

Total Original Levy
Discoveries:
Current year taxes
Total Discoveries
Abatements

Current Year Taxes
Total Abatements

Total for Year

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2013

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

Total Levy
Property
excluding
County - wide Registered Registered
Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
$  1,177,505,424 0.5900% § 6947282 § 6434942 § 512340
1,177,505,424 6,947,282 6,434,942 512,340
1,826,949 0.5900% 10,779 10,779 -
1,826,949 10,779 10,779 -
(4,123,220) 0.5900% (24,327) (5.539) (18,788)
(4,123,220) (24,327) (5.539) (18,788)
$§  1,175,209,153 6,933,734 6,440,182 493,552
308.374 239,389 68,985
$ 6,625,360 § 6,200,793 § 424,567
95.55% 96.28% 86.02%
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Camden County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County - wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:

Assessment Ratio! 100 %
Real Property $ 1,043,085,143
Personal Prcqw:rty3 115,393,355
Public Service Companies? 16,730,655
Total Assessed Valuation 1,175,209,153
Tax Rate per $100 0.59
Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements)? $ 6,933,734

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists the levies by the County on
behalf and fire protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30:

Fire Protection Districts $ 103,208

! Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.

% Valuation of railroads, telephone companies and other utilities as
determined by the North Carolina Property Tax Commission.

* The levy includes penalties and multi-rate for motor vehicles.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Ten Largest Taxpayers
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2012 Percentage of
: Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpaver Type of Business Valuation Valuation
E & J Holding LLC Training Facility 3 44,773,051 50.58% %

Blue Sky Development, LLC
Black Bear Disposal, LLC
Dominion North Carolina Power
Albemarle Elec Membership Corp
Camden Square Associates
George Wood Farms, Inc.
Carolina Telephone & Telegraph
Tark & Associates

Academi Training Center, Inc.

Total

Apartment Complex
Real Estate

Utility

Utility

Real Estate

Farm

Utility

Construction

Training Facility

6,687,119
6.209.661
5,523,220
5,389,153
5,045,593
5,004,915
3.413,390
3,327,966
3,144,068

7.55%
7.02%
6.24%
6.09%
5.70%
5.65%
3.86%
3.76%
3.55%

$ 88,518,136

100.00% %
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COMPLIANCE SECTION
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and
Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Camden County, North Carolina,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprises the Camden County’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10, 2013. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the
Camden County ABC Board, as described in our report on Camden County’s financial
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are
reported separately by those auditors. The financial statements of Camden County ABC
Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
Camden County’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Camden County’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material

Members
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weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Complian ther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Camden County’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Qdompoon |, Pies, Qe ok, Qidi s> *(a., P.A.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
Wilmington, North Carolina
October 10, 2013
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Report On Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over
Compliance; In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation
Act

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Camden County’s, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in
North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect
on each of Camden County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Camden County’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Camden County’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those
standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Camden
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Camden County’s
compliance with those requirements.

Members
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Camden County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Camden County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Camden County’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Dremmpoon |, BRies, Sectt Qs ¢Ca., P4\ .

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
Wilmington, North Carolina
October 10, 2013
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Report On Compliance For Each Major State Program; Report on Internal Control Over
Compliance; In accordance with OMB Circular A-133; and the State Single Audit Implementation
Act

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Camden County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina issued by the
Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Camden
County’s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Camden County’s major state
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Camden County’s major state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133 and applicable sections
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as described in
the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation
Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Camden
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Camden County’s
compliance.

Members
American Institute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs - AICPA Division of Firms
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Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, Camden County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Camden County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Camden County’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Qrernpoon ,Biea, Qe ot ,Odhronnd (o, P01

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
Wilmington, North Carolina
October 10, 2013
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’'s report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
e  Material weakness(es) identified? __yes X no
e Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses __yes X no

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted yves _X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

° Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X no
° Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses yes _X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified.
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 __yes _X no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
93.778 Title XIX-Medicaid

66.458 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Loan Funds
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Programs $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes _X no
State Awards

Internal control over major state programs:

® Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
° Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses yes X _none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major state programs: Unqualified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with State Single Audit Implementation
Act ___yes _X no

Identification of major state programs:

N ram or Cluster

The Medical Assistance Program which is a State match on a federal program also meets the criteria
for a major state program, but this program has been included in the list of major federal programs
above.

Gold Leaf Grant
NC Department of Commerce Industrial Development Fund
NC Department of Transportation ECO Park Access Road Funds
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Corrective Action Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Status: N/A



Grantor/Pass-through

Federal Awards:

_ULS. Dept. of Agriculture
: bt

Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services:

Division of Social Services:
Administration:
State Administrative Matching Grants for
the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services:
Division of Public Health:
Direct Benefit Payments:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, & Children

Total U.S. Dept. of Agriculture

1LS, Dept.of Transportation
Federal T ; o
Passed-through the N.C. Department
of Transportation:
Highway Safety Program
Highway Safety Program

: :
Ad pras £ Chil mmml & Famili
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster
Work First Administration
Work First Service
TANF Payment and Penalties
Total TANF Cluster

N. C. Child Support Enforcement Section
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant:
Administration
Energy Assistance Payments- Direct Benefit Payments
Crisis Intervention Program
Child Welfare Services-State Grants
- Permanency Planning - Families for Kids
Social Services Block Grant - Other Service and Training
In Home Services
Independent Living Grant
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal Fed. (Direct &

CFDA Pass-through) State Lacal
10.561 71,237 71,237
10.557 18,948 -

90,185 = 71,237
20,600 16,684 - -
20,609 49,306 -
65,990 -
93.558 25,268 - 19,788
93.558 75,879 - 78,979
93.558 44,850 - 1.144
145,997 - 99,911
93563 76,456 & 39,386
93.568 4,641 & -
493.568 15,200 5 r
93.568 34,710 - .
Y3645 4,679 131 1,603
93.667 30,070 3211 11,093
B3.667 1,353 - 194
93.674 1,433 358 =



Grantor/Pass-through

Foster Care and Adoption Cluster:(Note 2)
Title IV-E Foster Care-Administration
Foster Care-Direct Benefit Payments
Adoption Assistance-Direct Benefit Payments
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster

Division of Child Development:
Subsidized Child Care {(Note 2)

Division of Social Services:
Child Care Development Fund-Administration
Division of Child Development:
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Child Care and Development Fund - Manditory
Child Care and Development Fund - Match
Total Chitd Care Development Fund Cluster

Foster Care IV-E
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
ARRA - Emergency Contingency for SSBG
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
State Appropriations
TANF - MOE
Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services:
Division of Medical Assistance:
Direct Benefit Payments:
Medical Assistance Program

Division of Social Services:
Administration;
Medical Assistance Program
State Children’s Insurance Program - N.C. Health Choice

Total U.S, Dept. of Health and Human Services

Passed-through N.C. Department of Commerce:
CDBG- Small Cities Program
Scattered Site Housing Grant

Total Dept. of Housing and Urban Development(HUD)
Passed-through N.C. Department
of Environment and Natural Resources

ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State
Revolving Funds {note 2)

Total Federal Awards
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Camden County. North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30. 2013

Federal Fed. (Direct &

CFDA Pass-through) State Local
93.658 14,287 7435 7.702
93.658 3932 1,966 1,966
93.659 20,450 5,037 6,226

38,669 14,438 15,894
93.556 73314
93.575 53,379 - -
33596 22,664 -
93.59%0 7.469 - =
156,826 - -
93.658 1,315 659
93,558 28,506 - =3
93667 151 -
93.714 - -
- 3,228 =
- 4,297
186,798 8,184
93.778 4,682,535 2,613,002 -
93.778 200,838 6,727 194,631
93.767 13,375 298 3,958
5,436,754 2,646,349 366,670
14.229 167,571 = -
167,571 - z
66,458 653,680 -
6,414,180 2,646,349 437.907




Grantor/Pass-through

State Awards:

Division of Aging and Adult Services:

County Funded Programs/Non Allocating costs
State/County Special Assistance for Adults
Passed through Albemarle Commission:

Senior Center Grant

Senior Nutrition

Division of Social Services:
State Foster Care Benefits Program

Total N. C. Department of Health and Human Services
cy Prevention

Juvenile Crime Prevention

Taotal Office of Governor

Elections Coding Grant
Total NC Dept of Administration

Office of th v

Office of State Budget and Manapement
Golden Leaf Grant

Total Office of Governor

Camden ECO Park Access Road
Dismal Swamp Welcome/Visitor Center
Taotal N. C. Dept. Of Transportation

Public School Building Capital Fund

White Goods Grant

Soil and Water Conservation Funds

Solid Waste Disposal

Scrap Tire Grant

Clean Water Management Trust Fund
Total N.C. Dept. EHNR

il
Innovation Grant

Morth Carolina Departement of Commerce

Industrial Development Fund

MN.CDept. of Insurance
SHIIP Gant
South Mills Fire Grant
Taotal N.C. Dept. of Insurance

Total State Awards

Total Federal and State Awards
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Camden County, Morth Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal Fed. (Direct &
CFDA Pass-through) State

Local

Number  Expenditures —  Expenditures — Expenditures

55,505

4,786
7.201

4,339

74,490
55,505

4339

71,831

134,334

51,907

- 51,907

- 6,002

n 6,002

5 558,844

8,547

- 558,844

B8.547

4 425,000
DOT-13 - 150,000

- 575,000

- 138,720

- 3.067
- 25,781
- 7.510
) 8,500
B 152,197

S 44,858

= 230,481

U-401 = 500,000

125,000

= 5,152
19,229

19,229

24,381

144,229

= 2,202,024

412,110

3 6,414,180 § 4.848,373

850,017
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal Fed. (Direct &
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through) State Local

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

1 Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity of Camden
County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Qrganizations and the
State Single Audit Implemenation Act. Therefare some, amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in,
or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. Benefit payments are paid directly to recipients and are not included
included in the county's basic financial statements.However, due to the county's involvement in determining eligibility, they are
considered federal awards to the county and are included on this schedule.

2 The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treaved separately for state audit requirement
purposes: Subsidized Child Care, TANF, and Foster Care and Adoption.

Camden County had the following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2013. These loan balances outstanding are also included
in the federal expenditures presented in the schedule,
Pass-through
Grantor's Amount
Program Title Number Outstanding
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds E-5RG-T-09-0236 -
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number:
New Business

Meeting Date:
Attachments:

Submitted By:
ITEM TITLE:

SUMMARY:

4.B

January 6, 2014
1 (1 Pages)
Michael Renshaw, County Manager

Camden County Schools Capital
Funding Request

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED

On December 20, 2013 the County Manager received the attached capital
funding request from Mr. Mevin Hawkins, School Superintendent. In his
memo, Superintendent Hawkins requests the release of funds from those

available through the Camden Plantation development agreement.

The proposed use of these funds, in an amount not to exceed $10,000, is for
the costs associated with the movement/relocation of electric and natural gas
utilitiesin support of the expansion of the Grandy Primary School Cafeteria.

The Camden Plantation Capital Development account currently has a
balance of $300,000. The County manager has reviewed the Camden
Plantation development agreement and has determined that the requested
capital expenditureisa permitted expense.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners
approve the requested expenditure of funds in order to move forward with

the planned expansion of the Grandy Primary School Cafeteria.




Board Members
G. Wayne White, Chair
Dawn D. Jones, Vice Chair
Christian A. Overton
Chris M. Wilson
Steve M. Needham

Address
174 Hwy 343 North
Camden, N.C. 27921-7549
Telephone (252) 335-0831
Fax (252) 331-2300
www.camden.k|2.nc.us

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Melvin L. Hawkins, Superintendent

Memo

To: Camden County/LCommissioners
From: Melvin Hawkins, Superintendent
Re: Request for Funds

Date: December 20, 2013

As you are aware, Camden County Schools is planning to expand the
Grandy Primary School cafeteria. We have already moved the mobile units
but before any construction can begin, power lines and natural gas lines
need to be relocated. We are requesting funds from the Camden
Plantation source, not to exceed $10,000 to pay for this project.

Thank you.

MH/ac

MISSION STATEMENT
The Camden County Public Schools, in partnership with home and community, will educate all to be productive citizens in an ever-changing global society.
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MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners gY[;uckW "
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G M eiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
[tem Number: 4.C
VOTE:
New Business S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 '\R/I_'xgll-'n?;k
Attachments: 3 (9 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Donna Stewart, TDA Chair ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Department of the Army License for
the Operation/M aintenance of I nterpretive Sign
Along the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway
(Dismal Swamp Canal, South Mills)
SUMMARY:

Donna Stewart, Chair of the Tourism Development Authority, will be
presenting the attached license agreement for ingress and egress for the
construction, operation, and maintenance of an interpretive sign depicting
the Civil War Battle of South Mills.

For several years the County and visitors have enjoyed the benefits of the
existing interpretive sign marking the Battle of South Mills (see exhibits).
The U.S Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has recently required that the
County enter in to a new lease/license agreement to allow said interpretive
sign to continue to be displayed along the Dismal Swamp Canal.

The USACE has proposed the attached license agreement which will grant
the County the ability to maintain the existing sign at its current location for
a period of five (5) years, beginning February 1, 2014. There will be no
additional costs associated with this new license agreement other than the
normal routine maintenance of the sign.

RECOMMENDATION:

As Chair of the Camden Tourism Development Authority, Mrs. Stewart
recommends that the Camden County Board of Commissioners authorize
her to execute the license agreement as prepared by the USACE.
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License No. 65-3-14-18

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY LICENSE
ATLANTIC INTRACOASTAL WATERWAY
DISMAL SWAMP CANAL
SOUTH MILLS, CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY, hereinafter referred to as the Secretary, under authority
of the general administrative authority of the Secretary, hereby grants to the COUNTY OF CAMDEN,
apolitical subdivision of the State of North Carolina, with its principal office at 117 NC Highway 343,
Camden, North Carolina 27921, hereinafter referred to as the grantee, alicense for Ingress and Egress
for the Construction, Operation, and Maintenance of a Sign Depicting the Civil War Battle of
South Mills over, across, in and upon lands of the United States, asidentified on EXHIBIT(S) "A",
“A-1”, and “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof, hereinafter referred to as the premises.

THIS LICENSE is granted subject to the following conditions.
1. TERM

Thislicense is granted for aterm of Five (5) years, beginning February 1, 2014, and ending
January 31, 2019, but revocable at will by the Secretary.

2. CONSIDERATION

The consideration for this license shall be the construction, operation and maintenance of the
premises for the benefit of the general public in accordance with the terms and conditions hereinafter set
forth.

3. NOTICES

All correspondence and notices to be given pursuant to this license shall be addressed, if to the
grantee to the Chairman, Camden Tourism Development Authority, P.O. Box 190, Camden, North
Carolina 27921 and if to the United States, to the District Engineer, Attention: Chief, Real Estate
Division, Kansas City District, 860 Federal Building, 601 East 12th Street, Kansas City, Missouri
64106-2896; or as may from time to time otherwise be directed by the parties. Notice shall be deemed
to have been duly given if and when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope, or wrapper, addressed as
aforesaid, and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States
Postal Service.

4. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Except as otherwise specifically provided, any reference herein to "Secretary”, "District
Engineer", or "said officer" shall include their duly authorized representatives. Any reference to
"grantee” shall include any duly authorized representatives. Any reference to "Operations Manager”
shall be interpreted to be the Corps of Engineers Operations Manager, Dismal Swamp Canal, North
Carolina, and include his’/her duly authorized representatives.
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License No. 65-3-14-18

5. SUPERVISION BY THE DISTRICT ENGINEER
The use and occupancy of the premises shall be subject to the general supervision and approval

of the District Engineer, Norfolk District, hereinafter referred to as said officer, and subject to such rules
and regulations as may be prescribed from time to time by said officer.

6. APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The grantee shall comply with all applicable Federal, state, county and municipal laws,
ordinances and regulations wherein the premises are located.

7. CONDITIONAL USE BY GRANTEE
The exercise of the privileges herein granted shall be:
a. without cost or expense to the United States;
b. subject to the right of the United States to improve, use or maintain the premises.
C. subject to other outgrants of the United States on the premises.

d. persona to the grantee, and thislicense, or any interest therein, may not be transferred or
assigned.

8. CONDITION OF PREMISES

The grantee acknowledges that it has inspected the premises, knows its condition, and
understands that the same is granted without any representations or warranties whatsoever and without
any obligation on the part of the United States.

9. COST OF UTILITIES

The grantee shall pay the cost, as determined by the officer having immediate supervision over
the premises, of producing and/or supplying any utilities and other services furnished by the
Government or through Government-owned facilities for the use of the grantee, including the grantee's
proportionate share of the cost of operation and maintenance of the Government-owned facilities by
which such utilities or services are produced or supplied. The Government shall be under no obligation
to furnish utilities or services. Payment shall be made in the manner prescribed by the officer having
such jurisdiction.

10. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY
The grantee shall keep the premisesin good order and in a clean, safe condition by and at the
expense of the grantee. The grantee shall be responsible for any damage that may be caused to the

property of the United States by the activities of the grantee under this license, and shall exercise due
diligence in the protection of all property located on the premises against fire or damage from any and

2
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all other causes. Any property of the United States damaged or destroyed by the grantee incident to the
exercise of the privileges herein granted shall be promptly repaired or replaced by the granteeto a
condition satisfactory to said officer, or at the election of said officer, reimbursement made therefor by
the grantee in an amount necessary to restore or replace the property to a condition satisfactory to said
officer.

11. INDEMNITY

The United States shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuriesto persons which
may arise from or be incident to the exercise of the privileges herein granted, or for damagesto the
property of the grantee, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of the grantee's officers,
agents, or employees or others who may be on the premises at their invitation or the invitation of any
one of them, and the grantee shall hold the United States harmless from any and all such claims not
including damages due to the fault or negligence of the United States or its contractors.

12. RESTORATION

On or before the expiration of thislicense or its termination by the grantee, the grantee shall
vacate the premises, remove the property of the grantee, and restore the premises to a condition
satisfactory to said officer. If, however, thislicenseisrevoked, the grantee shall vacate the premises,
remove said property and restore the premises to the aforesaid condition within such time as the said
officer may designate. In either event, if the grantee shall fail or neglect to remove said property and
restore the premises, then, at the option of said officer, the property shall either become the property of
the United States without compensation therefor, or said officer may cause the property to be removed
and no claim for damages against the United States or its officers or agents shall be created by or made
on account of such removal and restoration work. The grantee shall also pay the United States on
demand any sum which may be expended by the United States after the expiration, revocation, or
termination of this license in restoring the premises.

13. NON-DISCRIMINATION

a. The grantee shall not discriminate against any person or persons because of race, color, age,
sex, handicap, national origin or religion.

b. The grantee, by acceptance of thislicense, isreceiving atype of Federal assistance and,
therefore, hereby gives assurance that it will comply with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C.
Section 6102); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794); and all
reguirements imposed by or pursuant to the Directive of the Department of Defense (32 CFR Part 195)
issued as Department of Defense Directive 5500.11 and 1020.1, and Army Regulation 600-7. This
assurance shall be binding on the grantee, its agents, successors, transferees, and assignees.

14. TERMINATION

This license may be terminated by the grantee at any time by giving the District Engineer at least
ten (10) days notice in writing provided that no refund by the United States of any consideration
previously paid shall be made and provided further, that in the event that said notice is not given at least

3
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ten (10) days prior to the rental due date, the grantee shall be required to pay the consideration for the
period shown in the Condition on CONSIDERATION.

15. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

a. Within the limits of their respective legal powers, the parties to this license shall protect the
premises against pollution of itsair, ground and water. The grantee shall comply with any laws,
regulations, conditions, or instructions affecting the activity hereby authorized if and when issued by the
Environmental Protection Agency, or any Federal, state, interstate or local governmental agency having
jurisdiction to abate or prevent pollution. The disposal of any toxic or hazardous materials within the
premisesis specifically prohibited. Such regulations, conditions, or instructions in effect or prescribed
by said Environmental Protection Agency, or any Federal, state, interstate or local governmental agency
are hereby made a condition of thislicense. The grantee shall not discharge waste or effluent from the
premises in such a manner that the discharge will contaminate streams or other bodies of water or
otherwise become a public nuisance.

b. The grantee will use all reasonable means available to protect the environment and natural
resources, and where damage nonethel ess occurs from the grantee's activities, the grantee shall be liable
to restore the damaged resources.

c¢. The grantee must obtain approval in writing from said officer before any pesticides or
herbicides are applied to the premises.

16. HISTORIC PRESERVATION

The grantee shall not remove or disturb, or cause or permit to be removed or disturbed, any
historical, archeological, architectural or other cultura artifacts, relics, remains or objects of antiquity.
In the event such items are discovered on the premises, the grantee shall immediately notify said officer
and protect the site and the material from further disturbance until said officer gives clearance to
proceed.

17. DISCLAIMER

Thislicense is effective only insofar as the rights of the United States in the premises are
concerned; and the grantee shall obtain any permit or license which may be required by Federa, state, or
local statute in connection with the use of the premises. It is understood that the granting of thislicense
does not preclude the necessity of obtaining a Department of the Army permit for activities which
involve the discharge of dredge or fill material or the placement of fixed structures in the waters of the
United States, pursuant to the provisions of Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 3 March 1899
(33 USC Section 403), and Section 404 of the Clean Waters Act (33 USC Section 1344).

18. SPECTIAL CONDITIONS

In the event this license is renewed by asimilar instrument, then Condition No. 12 hereof, will
not be applicable.
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License No. 65-3-14-18
THIS LICENSE is not subject to Title 10, United States Code, Section 2662, as amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, | have hereunto set my hand by authority of the Secretary of the
Army, this day of , 20

DONNA L. CARRIER-TAL
Chief, Real Estate Office
Real Estate Contracting Officer

THIS LICENSE is aso executed by the grantee this day of , 20

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA

BY:

TITLE:
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License No. 65-3-14-18

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I (name) certify that | am the (title) of
COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA, that (signator of outgrant)
who signed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the grantee was then (title

of signator of outgrant) Of COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA. | further certify that the said
officer was acting within the scope of powers delegated to this governing body of the grantee in

executing said instrument.

COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA

Date:

Clerk or Appropriate Official

(AFFIX SEAL)
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SOUTH MILLS, NC




CANAL DRIVE -—-}




DAL 1L OUOF DOULHRE MiLLsS

Fight for the Canal

BURNSI'DE EXPEDITION

Early in 1862, Union Gen Ambrose

canal here. Burnside assigned Gen.
E. Burnside led an expedition to

Jesse L. Reno the task, and before
dawn on April 19, Reno led a four-
gun battery and more than 3.000
men north from Elizabeth City.
Three miles southeast of
here, Reno encountered Confederate
Col. Ambrose R, Wright's 3rd
Georgia Regiment and North Car-
olina militiamen (about 750 alto-
gether) in a diteh behind a fence,
obscured by burni ng brush in
anather ditch in front. A Confeder-
ate battery commanded the road.
After several hours of skirmi
Union Col. Rush C. Hawkins
ordered his 9th New York Zouaves

to charge the bat tery, but

more ammunition. The Federals 1‘__"—_'_ Bk
bivouacked on the field but marched
back to Elizabeth City during the
night when rumers of a counterat-
tack reached Reno. The canal
remained intact, the Confederates
lost only 28 killed and wounded, and
the Federals suffered 127 casualties,

secure the coast of North Carolina
and occupy strategically important
sites such as New Bern and Eliza-
beth City. After Burnside learned
of the March 9 clash bet ween LSS
Monator and CSS Virginia (formerly
Merrimack) in Hampton Roads,
Virginia, he became concerned that
Confederate ironclads might attack
is right flank from Virginia via the
smal Swamp Canal. He decided

lestroy these Jocks and close the

Reno's claims

to the contrary,

South Mills was | mewse
clearly a South- |

ern victory, |_

but no Confed-

erate ironelads |

ever used the

canal and no

shing,

|
strong serious threat |
& | il I
Confederate fire drove them back was ever mount- | g ® Camden
. . \ Ty Counhouse
with heavy casualties. After more

fighting, Wright withdrew
Creek to await reinfore

wrnsrds f

ed to Burnside’s |
to JGV.S Col. Rush C, Hawkins,

: _ flank from L,
clad in the Zounves
ements and

colorful uniform

e, wJesse Reno

I _ = -5 &
this direction



150

MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners gY[;uckW "
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G M eiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
[tem Number: 4.D
VOTE:
New Business S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 I\R/I_'xgll-'n?;k
Attachments: 2 (2 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Donna Stewart, TDA Chair ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Land Gift to County, PIN
01.7998.00.53.5114.0000
SUMMARY:

The County Tourism Development Authority recently contacted the owner of the
above referenced property, Mrs. Fannie B. Moore, to inquire as to the possibility of
utilizing the vacant property for the placement of historical interpretive markers
reflecting the Battle of South Mills and the contributions of Moses Grandy and the
historic Underground Railroad.

Mrs. Moore has sinceindicated that sheisinterested in donating the land as a gift to
Camden County. The property islisted as a homesite of approximately one (1) acre
and is currently valued at $17,500. The property is situated near the intersection of
Nosay Rd. and HWY 343 North.

The Camden Tourism Development Authority (TDA) isinterested in accepting this
donation and placing interpretive markers on the site for the enjoyment and
education of residentsand visitors.

Should the Board of Commissioners desire to proceed with accepting this land
donation, the County Attorney has recommended that a notarized letter from the
property owner Fannie B. Moore be requested indicating that she is donating said
parcel and isthe sole heir to the property.

The Camden TDA intends to place interpretive markers on the parcel for both the
Battle of South Millsaswell asMoses Grandy. The

Camden TDA will be responsible for the costs associated with the maintenance of
the property and interpretive markers.



RECOMMENDATION:
151
As Chair of the Camden Tourism Development Authority, Mrs. Stewart
recommends that the Camden County Board of Commissioners authorize
her to execute the license agreement as prepared by the USACE.
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Camden County, North Carolina SIS T
Pox: Ao 1257 Camcen NG FIEN (25528 1019 DEED ROGK PAGE FLAT K PG EXEMPT
PARCELID CARD BLOG 158 443
01.7998.00.53.5114.0000 | 1 o 1 L ACCOUNT
0 lZ2/284,/20135
CVUNER INFORMATION
BARCO EMMA ROACH
C/0 FANNIE B MOORE
PO BOX 3693
CHULA VISTA CA 91909 Mo Image Found
NOTES
LEGAL DESCRIPTION LaT
i EALES INFORMATION e
DATE]
BUILDING INFORMATION FRICE g0
STRUCTURE] STORIES| 0. 000 QUALIFIED *
FOUNDATION CONDITIN
EXT SIDING GRADE
ROOF STYLE YEAR BUILT| 0
ROOF MATERIAL EFFECTNE YEAR| 00
INSIDE WALLS DERT| 0
FLOORING BaTHS| 0. 00
HEAT| FIREPLACES
HEAT FUEL
AIRCOND TOTALSRFT| 0
LAND
ZONE | coDE | DESCRIFTION [FRONT [DERTH [ UNTS I RATE I WALUE
FB-3-2 11120 HOMESITE (1 ACRE) 1.000 4 $17,500.00 £17,500
dcores 1.000 Total Land Value $17.500
TR : : nanmnsa:TInns
ZONE | copE ] DESCRIFTION [FRONT [DEPTH | UNTS I RATE I VALUE cE PRTEE ST Lid s e
B-3-2 11120 HOMESITE (1 ACRE) L.o00 & $17,500.00 £17,500
Total Land Use Value  §17.500
OUT BUILDINGS
DESCRIFTION [ LENGTH [ winTH | UNITS ADJ RATE [ vERR I WALUE
[OTHER FEATURES ;
TR Total Sections Value $0
TOTAL PARCELWALUE
ASSESSED
LAND £17,500 ALE §17,500
BUILDING 0 == e
OUT BUILDINGE; &0 DEFFERED
TLXABLE i
s, !
Total Out EBuilding Value $0 VALTE $17,500




GOMAPS - Camden County NC Public Access
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Monday, December 30 2013
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***WARNING: THISISNOT A SURVEY I***
Thismap is prepared for the inventory of real property found within this jurisdiction, and is compiled from
recorded deeds, plats, and other public records and data. Users of this map are hereby notified that the
aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the information
contained on this map. The County and mapping company assume no legal responsibility for the information
contained on this map.
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number:
New Business

Meeting Date:
Attachments:

Submitted By:
ITEM TITLE:

SUMMARY:

4.E

January 6, 2014
10 (10 Pages)
Tax Administration

Monthly Tax Report

Monthly Tax Report for October & November 2013.

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED
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MONTHLY REPORT OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR TO THE
CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

OUTSTANDING TAX DELINQUENCIES BY YEAR

YEAR REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY
2012 143,851.73 46,661.27
2011 64,814.54 23,427.22
2010 37,582.18 16,417.34
2009 17,089.91 15,120.10
2008 12,912.29 6,777.69
2007 9,516.80 10,511.36
2006 2,882.63 14,653.98
2005 2,179.23 27,137.24
2004 1,111.91 12,249.59

2003 959.38 11,212.34
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TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAX UNCOLLECTED

TOTAL PERSONAL PROPERTY UNCOLLECTED

TEN YEAR PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

COLLECTION FOR 2013 vs. 2012

LAST 3 YEARS PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

2012 97.32%
2011 98.75%
2010 99.28%

THIRTY LARGEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "A"

THIRTY OLDEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "B"

292,900.60

184,168.13

99.28%

25,246.93 vs. 14,555.93
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EFFORTS AT COLLECTION IN THE LAST 30 DAYS
ENDING October I2013
BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

270 NUMBER DELINQUENCY NOTICES SENT

58 FOLLOWUP REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT SENT

13 NUMBER OF WAGE GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

2 NUMBER OF BANK GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

22 NUMBER OF PERSONAL PHONE CALLS MADE BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

TO DELINQUENT TAXPAYER

0 NUMBER OF PERSONAL VISITS CONDUCTED (COUNTY OFFICES)

1 PAYMENT AGREEMENTS PREPARED UNDER AUTHORITY OF

TAX ADMINISTRATOR

2 NUMBER OF PAYMENT AGREEMENTS RECOMMENDED TO

COUNTY ATTORNEY

0 NUMBER OF CASES TURNED OVER TO COUNTY ATTORNEY FOR

COLLECTION (I.D. AND STATUS)

4 REQUEST FOR EXECUTION FILES WITH CLERK OF COURTS

2 NUMBER OF JUDGMENTS FILED
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Taxpayar Nama

HALSTEAD VENTURE PARTNERS, LLC
GILBERT WAYNE OVERTON &
POTOMAC TIMBER INVESTMENTS #17
CHARLES MILLER HEIRS

KIMBERLEE SAWYER

BFFIE PAULINE CREEKMORE
SEAMARK INC.

AUDREY TILLETT

WI1LLIE LAVERNE TURNER

CARL HARRINGTON

SEVEN FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
W1LLIE L. TURNER ETAL

JARICE L CALDWELL

BERTIE TAYLOR HEIRS

TONYA HUCHES HARRIS

VERNCON L. & ERDITH W. SYLVESTER
GERTIE LEE & JONOLA T ROUNTREER
LASELLE ETHERIDGE SR.

MAIDIA 5. CECIL HEIRS

JAMES DL, FORBES 11

HERSEY LYN BAEBER

RUBY BAUM BARNES

ODELL TRAFTON

SANDERS CROSSING OF CAMDEN CO
BRITTON OVERTON

JOYCE G. MOQRE

JAMES E RHODES

WILL1AM DAVID BYRUM

CAROLYN MCDANIEL

DRACHMA, INC & SIMB0ON BAAT, LLOC

Delinquencies Top-30 Unpaid

Uity
CAMDEN
SHITOH
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SH1L.0M
CAMDEN
SHILOH
SHILCH
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SQUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SOUFFH MILLS
SHILOH
SH1LOE
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SHILOH

SET Lo
SOUTH MILLS
CARMDIN
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHILOH
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHILOH

Property Address
431 158 US W

187 THOMAS POINT RD
HORSESHCOE RD
HORSESHCE RD

113 GLEN DR

258 158 Us ®B
HOLLY RD

171 NECK RD

102 HORSESHOE RD
150  SAND HILIS HED
103 RIVER RD
1289 343 HWY W
19% CULFEPPER RD
HORSESROE RD

253 WICKHAM RD
453 NECK RD

263 BELCROQSS RD
le68 BUSHELL RD
13132  TROTMAN RD
127 ALDER BRANCH RD
214 HORSESHO®E ED
304 343 HWY 3
21%  SCOTLAND RB
117 OTTERS PL
103 WESLEY RD
144 GUMBERRY RD
111 CATALAN DR
112 HIGH RD
SCOTLAND RD

343 HWY 2

ot
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Parcel Number

03-B899-00-45-2682.
O3-835L0-00-835-83737.
01-7289-0G-312-0137.
03-8%52-08-56-7217.
03-8%943-04-93-8214.
SL-7050-00-60-5052.
GL-8255-00-13-7844.
1980900451097,
Q1-7090-00-95-5242.
04-8983-00-61-19498,
03-9809-00-17-2462.
01-7998-01-08-8621L.
01-729%-00-32-3510.
G2-B935-00-24-7426,
01--7989-0G3~-30-8984 .
02-8945-00-41- 2060,
02-8936-00-00-8526.
0:-79%%2-00-12-8596.
01-7982-04-60-1054 .,
03-8965-00-62-8349,
03-8823-50-07-852%9.
03-88922-00-37-0046.
03L-7989-00-01-1714.
04 -B972-00-56-2710.
02-8944-00-14-2584%,
0:-7080-00-62-1977.
01-7989-04-60-014%.
02-89%34-04-731-8470.
0:-7988-00-91-0179.
02-8935-0:-12-4055.
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Unpaid Amount
6,120,
6,094 .
3,884,
3765,
1,848,

928,
BEH&.
2437,
215,
173.
111,
4,509,
1,542,
B30
5,971,
3,385,
2,734,
31,251,
BL3.
814,
298 .
134 .
7,239,
2,851,
2.,77%.
2,630,
2010,
2,017,
1,304,
q466.
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Taxpayer MName

SEAMARK INC.

AURREY TILLETT

BERTIE TAYLOR HEIRS
TONYS HUOGHES HARRIS

L. F. JORDAN HEIES

JOE GRIFFIN HEIRS
MARTE MERCER

MICHARL OBERE

JOHN F. SAWYHER HETRS
WILLIAMSBURE VACATION
TODD ALLEN RIGGE
WILLIE L. TURNER ETAL
LEAH BARO

BERNICE PUGH

WILLIE LAVERNE TURNER
LASELLE ETHERIDGE SR.
COELL TRAFTON

MOSES MITCHEDLL HEIRES
CHRISTINE RIDDICK
JAMES R. WILLIAMS

BAUL ALILATRE

BLIZABETH LONG

CHARLES MILLER HEILRS
JAMES 3. FORBES IT
RURY BAUM BARKES
SANDERS CROSEING OF CAMDEN OO
CHARLES TURNER

JEMES MILTON JONES ETAL
THOMAS L. BROTHERE HEIRS
BNDERSON CARTWRIGHT BE.

Delinguencies Top-30 Gldest

SHILOH
SHILOH
SQUTH MILLS
SHITOM
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SHILOB
S0UTH MILL
SHILOB
SHITOH
SOUTH MILLS
SQUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDRN
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SHILOH
SHI1LOH
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOHE
CAMBEN
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN

Property Address

HOLLY RD

173  NECE RD
HORSESHOE ED
253 WICKHAM RD
108 CAMDEN AVE
117 GRIFFIN RD

IVY NECK Rb
CENTERPOINT ED
OLD SWaMP RD
CAMDEN POINT RD
LITTLE CREEX RDB

12893 343 NO W

1%5 BUNKER HILL RB
113 BOURBON ST

102 HORSESHOE RD
168 PRUSHELIL RD

215  BOOTLAND RD

16% BUNKER HILL HD
10% BLOCDFIELD RD
SANDY HOOCK RD
SNAPDRAGON

HIBISCUS

HORSESHOE RD

127  ALDER BEANCH RD
304 343 HWY S

117 OTTERS PL

131 COMMUNITY DR
267  COUNTRY QLUB RD
271  SLEEPY BOLLOW RD
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MONTHLY REPORT OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR TO THE
CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

OUTSTANDING TAX DELINQUENCIES BY YEAR

YEAR REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY
2012 132,228.41 42,979.78
2011 59,325.36 23,112.93
2010 34,520.33 16,417.34
2009 15,464.69 15,120.10
2008 12,027.15 6,777.69
2007 9,295.87 10,511.36
2006 2,879.15 14,653.98
2005 2,179.23 27,053.20
2004 1,111.91 12,249.59

2003 959.38 11,212.34
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TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAX UNCOLLECTED

TOTAL PERSONAL PROPERTY UNCOLLECTED

TEN YEAR PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

COLLECTION FOR 2013 vs. 2012

LAST 3 YEARS PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

2012 97.53%
2011 98.83%
2010 99.32%

THIRTY LARGEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "A"

THIRTY OLDEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "B"

269,991.48

180,088.31

99.32%

15,219.75 vs. 10,294.26
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EFFORTS AT COLLECTION IN THE LAST 30 DAYS
ENDING November I2013
BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

234  NUMBER DELINQUENCY NOTICES SENT

44  FOLLOWUP REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT SENT

13 NUMBER OF WAGE GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

2 NUMBER OF BANK GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

23 NUMBER OF PERSONAL PHONE CALLS MADE BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

TO DELINQUENT TAXPAYER

0 NUMBER OF PERSONAL VISITS CONDUCTED (COUNTY OFFICES)

1 PAYMENT AGREEMENTS PREPARED UNDER AUTHORITY OF

TAX ADMINISTRATOR

] NUMBER OF PAYMENT AGREEMENTS RECOMMENDED TO

COUNTY ATTORNEY

2 NUMBER OF CASES TURNED OVER TO COUNTY ATTORNEY FOR

COLLECTION (I.D. AND STATUS)

4 REQUEST FOR EXECUTION FILES WITH CLERK OF COURTS

3 NUMBER OF JUDGMENTS FILED
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02-8923-00-39-3774.
03-8971-00-12-0G477.
0L-7379-00-61-73548.
0L-7982-00~01-2734.
03-8853-03-12-3791.
02-B8935-02-76-2334,
03-889%-00-45-2682.
03-8852-00-95-8737.
0X-75989-03-30-8%084 .
01-7998-01-08-8621.
0L-7080-04-49-5646.
01-7989-00-12-0137.
038264 -00-5%6-7217.
02-8943-031-26-3088.
03-8%62-00-55-2255.,
02-8945-00-54-109%,
02-8945-00-41-20660C.
03-83953-04-81-9832.
03-8972-00-56-9710.
03-7979-00-94-6109%,
03-8936-00-00-8526 .
01-7080-00-62-1977.
05-8972-40-51-8423,
02-8935-03-42-2055.
03-8990-30-08-7233 .,
03-9809-00~23-8838.
02-8936-00-2%5-4428.
03-8982-01-4%-103G.
02-8944-50-21-8404.
G1-7989-04-560-0149.
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Taxpayer Name

HALSTEAD VENTURE PARTNERS, LL{O
GILBERT WAYNE OVERTON &
POTOMAL TIMBER INVESTMENTS #17
CHARDES MILLER HEIRS

KIMBERLEE SAWYER

EFFIE PALULINE CREEKMORE
SEAMARK INC.

AUDREY TILLETT

WILL1E LAVEENE TURNER

WILLIE L. TURNER ETAL

JANICE L. CALDWRELL

BERTIE TAYLOR HEIRS

TONYA HUGHES HARRIS

SEVEN FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
VERNON L. & EDITH W. SYLVESTER
GERTIE LEE & JONQLA T ROUNTREE
LASELLE ETHERIDGE SR,

MAIDIA S. CECIL HEIRS

JARMES D, FORBES IT

HERBEY LYN BARBER

ORELL TRAFTON

SANDERS CROSSING OF CAMDEN CQO
BRITTON OVERTON

JOYCE G, MOORE

JAMES E RHODES

WILLIAM DAVID BYRUM

CAROLYN MCDANIEL

DRACHMA, INC & SIMSON BAATY,BLC
CARL. HARRINGTON

CHARLES TURNER

Delinguencies Top-30 Unpaild

City

CAMDEN
SHILOH
SOUTHE MILLS
SOUTE MILLS
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHILOH
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SCUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
S0UTH MILLS
SHILOB
CAMDEN
SHI1IOH
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SEILOB
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHELCH
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHILOH
CRAMDEN
SOUTH MILLE

Property Addrzss
431 158 Ys W

187  THOMAS pPOINT RD
HORSESHOE RD

BORSESHOE RED

312 GLEN DR

258 158 U5 B
HOLLY RD

171 NECK RED

102 HCORSESHOE RD
1283 343 HWY N
123  CULPEPPER RD

HORSESHOE RD

253 WICEHAM RD
141 RIVER RD

453 NECK RD

263 BELCROSS RD
l6g RBUSHELL ED
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Unpaid Amount

6,120.64
€,094.37
3,884,487
3,768 G2
1,848.26
426.12
566,99
242 .63
215 .04
173 .82
111.52
4,50%.02
1,542,592
507,86
5,971.73
3,385.04
2,734.32
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Taxpayer Name

SEAMARK INC.

AUDREY TILLETT

BERTIE TAYLOR HEIRS

TONYA HUGHES HARRIS

L. P. JORDAN HEIRS

JOE GRIFFIN HEIRS

MARIE MER(ER

MICHEAZL OBER

GOHN F. SAWYER HEIRS
WILLITAMSBURG VACATION

TODD ALLEN RIGGE

WILLIE I.. TURNER ETAL

LEAH BARCO

BERNICE PUGH

WILLTE LAVERNE TURNER
LABRLLE BTHERIDGE SR.

CDELL TRAFTON
MOSES MITCHELL HEIRS
CHRISTINE RIDDICK
JAMES R, WILLIAMS
Eall ALLAYRE
ELIZABETH LONG
CHARLES MILLER HEIRS
JAMES . FORBES TT
SANDERS CROSSING OF CAMDEN CC
CHARLES TURNER

JAMES MILTON JONES ETAL
THOMAS L. BROTHERS HEIRS
ANDERSCON CARTWRIGHT SR.
ISAAC COSTON

Delinguencies Top-30 OGldest

SHILON
SHILOH
SOUTH MTLLS
SHELOYM
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SHILCH
SOUTHE
SHILOH
SHILCH
SOUTH MILLS
S0UTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
ST MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
GHIT.OH
BHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOY
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILES

MITL

Property Address

HOLLY RD

171 NECK RD
HORSESHOE KB
253 WICKHAM RD
iog  CAMDEN AVE
117 GRIFFIN RD
IVY NECK RD
CENTEREDINT RD
QLD SWAMP RD
CAMDEN POINT RD

LITTLE CREEX RD
1289 343 NCO W

135 RBUNKER HILL
113 BROURBON ST
102 HORSESHOE RD
168 BUSHELL RD
21%  SCOTLAND RD
165 BUNKER HILL RD
105  RLOORFIELD RD
SANDY HCOOK RD
SNAPDRAGON
HIBXSCUS

HORSESHOE RD

127  ALDER BRANCH RD

1i%  COTTERS PL

1311 COMMUNITY DR
267  COUNTRY CLUE RD
271  SLEEREPY HOLLOW

NORTH SIDE RD
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MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners EY[;uckwa“
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
[tem Number : 5A
VOTE:
Board Appointments S. Duckwall
G. Me|gg_s
M eeting Date: January 6, 2014 E{"_'Q"r‘;,-Ln?;‘k
Attachments: 2 (2 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Administration ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: North River Watershed Advisory

Committee Appointments

SUMMARY:

Troy Leary and Dewane Berry have filed volunteer formsfor and need to be
appointed to the North River Watershed Advisory Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.
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COUNTY

Application for Citizen Service - Volunteer Form

If you are a citizen of Camden County and wouid like to serve on one of the County’s boards or commissions, please
complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, mall to P.O. Box 190,
Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail; mrenshaw@camdencountync gov.

Name //‘06/ /é&f@"s/
Maiting Address 352 N 5@:‘30/(/ /760[ EO/

Township you live in: SAau)bafG
Telephone (home} S <@ . 33( - 35: Y ¢/ {business),
Emait address 7"/{@(5/ 1972 @@ma»‘!. com

Are you a registered voter@ Ao
Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes @

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or
commission:

Board or Commissions upon which you are interested in serving:
North River Watershed Advisory Committee

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the
by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of
your interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy
occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County government.

Signature ; ;J A//,;»(xzt), Date // A /'S

Created 8/11/2009
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CAMDEN
COUNTY

Application for Citizen Service - Volunteer Form
If you are a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please

complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, mail to P.O. Box 190,
Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail; mrenshaw@camdencountync.gov.

Name 0~€ wah e gﬁ‘ff?/
Mailing Address PO Eo X ég

Township you live in: C)C?m%n
Telephone (home) 025;) 20 7- CQQS{» (business),

Email address

Are you a registered voter?@ No

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or
commission: %du )//4\0 drea /pfdg/m? 5 oo //

Board or Commissions upon which you are interested in serving:
North River Watershed Advisory Committee

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the
by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of
your interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy
occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County government.

Signature M gy/ Date /2-/6 - /_'?

Created 8/11/2009




168

MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners EY[;uckwa“
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
[tem Number : 5.B
VOTE:
Board Appointments S. Duckwall
G. Me|gg_s
M eeting Date: January 6, 2014 E{"_'Q"r‘;,-Ln?;‘k
Attachments: 1 (1 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Administration ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Albemarle Commission Re-
appointment
SUMMARY:

The Albemarle Commission Board is requesting the re-appointment of Vice
Chairman Michael McL ain.

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.
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@LBEMARLE

Tracey Johnson C O MM | S S I O N Bert Banks

Board Chair The Sound of Progress Executive Director

December 2, 2013

Mr. Michael R. Renshaw, Manager
Camden County

P.O. Box 130

Camden, NC 27921

Dear Mr. Renshaw:

Camden Caunty’s representative on the Albemarle Commission Board Is Michael McLain who
replaced Clayton Riggs whose term was scheduled to end December 31, 2013. Mr, MclLain, if your Board
chooses, can be appointed to serve the next two years (2014-2015) or another elected officlal can be
selected to serve.

Since Camden’s at-large term has expired, Mr. Bill Norton will be coming off the Board.
If you could notify us in writing of your Board’s appointment selection, it would be appreciated.
I look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Ruth Menge!
Clerk to the Board

CC: Camden County Clerk to the Board

512 South Church Street P.0. Box 646 Hertford, NC 27944 Phone: 252-426-5753 Fax: 252-426-5435 www.albemartecommisslon.org

Proudly serving Northeastern NC Counties: Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number:

Consent Agenda

Meeting Date:
Attachments:

Submitted By:
ITEM TITLE:

SUMMARY:

2013-2014-BA013

6.A

January 6, 2014
1 (1 Pages)
Finance Department

Budget Amendments

JCPC Budget Revisions

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED
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2013-14-BA017
CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North
Carolinathat the following amendment be madeto the annual budget ordinance for
thefiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Section 1. To amend the General Fund asfollows:

AMOUNT
ACCT NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF ACCT INCREASE DECREASE
Expenses:
106200-503000 Part Time Salaries $1,023.00
106200-506000 FICA $ 78.00
106200-531000 Gas & Oil $500.00
106200-513000 Utilities $ 60.00
106200-514000 Trave $ 78.00
106200-570002 Crown Kids $392.00
106200-569000 Teen Court $ 251.00
106200-554000 I nsurance $ 51.00
106200-567000 Camp $391.00

Thiswill result in a decrease of $0.00 in the Contingency of the General Fund.
Balancein Contingency $60,733.00.
Section 2. Copiesof thisbudget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the

Governing Board, and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their
direction. Adopted this 6™ day of November, 2014.

Clerk to Board of Commissioners Chairman, Board of Commissioners
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number: 6.B

Consent Agenda

Meeting Date: January 6, 2014
Attachments: 1 (1 Pages)

Submitted By: Tax Administration
ITEM TITLE: Tax Collection Report
SUMMARY:

November 2013 report.
RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED
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Tax Collection Report

November 2013

Name of Accbunt

Day Amount Amount
1 10,925.71 14,317.47
4 9,134.43 2432381 ]
- ) 11,428.96 $1.85 — Refund i
L B 10,012.59 6,156.82/$20.00 - Refund
6 14,342 14 2,915.63
7 18,370.47 54,652.02
8 19,076.01 5,996.80/$3.69 — Refund
12 20,334.73 14,507.90/$0.29 - Refund N
13 12,674.61 ) ) -
14 17,504.68
15 6,844.42 .
i 18 29,592.60 ]
19 838.86 B - B
- 7,179.39 ) - o
64,979.61 R
20 287,255.56 _
21 9,491.47 1,156.96 -
_ ) 173,091.55 $1,663.25 — Refund - -
22 10,458.95 7,388.88/30.02 —Refund
25 7.402.67 11,039.38)$5.34 — Refund/ $3.00-short ]
26 7,215.36 1,606.26 ]
) 6,482.67 o B
2 21467
o 12,038.73 3.061.72 - )
438.55 -
| ——— 1
|
i e e = |
|
) $767,329.39 $147,123.65 2 l
) $914,453.04
-$1,694.44 Refund i —
_____ N $0.00 Over
$3.00/Shortage
-$474.72 Adjustment Drawer 99
 $912,286.88

“_‘;L/B“I_B

Date :

Submitted\%?y: C%V,uzé . (oo

Approved by:

Date:
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number:

Consent Agenda

Meeting Date:
Attachments:

Submitted By:
ITEM TITLE:

SUMMARY:

6.C

January 6, 2014
1 (1 Pages)
Tax Administration

Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases

November 2013 report.

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED
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Name Amount Type.
Reason No.

Adam Patrick Hunter $131.76 Pick-Up/16406
Military Exempt New-8891181

Gladys Lister c/o Yvonne Banks $132.48 Release/16384
Double assessed-should have R-69736-13
been deleted in 2006

Gladys Lister c/o Yvonne Banks $132.48 Release/16383
Double assessed-should have R-69735-13
been deleted in 2007

Darlene Kay Hassell $514.68 Pick-Up/16381
Adjustment - value correction New-9608931

Amber Lynn Smithson $107.27 Refund/16392
Turned in Plates New-1007614

Dewayne & Richard Harris & Janie White $244.12 Refund/16393
Should have been deferred taxes ~ R-61903-12

Warren Justin Corbell $156.05 Release/16414
Turned in plates V-72711-13

Hollie Renea Davison $117.12 Release/16373
Military Exem;pt V-71692-13

Don H. & Brandy Gordon $272.74 Pick-Up/16375
Adjustment - value correction R-68433-13
based on adjoining properties

Anthony Eugene Barrick $128.46 Release/16405
Temporary tag V-72754-13
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number: 6.D

Consent Agenda

Meeting Date: January 6, 2014
Attachments: 2 (2 Pages)

Submitted By: Tax Administration

ITEM TITLE: Tax Authorization to Collect
SUMMARY:

September & February renewals.
RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF CAMDEN
TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County (Sept. Ren.) Due 01/01/14

Y ou are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be afirst lien upon personal property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be afull and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL
1,890.56 1,908.67 1,764.17 5,563.40
Witness my hand and officia seal this day of

Chairman, Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden County

Thisisto certify that | have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

Tax Administrator of Camden County
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF CAMDEN

TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County (Feb. Ren.) Due 03/15/14 NEW
SYSTEM

Y ou are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be afirst lien upon persona property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be afull and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL
12,777.61 13,926.92 7,559.42 34,263.95
Witness my hand and official seal this day of

Chairman, Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden County

Thisisto certify that | have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

Tax Administrator of Camden County
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MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners gY];u ckwall
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
Item Number: 6.E
VOTE:
Consent Agenda S. Duc.k wall
G. Meiggs
M. McLai
Meeting Date: January 6, 2014 R. Kr;inai;nk
Attachments: 0 (0 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Finance Officer ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Declaration of Surplus
SUMMARY:

The Sheriff has two vehicles which he would like to have surplused. Both
vehicles were military surplused to the sheriff. 1984 Chev Blazer VIN #
1GS8ED18J9EF171910 (Diesel) and 1986 Chev % T. truck VIN # 1
GCHD34J7GF363446 (Diesel).

South Camden Water has a 2000 Ford F250 (no bed) Vin #
1FTNF20L01EAS52744 —Mileage 150,025 and a crane-Pettibone All Terrain
Cherry Picker. The crane was left at the construction site and we have letter
stating that the crane is now our property. It is not operable and should be
scraped.

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number:

Consent Agenda

Meeting Date:
Attachments:

Submitted By:
ITEM TITLE:

SUMMARY:

6.F

January 6, 2014
1 (16 Pages)
Planning Depar tment

Set Public Hearing - Ordinance

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED

2013-12-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2013-

11-26) for Rodney M. Needham

Mr. Rodney Needham has requested that his properties located at 101
Taylors Lane in Shiloh Township be rezoned from Basic Residential (R3-2)
to Neighborhood Commercial (NC). The Planning Board met on December
18, 2013 and after presentation from staff and owner, the Planning Board
recommended approval to rezone property to Neighborhood Commercial

(NC) on a5-0 vote.

Consistency statement:

Planning Board made the motion that the rezoning though inconsistent with
the CAMA and Comprehensive Plan Land Use Maps, rezoning was
consistent with Policy 17 of the CAMA Plan and the principles of the
Comprehensive Plan in the need for commercial development on a 5-0 vote.

RECOMMENDATION:

Set Public Hearing for February 3, 2014.
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Ordinance No. 2013-12-01

An Ordinance
Amending the Camden County
Zoning Map
Camden County, North Carolina

Article I: Purpose

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North
Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20,
1993, and subsequently amended.

Article 11. Amendment to Zoning Map

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on
December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows:

The property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as
PIN 03-8953-03-23-1826, is hereby re-zoned from Basic Residential (R3-2) to
Neighborhood Commercial (NC).

Article III.  Penalty

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its
requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established
in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits,
shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500)
dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4.

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to
comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and
safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use
or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of
one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues. Ifthe offender
fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the
penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt. A
civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was
sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take
an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time.

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action.
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4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that
such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the
penalties and remedies specified in this section.

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be
used to enforce this Ordinance.

Article IV.  Severability

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language
held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect.
Article V. Effective Date

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption.

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this day of
2014,

County of Camden

Garry Meiggs, Chairman
Camden County Board of Commissioners
AT TEST:

Ashley Honaker
Clerk to the Board (SEAL)
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STAFF REPORT

UDO 2013-11-26
Minor Zoning Map Amendment

PROJECT INFORMATION
File Reference: UDO 2013-11-26 Application Received: 11/25/2013
Project Name; N/A By: Amy Bamett, Planning Clerk
PIN: 03-8953-03-23-1826
Applicant: Rodney M. Needham | Application Fee paid: $650 Cash
Address: 916 A Sandy Hook
Phone: (252) 336-2700 Completeness of Application: Application is
Email: generally complete
Agent for Applicant: Documents received upon filing of application
Address: or otherwise included:
Phone: A.  Rezoning Application
Email: B. Deed
Current Owner of Record: Taylors Oak LLC C.  GIS Aerial, existing zoning, Comprehensive
Plan future land use and CAMA Land Use
Meeting Dates: Plan Suitability Maps
Neighborhood D. Zoning Comparison: Basic Residential (R3)
Technical Review vs Neighborhood Commercial (NC)
12/18/13 Planning Board
Board of Commissioners

PROJECT LOCATION:

Street Address: 101 Taylors Lane
Location Description: Shiloh Township
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icinity Map:

v




REQUEST: Rezoning

From: R3-2

The R-3, basic residential, districts are designed
to provide for low density residential
development in areas that are adjacent to those
areas primarily devoted to agriculture. In
addition, it is not intended for the placement of
any mobile homes within this district. Except as
otherwise stated or if the context of the use
indicates otherwise, when the term ‘“R-3
district” is used in this chapter, it shall refer to
both the R-3-1 district and the R-3-2 district.

The R-3-1 district is an R-3 district having lots
of one or more acres in size.

The R-3-2 district is an R-3 district having lots
of two or more acres in size

185

To:

Neighborhood Commercial (NC) - The NCD,
neighborhood commercial, district is designed
primarily to encourage the concentration of
commercial facilities, as necessary, outside the
core villages but still in clusters and to provide
readily accessible shopping facilities for rural
residents. The district differs from the
community core district in that uses are limited
to small commercial and service businesses
whose market is primarily those residents
within the immediate vicinity. These districts
shall be limited to between two and four acres
in size and typically located near intersections.
This district is also designed to include very
limited kinds of water-related commercial
activities to serve a waterfront neighborhood.

SITE DATA

Lot size: Approximately .7 acres
Flood Zone: AE

Zoning District(s): Basic Residential (R3-2)
Existing Land Uses: Vacant Building

Adjacent Zoning & Uses:

North South East West
Zoning R3 — Basic R3 — Basic General Use R3 — Basic
Residential Residential District (GUD) Residential
Use & size Agriculture — 172 | Housing — 1 acre | Housing — 1.5 Boat Repair Shop
Acres lots acres; agriculture | %2 acre
100 acres
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Proposed Use(s):
CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TABLE OF PERMISSIBLE USES
( R-3 Vs NCD Zoning Districts )

USE# | DESCRIPTION R-3 NCD
1.000 Residential
1.100 Single Family Detached (One dwelling unit per lot)
1.111 Site Built Z
11115 Modular Z
1.200 Two-Family Residences
1.300 Multi-Family Residences
1.400 Homes Emphasizing Special Services, Treatment or Supervision
1.410 Homes for handicapped, aged or infirm S
1.420 Nursing care, intermediate care homes S
1.430 Child Care Homes S S
1.450 Family care home: provided there is a half mile between them measured from S

lotlines
1.460 Family care homes for the aged S
1.500 Miscellaneous rooms for rent situations
1.510 Rooming houses, Boarding houses S
1.520 Bed and Breakfast establishments Z
1.530 Tourist homes (renting by day or week) S
1.550 Hunting and Fishing Lodges S
1.600 Temporary Emergency Construction and Repair of Residences 74 Z
1.700 Home Occupations Z Z
2.000 Sales and Rental of Goods, Merchandise and Equipment
2.100 No storage/display of goods outside fully enclosed structure
2.110 High Volume Traffic Generation Z
2.111 Convenience Store Z
2.120 Low Volume Traffic Generation Z
2.130 Wholesale Sales S
2.200 Storage/Display of Goods Outside Fully Enclosed Allowed
2.210 High Volume Traffic Generation S
2.220 Low Volume Traffic Generation S
2.230 Wholesale Sales S
2.300 Shopping Centers — Subject to Article 151.347 (R) S
3.000 Office, Clerical, Research and Services not primarily related to goods or

merchandise

3.100 All operations conducted entirely within fully enclosed building
3.110 Operations designed to attract and serve customers or clients on the premises, L

such as the offices of attorneys, stock brokers, travel agents. and other

professions
3.120 Operations designed to attract little or no customer or client traffic other than Z

employees of the entity operating the use
3.130 Offices or clinics of physicians or dentists with not more than 10,000 square 7

feet of gross floor area
3.140 Government Offices Z
3.200 Operation conducted within or outside fully enclosed building
3.210 Operations designed to atiract and serve customers or clients on the premises Z
3.220 Operations designed to attract little or no customer or client traffic other than Z

employees of the entity operating the use
3.230 Banks with drive-in windows Z
4.000 Manufacturing, Processing, Creating, Repairing, Renovating, Painting, Cleaning,

Assembling of Goods, Merchandise and Equipment, Subject to Hereto

4.100 All operations conducted entirely within fully enclosed building

Page 1 of 4
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TABLE OF PERMISSIBLE USES
( R-3 Vs NCD Zoning Districts )

| USE# | DESCRIPTION R-3 | NCD |

4.110 Majority of dollar volume of business done with walk-in trade z

4120 Majority of dollar volume business not done with walk-in trade &

4.200 Operations conducted within or outside fully enclosed building 5

5.000 Educational, Cultural. Religious, Philanthropic, Social and Fraternal Uses

5.100 Schools

5.110 Elementary and Secondary (including associated grounds, athletic and other S 5
facilities)

5.120 Trade or Vocational 8

5:130 Colleges, community colleges (including associated facilities such as S
dormitories, office buildings and athletic fields, etc.)

5.200 Churches, Synagogues and temples (including associated residential structures S Z
for religious personnel)

5.300 Libraries, museums, art galleries, art centers and similar uses (including

associated educational and instructional activities)

5310 Located within a building designed and previously occupied as a residence or S S
within a building having a gross floor area not in excess of 3,500 feet

5.320 Located within any permissible structure 5

5.400 Social, fraternal clubs, lodges, union halls and similar uses S

6.000 Recreation, Amusement, Entertainment

6.100 Activity conducted entirely within a building or substantial structure

6.110 Bowling alleys, skating rinks, indoor tennis and racquetball courts, billiards Z
and pool halls, indoor athletic and exercise facilities

6.120 Movie Theaters &

6.200 Activity conducted primarily outside enclosed buildings or structures

6.210 Privately owned outdoor recreation facilities such as golf and country clubs, Z
etc. (But not including campgrounds), not constructed pursuant (o a permit
authorizing the construction of some residential development

6.220 Publicly owned outdoor recreational facilities, such as athletic fields, golf z
courses, tennis courts, swimming pools, parks, campgrounds, boat ramps and
docks, etc. Not constructed pursuant to a permit authorizing the construction of
another use (i.e. school)

6.230 Golf driving ranges not accessory to golf courses, par 3 courses, miniature golf Z
courses, skateboard parks, water slides. and similar uses

6.270 Private Campgrounds

7.000 Institutional Residences or Care/Confinement facilities

7.100 Hospitals, clinics other medical (including mental health) treatment facilities in S
excess of 10,000 square feet in gross floor area

7.200 Nursing care, intermediate care. handicapped. infirm or child care institutions S

8.000 Restaurants, Dance Halls, Bars, Night Clubs

8.100 Restaurants

8.110 No substantial carry-out or delivery service. no drive-in service, no service or Z
consumption outside fully enclosed structure

8.120 No substantial carry-out or delivery service, no drive in service, service or Z
consumption outside fully enclosed structure

8.130 Carry-out and delivery service, consumption outside fully enclosed structure Z
allowed, but no drive-in service

8.140 Carry-out and delivery service, drive-in service, service outside fully enclosed Z
structure; with drive-in and delivery service

8.200 Dance Halls, Bars and Nightclubs 4

9.000 Motor vehicle and boat related sales and service operations

9.100 Motor vehicle and boat sales or rental or sales and service Z

Page 2 of 4
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TABLE OF PERMISSIBLE USES
( R-3 Vs NCD Zoning Districts )

USE#

DESCRIPTION

R-3 NCD
9.200 Automobile service center Z
9.300 Gas sales operations Z
9.400 Automobile repair shop or body shop provided all wrecked vehicles and parts Z
are visually screened from exterior property lines and right-of-way lines
9.500 Car wash Z
10.000 | Storage and Parking
10.200 | Storage of goods not related to the sale or use of those goods on same lot where
they are stored
10.210 All storage within completely enclosed structures L
10.300 Parking of vehicles or storage of equipment outside enclosed structures where: S
(i) vehicles or equipment are owned by the person making use of the lot and
(ii) parking or storage is more than a minor or incidental part of the overall use
made of the lot
12.000 | Service and Enterprises related to animals
12.100 WVeterinarian Z
12.200 Kennels S
13.000 | Emergency Services
13.100 Law Enforcement Stations S Z
13.200 Fire Stations 5 Z
13.300 Rescue Squad, Ambulance Service S £
13.400 Civil Defense Operations 5 £
14.000 | Agricultural, Silvicultural, Mining, and Quarrying Operations
14.100 | Agricultural operations, farming (not exempt as bona-fide farms)
14.110 Excluding livestock Z Z
14.200 Silvicultural Operations Z Z
15.000 | Miscellaneous Public and Semi-Public Facilities and related uses
15.100 Post Office Z
15.200 | Airports and Air Strips
15.210 County owned and operated airport S
15.300 | Sanitary Landfill, Convenience Centers and related facilities
15310 Camden County owned and operated Z Z
15.600 ABC Stores Z
16.000 | Dry Cleaner and Laundromat
16.100 Dry Cleaner S
16.200 Laundromat Z
17.000 | Udlity Facilities
17.100 Neighborhood S Z
17.200 Community or Regional S S
17.300 County owned and operated Z %
18.000 | Wireless Telecommunication Facilities (WTF), Towers, other related structures
18.100 WTF, antennas, supporting structures, radio or TV towers which are 35 feet or Z Z
less, and receive only earth stations
18.400 | Wind Turbines - Refer to Article 151.347 (T) - Specific Standards
18.410 Small Turbines 5
19.000 | Open Air Markets
19.100 Farm and craft markets, produce markets not qualifying as an accessory use to 8 Z
use classification 14,100
19.200 Flea Markets S
20.000 Funeral Home S
21.000 | Cemetery and Crematorium
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TABLE OF PERMISSIBLE USES
( R-3 Vs NCD Zoning Districts )

USE# DESCRIPTION | R-3 NCD

21.100 Cemetery not on same property as church 3

21.200 Cemetery on same property as church Z Z

22.000 Nursery School, Day Care Centers Z

23.000 Temporary Construction and Sales Office Z Z

25.000 | Commercial Greenhouse, Nursery

25.100 On-premise sales permitted Z

26.000 Special Events S Z

27.000 Combination Uses ZSC Z8C

28.000 Off-Premises Signs S

29.000 | Subdivisions

29,100 Major - Preliminary Plat S o

29.200 Minor Z Z

29.300 Private Access Subdivision (see 151.260 for Zoning Permit authority when one S S
lot created)

31.000 Agribusiness uses S

32.000 | Miscellaneous Water Related Uses

32.100 | Boat Ramps

32.110 Publicly owned S Z

32.120 Privately owned, but open to the public on a fee basis S

33.000 Adaptive reuse of Historic Property S z

999.99 | NOTES TO TABLE:

9 7. - Zoning Permit Required

C - Conditional Use Permit Required
S - Special Use Permit Required

-The underpinning of a modular home shall be masonry with bricks covering all
of the exposed masonry underpinning,

Page 4 of 4
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Description of property:

Property is located at the intersection of Highway 343 and Taylors Lane in Shiloh Township. There has
recently been major renovations to the existing building on the property that was once was a car repair
garage that was classified as a legal non-conforming use as it was established prior to current zoning.
The use was abandoned for a period of over six months and under Camden’s Unified Development the
property could only be utilized for what the existing zoning (Basic Residential (R3)) would permit.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:

There is a ditch to the south of the property on Highway 343 that appears to be the nearest outfall for
drainage.

Distance & description of nearest outfall:

Soils:

Roanoke (RoA)
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Future Land Use, Land Suitability, Zoning, and Floodplain Maps:
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INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES

Water Current structure is connected to South Camden Water.
Sewer Septic tank located on property

Fire District Shiloh Township

Schools N/A

Traffic Estimated daily traffic count is 2000 IAW NCDOT
PLANS CONSISTENCY

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:
Consistent [ Inconsistent X

Policy 17 states Camden County supports commercial development at the intersections of major
roads (i.e., in a nodal fashion) consistent with the county’s future land use map. As identified in above
map, future land use map has property identified as Low Density Residential.

PLANS CONSISTENCY - cont.

2035 Comprehensive Plan

Consistent [] Inconsistent X
Future Land Use map has area designated as Rural Residential.

PLANS CONSISTENCY - cont.

Comprehensive Transportation Plan

Consistent [J Inconsistent [
N/A
Consistent [ Inconsistent [
N/A

Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners

N/A
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FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

X

No

No

No

O

Will the proposed zoning change enhance the public health, safety or
welfare?

Reasoning: Though not consistent with adopted plans, the benefits/needs
of the community (i.e. commercial, sales tax revenue..) outweigh the
location. Though the location sits right outside the core village of Shiloh,
Neighborhood Commercial is defined as those commercial uses that serve
the immediate area which consists of Taylor Beach, Bartlett’s Landing,
Magnolia Manor and Danson’s Grant along with scattered other housing.

Is the entire range of permitted uses in the requested classification
more appropriate than the range of uses in the existing classification?

Reasoning: With the existing building being once utilized as a
commercial business, staff feels the uses in the requested zoning
classification is more appropriate.

For proposals to re-zone to non-residential districts along major
arterial roads:

Is this an expansion of an adjacent zoning district of the same
classification? No

Reasoning:

What extraordinary showing of public need or demand is met
by this application?

Reasoning: The need for commercial and sales revenue.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No
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Will the request , as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light,
activity, or unusual disturbances?

Reasoning: All uses allowed in the requested zoning classification should
not cause any serious noise, odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances.

Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental
Concern?

Reasoning: Property is outside any CAMA Areas of Environmental
Concern.

Does the county need more land in the zoning class requested?

Reasoning: As the County grows the need for this type of zoning will
grow. Currently there is only .7 acres of this type of zoning (see attached
map).

Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for
this use?

Reasoning: There could be if there were enough residential density to
support Neighborhood Commercial.



Yes O No

Yes X No

X

O
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Will not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities:

Schools — N/A

Fire and Rescue — Minimal impact.
Law Enforcement — Minimal impact.
Parks & Recreation — N/A

Traffic Circulation or Parking — N/A

Other County Facilities — No.

Is This A Small Scale “Spot” Rezoning Request Requiring Evaluation
Of Community Benefits?

If Yes (regarding small scale spot rezoning) — Applicants Reasoning:

Personal Benefits/Impact

Community Benefits/Impact

With rezoning

This would allow the applicant
to utilize a building that was
built as commercial for
continued commercial uses.

Jobs, sales tax revenue, and the
need for commercial uses of this

type.

Without rezoning

The personal impact would be to
modify a building that was
utilized for commercial into a
residential use.

Possible impact on Community
is that the building sits and
eventually becomes an eye sore.
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STAFF COMMENTARY:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Though the requested zoning is inconsistent with the CAMA Land Use Plan and Comprehensive
Plan, staff feels that Neighborhood Commercial zoning is a zoning that is dictated by the growth
in the immediate area. Staff feels the density (as listed above) in the area dictates the need for this
zoning classification. Staff recommends approval as the community benefits outweighs the
inconsistencies with adopted plans.

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:

Planning Board approved to recuse Chairman Needham as he was the applicant for the rezoning
request.

After presentation from staff and discussion with the applicant on proposed uses, planning board
made the following motions:

Planning Board recommended approval on a 5-0 vote to rezone property to Neighborhood
Commercial (NC).

Consistency statement:

Planning Board made the motion that the rezoning though inconsistent with the CAMA and
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Maps, rezoning was consistent with Policy 17 of the CAMA Plan
and the principles of the Comprehensive Plan in the need for commercial development on a 5-0
vote.
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MOTION MADE
Camden County Board of Commissioners EY[;uckwa“
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET G Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
NO MOTION
[tem Number : 6.G
VOTE:
Consent Agenda S. Duckwall
G. Me|gg_s
M eeting Date: January 6, 2014 E{"_'Q"r‘;,-Ln?;‘k
Attachments: 1 (1 Pages) C. Riggs
Submitted By: Administration ABSENT
RECUSED
ITEM TITLE: Purple Heart Proclamation
SUMMARY:

Proclaiming Camden County as a Purple Heart County of the State of North
Carolina.

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
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GARRY W. MEIGGS / MICHAEL RENSHAW
Chairman \( County Manager
P. MICHAEL MCLAIN / ASHLEY HONAKER
Vice Chairman /\ Clerk to the Board

JOHN S. MORRISON

CLAYTON D. RIGGS County Attorney

SANDRA J. DUCKWALL CAMDENCOUNTY
RANDY KRAINIAK

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, the Purple Heart is the oldest decoration in present use and was initially created as the
Badge of Military merit by General George Washington in 1782; and

WHEREAS, the Purple Heart was the first American service award or decoration made available to the
common soldier and is specifically awarded to any member of the United States Armed Services wounded or
killed in combat with a declared enemy of the United States; and

WHEREAS, the mission of the Military Order of Purple Heart, Chartered by an act of Congress, is to
foster an environment of goodwill among combat wounded veteran members and their families, promote
patriotism, support legidlative initiatives and most importantly- make sure we never forget; and

WHEREAS, Camden County residents have been engaged in every war against a declared enemy fought
by the United States, most notably being the war between the States; and

WHEREAS, the Confederate Soldiers repelled a Union Army surge at the Battle of South Mills, and
prevented the demolition of Dismal Swamp Canal locks on April 19, 1862, and has been filed with the State and
officially marked with a Historic Highway Marker; and

WHEREAS, Camden County is home to active military and veterans alike from al divisions; and

WHEREAS, Camden County recognizes the commitment and increasing sacrifices required of military
families; and

WHEREAS, Camden County pledges its ongoing commitment to and support for the men and women
who so honorably serve our nation.

NOW THEREFORE IT BE PROCLAMED, that the Camden County Board of Commissioners hereby declares
Camden County as a Purple Heart County in the State of North Carolina.

Adopted this 6™ day of January, 2014.

Garry Meiggs, Chairman

Ashley Honaker, Clerk to the Board

P. O. Box 190 « 117 North 343 ¢« Camden, NC, 27921 * Phone (252) 338-1919 ¢ Fax (252) 333-1603
WWW.CamdencountynC.gOV |
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Camden County Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

[tem Number: 9.A-G

Information & Reports

Meeting Date: January 6, 2014
Attachments: 7 (20 Pages)
Submitted By: Various Departments
ITEM TITLE: Information & Reportsfrom other
Agencies
SUMMARY:
A. ECBH November 2013 Financial Report
B. Sales Collection Report
C. Land Transfer Tax Report
D. Register of Deeds Account Balance Report
E. Central Depository Fund
F. Albemarle Commission Board Packet
G. Six month Library Report

RECOMMENDATION:

Review & Approve.

MOTION MADE
BY:

S. Duckwall

G. Meiggs

M. McLain

R. Krainiak

C. Riggs

NO MOTION

VOTE:

S. Duckwall
G. Meiggs
M. McLain
R. Krainiak
C. Riggs
ABSENT
RECUSED




Southern Bank - Operating Account
Southern Bank - Housing Account
Southern Benk - IMS Heelth Ins Benefit Acct
Southem Bank - IMS Flex Spending Acct
NC Ceash Management Trust

Southern Benk - Risk Reserve Account
Investment Securites Account

Accts Recelvabie Other

Relmburseeble Expenses

Due From Other Government Unit
Prepald Expense

CURRENT ASSETS

Lend

Buildings

Leaseholds Improvements
Equipment

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Accounts Peysbie

Accrued Expenses

IBNR- Medicald

Reserve For Health Care Costs
Reserve For Retireas Hosp
LIABILITIES

Investments In Fixed Assets
Unrestricted Fund Balence

Restricted Fund Balance
YTD Income

FUND BALANCE
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE
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EAST CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
For the Five Months Ending 11/30/2013
11/30/2013

$70,694,055.58
3,000.00
324,206.97
17,264.61
3,811,494.18
5,985,331.44
703,270.52
57,871.08
270,037.54
2,750,716.01
2,681,365.69

87,208,814,50

485,971.81
4,633,047.05
180,066.41
3,733,245.44
9,032,330.71
98,330,845.21

1,489,778.31
140,418.32
14,557,174.00
161,131.98
51,779.25
16,400,281.88

9,032,330.71
44,348,873.45
16,135,632.00

10,413,827.19
79,930,883.35

98,330,945.21
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EAST CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
INCOME STATEMENT
For the Flve Monthe Ending 11/30/2013

November YTD
Total Revenus $17.,737,495.88 $92,038,078.57
Tota} Expanse 15,607,742.32 81,824,251.38

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 2,129,753.54 10,413,827.19




4040 Medicald/HealthCholce Patient Fees

4045 Medicaid Walver Service Funds
4050 Mediceld Risk Reserve Funds

4060 Medlcald Walvar Administrative Fun...

4105 Beaufort County ABC Funds
4110 Bertie County ABC Funds
4111 Camden County ABC Funds
4113 Chowan County ABC Funds
4115 Craven County ABC Funds
4117 Currituck County ABC Funds
4120 Gates County ABC Funds
4125 Hertford County ABC Funds
4130 Jones County ABC Funds
4133 Hyde County ABC Funds
4135 Northampton County ABC Funds
4137 Martin County ABC Funds
4140 Pamlico County ABC Funds
4145 Pitt County ABC Funds

4147 Pasquotank County ABC Funds
4148 Perquimans County ABC Funds
4153 Tyrreil County ABC Funds
4158 Washington County ABC Funds
4205 Beaufort County General
4210 Bertie County General

4211 Camden County General
4213 Chowan County General
4215 Craven County General

4217 Currltuck County General
4219 Dare County General

4220 Gates County General

4230 Hertford County General
4233 Hyde County General

4235 Jones County General

4237 Martin County General

4240 Northampton County General
4245 Pamlico County General
4247 Pasquotank County General
4248 Perquimans County General
4250 Pitt County General

4253 Tyrrell County General

4259 Washington County General
4270 Rental Income

4280 Miscellaneous Local

4290 Interest income

4295 Shelter Plus

4390 Miscellaneous Slate

4805 IPRS State Single Stream
4810 CMH IPRS

4815 AMH IPRS

4820 CSA IPRS

4825 ASA IPRS

4850 IPRS Adminlstrative Funds

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUE AND TRANSFERS
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EAST CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

TOTAL REVENUES
11/30/2013
Current Month YTD Budgat % of Budgat
$605.71 $6,071.77 $400,000.00 1.52%
10,276,537.57 64,809,378.21 159,670,481.00 40.59%
235,376.00 1,484,316.81 3,657,134.00 40.59%
1,256,910.00 7,922,135.50 19,529,097.00 40.57%
4,250,00 4,250.00 17,000.00 25.00%
0.00 0.00 4,800.00 0.00%
308.74 1,214.82 4,246.00 28.61%
0.00 1,073.05 3,000.00 35.77%
2,230.08 B,746.18 27,000.00 32.39%
1,939.54 5,691.61 9,984.00 57.01%
0.00 0.00 1,700.00 0.00%
715,68 3,727.38 6,000.00 62.12%
284.42 1,150.73 3,600.00 31.96%
299,40 807.89 1,500.00 53.86%
0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00%
0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00%
234.21 951.00 3,000.00 31.70%
7.,883.73 21,071.73 108,000.00 19.51%
906.29 3,364.54 7,000.00 48.06%
252.24 976.21 2,500.00 39.05%
0.00 104.67 1,092.00 9.59%
0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 100.00%
39,148.75 39,149.75 156,599.00 25.00%
11,147.50 22,295.00 44,590.00 50.00%
2,456.50 7.456.50 20,000.00 37.28%
0.00 9,826.00 29,478.00 33.33%
20,818.91 104,094.71 249,827.00 41.67%
0.00 27,272.00 50,316.00 54.20%
0.00 35,000.00 390,369.00 8.97%
0.00 7.000.00 28,000.00 25.00%
6,479.17 32,395.85 77,750.00 41.67%
0.00 2,728.50 10,814.00 25.00%
1,692.17 8,460.85 23,306.00 35.39%
0.00 24,231.00 48,462.00 50.00%
6,467.83 32,339.15 77,614.00 41.67%
2,482.75 13,213.75 30,593.00 43,19%
21,376.50 42,753.00 85,506.00 50.00%
2,242.00 11,212.00 26,906.00 41.67%
40,625.00 234,795.56 487,500.00 48,16%
825.50 3,1987.33 8,814.00 36.28%
0.00 13,114.00 26,228.00 50.00%
9,119.00 47,772.00 77,028.00 62.02%
382.97 11,401.20 125,000.00 9.12%
36,997.66 194,882.59 250,000.00 77.95%
12,163.33 48,119.32 463,260.00 10.39%
1,395,750.00 1,395,750.00 3,558,750.00 39.22%
2,395,967.00 12,028,703.00 29,044,813.00 41.41%
33,804.05 33,804.05 256,142.00 13.20%
114,213.13 114,213.13 £91,683.00 16.51%
109,195.72 109,1985.72 1,217,423.00 8.97%
1,363,135.80 1,363,135.80 4,402,026.00 30.97%
322,270.00 1,742,534.00 3,450,192.00 50.51%
17,737,495.86 92,038,078.57 228,877,323.00 40.21%
17,737,405.86 92,038,078.57 228,877,323.00 40.21%




PERSONNEL

0120 Salaries & Wagas

0170 Board Membar Expense
0180 Fiinge Benafits

0191 Retirea Hospitat

0190 Other Professional Expenss
TOTAL

SUPPLIES & MATERIALS
0210 Housaclean/Supplies
0220 Food & Prov

0280 Office Supplies

0250 Othar Suppliea/Meterials
TOTAL

OTHER OBLIGATIONS & SERVICES
0310 Travel

0320 Communication

0330 Utiltles

0340 Printing

0350 Rapairs & Malntenance

0370 Advertising

0380 Data Process Services

0350 OtherTralning/Travel/Misc

0335 Uncollectible Accounts Expense
TOTAL

FIXED CHARGES 8 OTHER EXPENSES
0410 Rental

0440 Service & Maintenance

0450 Insurance

0490 Dues & Subscriplian Other Charges
TOTAL

CAPITAL OUTLAY

0510 Capitel Oullay Fumniture
0520 Caplital Quilay DP Equipment
TOTAL

CONTRACTS & GRANTS

0680-02 Cantracts Medicald Pass Thru
0690-03 Contracts Federal Nan-UCR
0650-04 Contracts Bridge Funding
0690-05 Contracts County/Other

0690-49 Conlracts Stale Non-UCR IPRS
0690-50 Contracts Medicald Relnvestment
5000 Contracts STATE

5000 Contracts MEDICAID

TOTAL
TOTAL EXPENSES
0820 Transfer o Mediclad Risk Resarve

0680 Other Non Operating
GRAND TOTAL
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EAST CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Total Expenses
Summary of All Units
11/30/2013

Current Month YTD Budgst
988,149.50 4,791,924.12 13,485,565.57
1,300.00 3,837.85 30,000.00
318,970.97 1,456,390.67 4,479,345.03
{17,174.50) 0.00 0.00
187,257.47 672,155.99 2,056,000.60
$1,439,502.44 $6,824,316.33 $20,030,911.00
229,42 2,8670.50 7.000.00
0.00 185.50 2,000.00
2131.79 16,3980.10 115,000.00
2,.344.87 9,715.48 31,700.00
$4,700.04 $28,971.59 $155,700.00
32,527.15 220,079.32 589,000.00
31,769.99 198,637.93 908,000.00
7,820.89 34,640.00 220,000.00
0.00 913.09 25,000.00
6,920.47 33,343.66 160,000.00
2,003.73 10,254.09 40,000.00
23,32597 133,879.10 340,000.00
25,955,79 91,835.76 229,500.00
50,720.52 50,720.52 0.00
$168,853.98 $772,403.46 $2,408,500.00
76,691.72 136,710.84 343,038.00
50,921.98 374,688.98 1,069,620.00
64,556.11 310,197.71 735,000.00
259.58 17,883.79 §1,000.00
$194,620.37 $839,591.30 $2,224,659.00
g'gas. 2;',;21 35 12;%"“
46 . 2 00
$9,057.48 $78,503.63 $280,000.00
{138.01) 18,758.33 400,000.00
554,050.22 2,084,306.92 4,309,979.00
12,071.80 71,780.84 0.00
51,845.15 454,151.12 2,084,294.00
250,864.92 1,585,713.08 9,721,061.00
68,279.58 68,279.56 0.00
2,110,913.88 13,808,983.33 24,857,710.00
10,722,258.47 54,782,939.14 159,670,461.00
$13,770,141.39 $72,985,001.72 $200,040,422.00
$15,605,880.71 $81,606,788.03 $225,150,189.00
0.00 0.00 3,657,134.00
2.051.81 17,463.35 70,000.00
$15,607,742.32 $81 i4&1.:’:8 $228,877,323.00

% ==

% of Budget

35.59%
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26.38%

4.69%
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55.95%
34.31%
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38.25%
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24.95%
35.66%
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LAND TRANSFER TAX COLLECTION¢

B |

Camden Finance Office

12006-07 |2007-08 |2008-09 |2009-10 |2010-11 |2011-12 |2012-2013/2013-2014
JULY $63,752 | $35,682 | $34,673| $33,237 | $25,322| $9,295| $18,612| $23,219
AUGUST $46,411| $51,741| $35,468| $13,070| $18,410| $37,269| $28,457| $43,170
SEPTEMBER $37,762| $27,923| $21,310| $25,420| $13,453| $12,209 $8,564| $28,294
OCTOBER $54,415| $35,653| $24,463| $25,424| $21,006| $19,661| $16,791] $24,097
NOVEMBER $38,876| $38,365 $8,483| $19,925| $25,972| $15,938| $27,741| $21,670
DECEMBER $34,069| $30,852| $47,986| $15,609| $59,286| $20,631| $35,988
JANUARY $34,440| $29,385| $17,469 $8,004| $30,288| $34,849| $11,645
FEBRUARY $37,456| $29,004 $7,200| $10,348| $21,428| $49,303| $20,970
MARCH $64,362| $26,099| $11,415| $39,984| $15,667| $17,390| $24,564
APRIL $41,197| $38,039| $17,915 $8,699| $17,909| $29,848| $31,529
MAY $57,380| $32,647 $6,599| $32,182| $35,766| $32,857| $12,107
JUNE $76,300| $53,660| $28,675| $50,432| $15,791| $48,702| $30,921
TOTALS $586,420 | $429,050 | $261,656|%$282,334 | $300,298| $327,952 | $267,889| $140,450
BUDGET $536,000, $500,000| $400,000/$100,000 | $100,000| $200,000| $200,000| $175,000
UTILITIES FRANCHISE FEES Excise Tax on Natural Gas and Franchise tax on Power

12007-2008 2008-2009 | 2009-2010/2010-2011{2011-12 |2012-2013|2013-2014
1ST QTR 9/30 || $109,351| $115,997| $115,506| $122,404| $122,198| $126,001| $118,154
2ND QTR 12/31|| $93,762| $99,224| $94,076| $95,253| $90,205 $101,038
3RD QTR 3/31 || $104,145 $122,003| $124,734| $118,837| $110,045| $120,030
4TH QTR 6/30 $90,525| $100,436| $94,605| $99,447, $95,378| $102,667
TOTALS $398,083| $437,660| $428,921| $435,941| $417,826| $449,736| $118,154
BUDGET $300,000, $400,032| $375,000| $400,000| $400,000| $415,000| $400,000
Cable Franchise Replacemennt Fees (Sales Tax on Video Program, Direct-to-Home Satelite

and Telecommunications Service)

12007-2008 2008-2009 | 2009-2010/2010-2011{2011-20122012-2013/2013-2014
1ST QTR 9/30 $12,571| $12,191| $12,830| $11,986| $12,217| $10,990| $19,118
2ND QTR 12/31|] $13,008| $12,831| $11,869, $11,135] $11,835] $11,172
3RD QTR 3/31 $13,094| $12,117| $12,249| $11,897, $9,814| $11,053
4TH QTR 6/30 $13,760| $12,579| $12,373| $13,728| $12,420| $11,413
TOTALS $52,433| $49,718| $49,321| $48,746| $46,286| $44,628 $19,118
BUDGET $43,303| $45,000/ $45,000/ $45,000/ $45,000/ $47,000/ $45,000




Peggy C. Kight
Register of Deeds

Camden, NC

P. O. Box 190
Camden, NC 27921
(252) 331-4851

Account Batatce Report
From 11/1/2013 Through 11/30/2013

Account Cash/Check/ Other Pay

Number Account Description Change Charge Method Total
0106 State Treasurer Fund $551.80 $0.00 $0.00 $551.80
0107 Excise Stamps $4,459.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,459.00
0109 Retirement Fund $55.92 $0.00 $0.00 $55.92
0110 Additional Index $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0111 Automation Fund $338.87 $0.00 $0.00 $338.87
8888 Credit On Account $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0301 Copies $91.40 $0.00 $0.00 $91.40
0302 Certified Copies $4.43 $0.00 $0.00 $4.43
0303 Fax $2.67 $0.00 $0.00 $2.67
0304 Laminations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
wexarxk Account Group COPIES Total **+**+* $98.50 $0.00 $0.00 $98.50
0401 Notary Oaths $17.72 $0.00 $0.00 $17.72
ke Account Group MISCELLANEOUS Total ****** $17.72 $0.00 $0.00 $17.72
0101 Recording Fees $2,265.18 $0.00 $0.00 $2,265.18
0102 Non Standard Fees $22.16 $0.00 $0.00 $22.16
0103 Probate $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0104 Cultural Resources $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0105 Floodplain Mapping $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0108 Uccs $39.89 $0.00 $0.00 $39.89
wexxkkx Account Group RECORDINGS Total ***+*** $2,327.23 $0.00 $0.00 $2,327.23
0201 County Marriages $177.28 $0.00 $0.00 $177.28
0202 Domestic Violence Fund $240.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240.00
0203 Childrens Trust Fund $40.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40.00
0204 Vital Certificates $248.08 $0.00 $0.00 $248.08
0205 Legitimations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
wewkkkk Account Group VITALS Total ***x+x* $705.36 $0.00 $0.00 $705.36
Final Totals : $8,554.40 $0.00 $0.00 $8,554.40

Cott
Systems

Prepared On :

Application Version :

Thursday, December 12, 2013 1:53 pm
3.11.4.0

Page 1 of 2

Resolution3



Peggy C. Kight
Register of Deeds

Account Batance Report
From 11/1/2013 Through 11/30/2013

Camden, NC

P. O. Box 190
Camden, NC 27921
(252) 331-4851

Account Cash/Check/ Other Pay
Number Account Description Change Charge Method Total
[ Counts/Totals From 11/1/2013 Through 11/30/2013 ]
Cash Total : $827.75 *+ Number of Cash Payments : 54 ( Charge Information )
Check Total : $7,781.80 * Number of Check Payments : 97 Open ltem Information )
Other Pay Total: $0.00 * Number of Change Payments : 9 Number of Payments on Account : 0
Change Total : $55.15 - Number of Charge Payments : 0 Total Paid on Account : $0.00
Subtotal : $8,554.40 Number of Other Payments : 0
Charge Total : $0.00 *
Number of Receipts : 136
Grand Total : $8,554.40 Number of Voids : 4
Cott Prepared On: Thursday, December 12, 2013 1:53 pm Page 2 of 2
3.11.4.0 Resolution3

Systems Application Version :



Peggy C. Kight
Register of Deeds

Camden, NC

P. O. Box 190
Camden, NC 27921
(252) 331-4851
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0109 Retirement Fund $55.92 $0.00 $0.00 $55.92
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0111 Automation Fund $338.87 $0.00 $0.00 $338.87
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0301 Copies $91.40 $0.00 $0.00 $91.40
0302 Certified Copies $4.43 $0.00 $0.00 $4.43
0303 Fax $2.67 $0.00 $0.00 $2.67
0304 Laminations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
wexarxk Account Group COPIES Total **+**+* $98.50 $0.00 $0.00 $98.50
0401 Notary Oaths $17.72 $0.00 $0.00 $17.72
ke Account Group MISCELLANEOUS Total ****** $17.72 $0.00 $0.00 $17.72
0101 Recording Fees $2,265.18 $0.00 $0.00 $2,265.18
0102 Non Standard Fees $22.16 $0.00 $0.00 $22.16
0103 Probate $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0104 Cultural Resources $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0105 Floodplain Mapping $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0108 Uccs $39.89 $0.00 $0.00 $39.89
wexxkkx Account Group RECORDINGS Total ***+*** $2,327.23 $0.00 $0.00 $2,327.23
0201 County Marriages $177.28 $0.00 $0.00 $177.28
0202 Domestic Violence Fund $240.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240.00
0203 Childrens Trust Fund $40.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40.00
0204 Vital Certificates $248.08 $0.00 $0.00 $248.08
0205 Legitimations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
wewkkkk Account Group VITALS Total ***x+x* $705.36 $0.00 $0.00 $705.36
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Peggy C. Kight
Register of Deeds

Account Batance Report
From 11/1/2013 Through 11/30/2013

Camden, NC

P. O. Box 190
Camden, NC 27921
(252) 331-4851

Account Cash/Check/ Other Pay
Number Account Description Change Charge Method Total
[ Counts/Totals From 11/1/2013 Through 11/30/2013 ]
Cash Total : $827.75 *+ Number of Cash Payments : 54 ( Charge Information )
Check Total : $7,781.80 * Number of Check Payments : 97 Open ltem Information )
Other Pay Total: $0.00 * Number of Change Payments : 9 Number of Payments on Account : 0
Change Total : $55.15 - Number of Charge Payments : 0 Total Paid on Account : $0.00
Subtotal : $8,554.40 Number of Other Payments : 0
Charge Total : $0.00 *
Number of Receipts : 136
Grand Total : $8,554.40 Number of Voids : 4
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ATBR THE ALBEMARLE COMMISSION

FLAR _
‘l%’@ LEAD REGIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR REGION R

Chairperson, Tracey Johnson
gj’"bg’ 5 Executive Director, Bert Banks
Vernmen

Camden

Chowan

Currituck

Dure ALBEMARLE COMMISSION BOARD MEETING
Hyde

Pasquotank  DATE: Thursday, November 21,2013

Perquimens

Tyrrefl . .

W?S;ngon TIME: 7:00 p.m.

Columbia  PLACE: Albemarle Commission Building
Cresweli
Edent s
Elizabeth Ciry J1EM 1 Opening
Gatesville

Hertford ITEM 2 Invocation
Kill Devit Hitls

ﬁ‘;‘ﬁ“’" ITEM 3 Determination of a Quorum

Poows. ITEM4  Approval of October 17, 2013 Albemarle Commission Minutes
Raoper

woihern ShorSI TEM S Presentation of FY 2012-2013 Audit Report

ITEM 6 Recognition of Qutgoing Board Members

ITEM 7 Nominating Commitiee Appointees
ITEM 8 Approval of Budget Amendments #8 - #10

ITEM 9 Financial Report Period Ending October 31, 2013

ITEM 10 Equipment scbeduled for Placement on GovDeals — Description will be
distributed at meeting

ITEM 11 Director’s Comments

ITEM 12 Chairperson’s Comments
ITEM 13 Other Business
ITEM 14 Adjournment

Attachments: 1) Agenda
2) Minutes of October 17, 2013 AC Bd Meeting
3} Budget Amendments
4) Financial Report for Period Ending Oct. 31, 2013
3) Audit Report- Hard copy will be distributed at meeting
3) Board Travel Reimbursement Form

512 Seuth Cherch Street » Post Office Box 646 » Hertford, NC 27944 + Office: {232) 426-5753 « Fax: (252) 426-8482 » Website; albemariecommission.arg
Senior Nutrition Program (252) 426-7093 « Fax: {252} 426-7649
The Atbemarle Commission does not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, religion, race, color, disability, or national origin.
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MINUTES OF THE
ALBEMARLE COMMISSION
Oct. 17, 2013

Opening
Chairperson Tracey Johnson opened the Oct. 17, 2013 Albemarle Commission
Board meeting at 7:00 p.m. The meeting was held at the Albemarle Commission in

Hertford.

Invocation v
The invocation was offered by Executive Director Bert Banks.

Determination of a Quorum ,
A quorum was present with all delegates present.

Name v - County
Michael McLain . Camden

Bill Norton ' - Camden
Jeff Smith : Chowan
Jack Perry - Chowan
Marion Gilbert Currituck
Robert Woodard, Sr. ‘Dare

Henry Jordan , - Gates

Earl Pugh, Jr. ' Hyde

Gary White _ Pasquotank
Tammy Miller-White Perquimans
Leroy Spivey Tyrrell
Chuck Boucher Tyrrell
Tracey Johnson Washington
Charles Sharpe Washington

Also present were Dwight Wheless, Legal Counsel, Andrea Wheless, and Commission
staff.

Chairperson Johnson recognized Mr. Wheless’ guest, his sister, Andrea Wheless.

Approval of September 19, AC Minutes

Chairperson Johnson asked if there were any corrections to the September 19,
2013 minutes. With no corrections noted, Gary White moved to approve the minutes as
written. His motion was seconded by Marion Gilbert and unanimously carried.

Approval of Budget Amendments #3-#7

The budget amendments were presented to the Board for approval. Ms.
Johnson explained the additional pages attached to the amendments were for the Aging
Program and offered changes made due to sequestration. Henry Jordan moved to adopt
budget amendments #3 - #7. His motion was seconded by Marion Gilbert.
1
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Financial Report for Period Ending September 30, 2013

Ms. Humphries gave a report on the finances ending September 30, 2013. She
explained the actual figures indicating the negative amount for the Workforce
Development Program were reflected in the report. All programs with a negative
balance will receive reimbursement from their funding agency and bring their balances
out of the red. Tammy-Miller White asked about the slow receipt of county dues and
should she bring this to the attention of her county. It was explained that some
counties pay quarterly and other counties will pay in full once they receive a follow-up
notice of what is due for the Rural Planning Organization and the Albemarle Commission
county dues.

Director’s Comments ,

Executive Director Banks said the Commission did not rgalize any negative
repercussions due to the recent government shutdown and does not anticipate there
will be any. ' ’

Mr. Banks said each Board member was given a Regional Bike P'lan to review and
any questions that might arise will be addressed at the November meeting.

He reported the Commission’s auditor will be in attendance at the next Board
meeting and copies of the audit will be sent to members prior to the November
meeting. Mr. Banks explained that Board members will be given the opportunity to
either accept or reject the audit at the upcoming meeting. Mr. Banks was asked if the
audit has to be approved by the Local Government Commission and he responded this is
required.

Mr. Banks noted that the Albemarle Rural Planning Organization Planner Steve
Lambert has resigned and has taken a position with the City of Chesapeake. His last day
of employment with the Commission is October 31, 2013. He added the recruitment for
a replacement has begun and he anticipates the position will be filled in the near future.

Chairperson’s Comments
Chairperson Johnson asked if Mr. Banks would draft a letter to Mr. Lambert
expressing appreciation for his service to the Commission.

Ms. Johnson thanked the counties who were instrumental in electing her as
District 1 Director and said she looks forward to representing the counties in this
District.

She announced the November meeting will be her last meeting and that it has
been a pleasure serving the Commission as a Board member and as Chair.

Other Business
Aging Program Director Laura Alvarico announced two upcoming events. The
events were an annual Family Caregiver Education Conference to be held in Edenton at

2



the Edenton United Methodist Church on géltober 30, 2013, and the Scam Jam
scheduled for November 14, 2013 in Buxton at the Fessenden Senior Center. The
Albemarle Commission’s Aging Program is partnering with the Secretary of State’s
Office, the Department of Insurance, and the Attorney General’s Office for the Scam
Jam.

Executive Director Banks responded to questions regarding the progress of the
Dismal Swamp Canal Connector Trail between North Carolina and Virginia. He said at
this point funding is the issue stalling the trail connections. Michael MclLain said
completion of the trail connections would be a great asset to tourism.

Leroy Spivey announced that Tyrrell County has recently hired their first county
manager, David Clegg, and said as a county commissioner he finds it advantageous to
the county. Chairperson Johnson recommended that Mr. Cl’e’gg be invited to the
November Albemarle Commission Board meeting.

Bob Woodard stated that the 2™ Annual Outer Banks Seafood Festival is
scheduled to be held October 18" and 19" in Nags Head. Tickets to the event are on
sale and fresh seafood will be provided on the 19 He said last year’s Festival was a
huge success with in excess of 8,000 participating.

Adjournment
With no further business to conduct, Marion Gilbert moved to adjourn. Her
motion was seconded Gary White and unanimously carried.
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Journal Voucher

Voucher No, (3% 158 Period Entered Into; 3
ACCOUNT NO., & DESCRIPTION increase Decrease
{Regional Bues =
Aging-Elder Abuse Match 52220 | 529375 /
Reserve 52220 | 529900 k]
findirect
indirect 42100 445250 2998
Contingencies 52100 829275 $998

REASON: adjust match and indirect for previous budget amendments

not a net increase to the approved indirect budget; previous adjusiments reduced indirect

/A

10-9°7 Z

SUBMITTED BY: % —
APPROVED BY: Y —

J - § o~k

ENTERED BY:
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2013-2014

ENTERED BY:

VoucherNo. Q9 20B Period Entered Info: 4
ACCOUNT NO. & DESCRIPTION Increase Decrease
Regional Dues
SMP Match 52220 529375 $700
Reserve 52220 529900 $700
SHIIP Medicare Maich 52220 529377 $2.,300
Reserve 52220 529900 $2,300
SMP
Dues Transfer 45298 425500 $700
Conference Expenses 55298 529000 $200
Travel-Reservations 55298 523700 $500
REASON: adjust match for previous budget amendments
7
V] l
|suBMiITTED Vs [, R /01943
APPROVED BY:” J—— A Y~ /S ]
#o — Y




Journal Voucher

2013-2014

VoucherNo. | O 31 Period Entered Into: 5
ACCOUNT NO. & DESCRIPTION Increase Decrease
Motor Fleet
Cleaning Services 52223 521107 $500
Bonding/Insurance 52223 522300 $500
EDA ?
Appropriated Fund Bal 43200 460000 $6,221
Travel-Mileage 53200 523100 $1.600
Travel-Meals 53200 523300 $454
Travel-Reservations 53200 523700 $370
Seminars/Traning 53200 523950 $300
Meetings/Conferences 53200 5239460 $40
Telephone/Data 53200 524118 $180
Rent 53200 527300 $3.277
REASON: 1. Adjust line item for actual expenditures
2. Appropriate funds from EDA fund balance to fully match 3-year EDA grant. 2011-2013
SUBMITTED BY: A s -1~/ 3
APPROVED BY: S & aba wleels2

ENTERED BY:
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The Sound of Progress

COMPARISON Of October 2012 REPORT TO October 2013 REPORT
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THE ALBEMARLE COMMISSION

LEAD REGIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR REGION R

BUDGET REVENUES EXPENSES REVENUES OVER EXPENSES
PRIOR % Change PRIOR % Change PRIOR % Change PRIOR % Change
CURRENT PERIOD from CURRENT PERIOD from CURRENT | PERIOD from CURRENT PERIOD from
. < Sept 12 to Sep-13 : Sept 12 to . Sept 12 to . Sept 12 to
PROGRAM Sep-13 Sep-12 Sept 13 26p-13 Sep-12 Sept 13 Sep-13 Sep-12 Sept 13 Sep-13 Sep-12 Sept 13 Camments
Only Chowan, Dare, Gates and
GENERAL FUND $132613 |  $168,619 -21%| | $59.788 $18,134 230%| | $30,250 | $19,622 54%| | $20,538 | ($1.488)|  -2085%|" 259 have balances due. Pasq
and Chowan make payments
throughout the year.
ECONOMIC Revenue includes first quarterly
$148,333 $120,567 23% $93,120 $23,882 290% $94,836 $13,758 589% (81,716)] $10,104 -117%|draw and match as well as
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
payment for CTPG grant.
Expense reimbursements are
received quarterly. This fund
DEPARTMENT OF $130,882 | $130,781 0%|| $12,310 $668 1743%| |  $32,532 | $14,601 123%| | ($20,223)| ($13.933) 45% | will run in the negative until the
TRANSPORTATION s .
final reimbursement is
received.
. Reimbursement has been
-29% 0 0, i 2 L 3 )
Bike & Ped $85,638 $120,000 299 S 50 0% $32,229 $220 0% ($32,229) ($229) 13974% requested but not yet received.
COMMUNITY l
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM $520,000 |  $534,596 -3%| | $55,056 50 o%|| 56473 $2.085 2635% ($1,417)|  (52.085) -319,| The difference has been
i received.
(Single Family Rehab)
Qur Revolving Loan Fund
REVOLVING LOAN 4 o 1009 o, |[Program has been suspended.
PROGRAM $5,350 $5,350 0% $3,277 $2,468 33% $0 $154 100% $3,277 $2,314 -42% Laffin Gull is still making
payments on their loan.
REREETE AL T Expenditures are requested the
AGING PROGRAM $3,565,970 | $2,976,281 20% $628,039 $210,869 198% $739,033 | $325,283 127% ($110,994)| ($114,414) -3% |following month and received
= around the 15th.
WORKFORCE A cash draw of $108,189.35 was
439 1 o, o o F
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM $1,815,923 | $3,190,873 43% $471,954 $204,228 60% $580,765 | $206,468 97% ($108,811) ($1,240) 8675% requested on 11/4/2013.
GRAND TOTAL $6,404,709 | $7,246,867 -12%| | $1,323,543 $560,229 141%| | $1,566,118 | $671,180 133%]| | ($242,576)] ($120,951) -101%
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Camden County Public Library

Six-Month Library Report to Board of County Commissioners
July 1 — December 30, 2013

e Visitor Count: 9563
e Total Camden-Home Library Card Holders: 1151
e #Items in Collection: 7954

e Total Items Checked Out: 11903

0 Adult Fiction.....ccoceeveveineneececenne. 1620
0 Adult Nonfiction......ccceeeeevvrenene. 1145
0 Picture Books.......ccooevvvrerevrvrneennne 1949
0 Beginning Readers........cccceeueununes 2006
0 Grades 4-12 Fiction......c..ccoeeuveee. 1929
0 Graders 4-12 Nonfiction............. 793
O DVDS (YOUH) .o, 596
0 DVDs (Adult/Family).......ccccecuu.... 1865

e Computer/ Wireless Use: 1131
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